COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of Adjustment of Rates )
of Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc ) Case No. 2016-00169

APPLICATION

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc (herein designated as “Cumberland Valley™) hereby

makes application for an adjustment of rates, as follows:

1. Cumberland Valley informs the commission that it is engaged in the business of
operation of a retail electric distributions system in portions of nine (9) counties in
Kentucky and does hereby propose to adjust rates, effective July 8, 2016 in conformity
with the attached schedule. In this proposed adjustment of rates, Cumberland Valley
is proposing to increase its electric rates and one nonrecurring charge by $1,998,262.
[807 KAR 5:001, Section 14]

2. The name and post office address of the applicant is Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc,
PO Box 440 Gray, KY 40734. Cumberland Valley’s email address is
psc@cumberlandvalley.coop. [807 KAR 5:001, Section 14(1)].

3. The Articles of Incorporation and all amendments thereto for Cumberland Valley are
included in Case No. 7772 [807 KAR 5:001, Section 14(2)]. Cumberland Valley was
incorporated July 12, 1940.

4. The application is supported by a twelve-month historical test period ending November
30, 2015 and includes adjustments for known and measurable changes [807 KAR
5:001, Section 16(1)(a)1].

5. Cumberland Valley states the reasons the rate adjustment is required pursuant to 807

KAR Section 16(1)(b)1 are as follows:

a. Cumberland Valley’s last filed an increase in rates in Case No. 2014-00159. Since
then, Cumberland Valley has incurred increases in the cost of power, materials,
equipment, labor, taxes, and other fixed and variable costs.

b. The financial condition of Cumberland Valley has deteriorated significantly during

-the test year while it is not meeting its mortgage requirements.



6.

10.
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12.

c. Cumberland Valley had a Times Interest Earned Ratio (“TIER™) of 5.48X [a TIER of
0.56X excluding G&T capital credits], for the test year ending November 30, 2015
and Operating Times Interest Earned Ratio (“OTIER™) of 0.12. Cumberland Valley
is required under its mortgage agreement to maintain both a Net TIER of 1.25 and an
OTIER of 1.10, based on an average of two best out of the three most current years.

d. Cumberland Valley requests this rate adjustment in order to meet the terms of the
mortgage agreement and to maintain its financial stability and integrity.

The Board of Directors of Cumberland Valley at its meeting on March 17, 2016,
received the current financial condition of Cumberland Valley and the need for a rate
adjustment to maintain the financial stability and integrity of the Cooperative. The
Board of Directors adopted a motion directing the administrative staff and consultants
to proceed with the necessary application and filings with the Public Service
Commission to adjust the rates of Cumberland Valley. A copy of the motion is attached
as Exhibit F.

Cumberland Valley is neither a limited partnership nor a limited liability company [807
KAR 5:001, Section 14(3) and Section 14(4)]. Cumberland Valley is authorized to do
business in Kentucky.

Cumberland Valley files with this application a Certificate of Good Standing date
within 60 days of the date of this application and attached as Exhibit A. [807 KAR
5:001, Section 14(2)].

Cumberland Valley does not conduct business under an assumed name [807 KAR
5:001, Section 16(1)(b)2].

The proposed tariff is attached as Exhibit B in a form that complies with 807 KAR
5:011 with an effective date not less than 30 days from the date of this application [807
KAR 5:001, Section 16(1)(b)3].

. The proposed tariff changes, identified in compliance with 807 KAR 5:011, are shown

by providing the present and proposed tariffs in comparative form on the same sheet,
side by side, or on facing sheets, side by side, as Exhibit C [807 KAR 5:001, Section
16(1)(b)4a].

Cumberland Valley has given notice to its members of the filing of this application in
accordance with 807 KAR 5:001, Section 17. A copy of the notice is attached as
Exhibit D [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(1)(b)5]
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Cumberland Valley filed with the Commission a written notice of intent to file a rate
application at least 30 days prior to filing this application. The notice of intent stated
the rate application would be supported by a historical test period and was served upon
the Office of the Attorney General (“OAG™), Utility Intervention and Rate Division is
shown as Exhibit E [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(2) and 807 KAR 5:001, Section
16(2)(a) and Section 16(2)(c)].

A complete description and qualified explanation for all proposed adjustments with
proper support for any proposed changes in price or activity levels, and any other
factors which may affect the adjustment, including a Revenue Analysis shown as

Exhibit J. [807 KAR 5:001, Section (16)(4)(a)].

. The prepared testimony of each witness supporting the application are attached as

Exhibits H [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(b)].

A statement estimating the effect the new rates will have upon the revenues of
Cumberland Valley, including, at a minimum, the-total amount of revenues resulting
from the increase or decrease and the percentage of the increase or decrease is shown
by Exhibit G [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(d)].

The effect upon the average bill for each customer classification to which the proposed

rate change will apply is shown by Exhibits I [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(e)].

. An analysis of customers’ bills in such detail that revenues from present and proposed

rates can be readily determined for each customer class is shown by Exhibit J [807
KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(g)].

A summary of the Cooperative’s determination of its revenue requirements based on
return on net investment rate base, return on capitalization, interest coverage, debt
service coverage or operating ratio, with supporting schedules is shown by Exhibit K
[807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(h)].

A reconciliation of the rate base and capital used to determine its revenue requirements
is shown by Exhibit L [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(i)].

A current chart of accounts is shown by Exhibit M [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(j)].
The independent auditor’s report is attached as Exhibit N [807 KAR 5:001, Section
16(4)(K)].

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or Federal Communications Commission
have not audited Cumberland Valley and no audit reports exist [807 KAR 5:001,
Section 16(4)(1)].
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No Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1 exists for Cumberland Valley [807
KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(m)].

Cumberland Valley performed a depreciation study and is including the study in
Exhibit 22 [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(n)].

A list of commercially available or in-house developed computer software, programs,
and models used in the development of the schedules and work papers associated with
the filing of this application are attached as Exhibit O [807 KAR 5:001, Section

16(4)(0)].

No stock or bond offerings have been made by Cumberland Valley [807 KAR 5:001,
Section 16(4)(p)].

Annual Reports to members for 2015 and 2014 are attached as Exhibit P [807 KAR
5:001, Section 16(4)(q)].

The monthly managerial reports providing financial results of operations for the twelve
(12) months in the test period are attached as Exhibit Q [807 KAR 5:001, Section

16(4)(1)].

No Securities and Exchange Commission Annual Reports exist as to Cumberland
Valley because it is not regulated by that regulated body [807 KAR 5:001, Section

16(4)(s)]-

Cumberland Valley had no amounts charged or allocated to it by an affiliate or general
or home office and did not pay monies to an affiliate or general or home office during
the test period or during the previous three (3) calendar years [807 KAR 5:001, Section
16(4)(®)].

. A cost of service study based on a methodology generally accepted within the electric

industry and based on current and reliable data for the test period is attached as Exhibit
R [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(u)].

Cumberland Valley is not a Local Exchange Carrier or Company as set forth in 807
KAR 5:001, Section 16(4)(v)]. ’

A detailed income statement and balance sheet reflecting the impact of all proposed
adjustments is attached as Exhibit S [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(5)(a)].

No “proposed pro forma adjustments reflecting plant additions” exist or apply to
Cumberland Valley [807 KAR 5:001, Section 16(5)(b) and Section 16(5)(c)].

The operating budget for each month of the period encompassing the pro forma

adjustments is attached as Exhibit T [807 KAR 5:001, Section (16)(8)(d)].



37. Additional financial exhibits required by 807 KAR 5:001, Section 16, financial

information covering twelve (12) month historical test period ending November 30,

2015, and other information required to be filed is attached by exhibits, as follows:

Exhibit U
Exhibit V

Exhibit W

Exhibit X

Exhibit Y
Exhibit Z
Exhibit 1
Exhibit 2
Exhibit 3
Exhibit 4
Exhibit 5
Exhibit 6
Exhibit 7
Exhibit 8
Exhibit 9
Exhibit 10
Exhibit 11
Exhibit 12
Exhibit 13
Exhibit 14
Exhibit 15
Exhibit 16
Exhibit 17
Exhibit 18
Exhibit 19

By-Laws

Detailed comparative income statement, statement of cash flows and
balance sheet

Schedule showing monthly comparison of balance sheet accounts from test
year to preceding year.

Monthly comparison on income statement accounts from test year to
proceeding year

Trial Balance at end of test year

Capital structure

Adjustments for salaries and wages

Adjustments for payroll taxes

Adjustment for depreciation

Adjustment for long term and short term interest

Adjustment for Retirement and Security (R&S)

Adjustment for advertising

Adjustment for donations

Adjustment for professional fees

Adjustment for director expenses

Adjustment for miscellaneous expenses

Adjustment for rate case costs

Adjustment for G&T capital credits

Adjustment for purchase power

Adjustment for normalized revenue

Adjustment for end of year customers

KAEC Statistical Comparison

Capitalization policies and employee benefits

Equity Management Plan

Wage and Salary Survey



Exhibit 20 Non-recurring Charges Adjustment
Exhibit 21 Depreciation Study

WHEREFORE, CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC applies and requests approval of
the adjustment of rates as set forth in this application and issuance of an order approving and
authorizing the new rates at the earliest possible date.

Dated: June _ _, 2016. _
Cumberland Valley Electric

Ted Hampton, President/CEO\

\
Cumberland Valley Elect

I, Ted Hampton, President/CEQO, state that the statements contained in the foregoing
application are true to the best of my information and belief.

Ted Hampton, President/CEO §
Cumberland Valley Electric

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Ted Hampton as President/CEO of Cumberland
Valley Electric this ] ey day of June, 2016.

C‘fjé/m 100 9W.

Notafy Public, Kentucky State At f;arge

- -. i f‘)
My Commission Expires: 4 — / / - ;0
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
NINETH REVISED SHEET NO. 2
CANCELLING PSC KY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. EIGHTH REVISED SHEET NO. 2
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches - Schedule |
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all Residential, Schools and Churches.
TYPE OF SERVICE
Single phase at available voltages.
|
Customer Charge $14.10 Per month per customer E'i
ALL KWH $0.08642
(D)

MINUMUM CHARGE

1. The minimum charge under the above rate shall be $5.00 net where 5 KVA or less of transformer capacity
is required. Each customer who requires more than 5 KVA of transformer capacity shall pay, in addition to

the minimum, .75 on each additional KVA or fraction thereof required.

2. For seasonal load, water pumps, barns, camps, mobile homes, and similar type consumers, the customer
must pay no less than $60.00 annually and the Cooperative may bill such in advance.

SPECIAL RULES

Service under this schedule is limited to individual motors up to and including ten horsepower (10 H.P.)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Customer bill will be due by the fifteenth of each month.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Manth / Date / Year

ISSUED BY \fﬁ/ég Q/A;?Q/j:

President & Chief Ex%c)utive_ Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:




Exhibit B
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4
FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 3
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. CANCELLING PSCKY-NO. 4

ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 3

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches - Schedule |

FU™" *~"ISTME*™ ~* *USE

All rates are applicable to the Fuel Adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an amount
per KWH equal to the fuel adjustment amount per KWH as billed by the Wholesale Power Supplier plus an
allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed 10% and is based on a twelve-
month moving average of such losses. This Fuel Clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set
out in 807 KAR 5:056.

The monthly kilowatt hour usage shall be subject to plus or minus an adjustment per KWH determined in
accordance with the “Fuel Adjustment Clause.”

This tariff is subject to the Energy Emergency Control Program as filed with the Kentucky Energy
Regulatory Commission {now the Public Service Commission) on February 23, 1981 in Administrative Case
No. 240 and as approved by the Commission order of March 31, 1981.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Manth / Date / Year

ISSUED BY ﬂ@/é/@%

President & Chief Exec\mvéroffiﬁcer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC,

FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4

FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 4
CANCELLING PSC KY NO. 4
ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 4

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY Jj&g ﬁ«[fw%j’

President & Chief Exetdtive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED

Exhibit B
Page 3 of 14



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4

SEVENTH REVISED SHEET NO. 5
CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4
SIXTH REVISED SHEET NO. 5

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Small Commercial and Small Power - Schedule 1]
APPLICABLE
Entire Territory served.

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

Available to all commercial and small power service under 50 KW.
TYPE OF SERVICE
SINGLE PHASE

ENERGY CHARGE: Customer charge $15.00 per month per customer

First 3,000 KWH $0.09519
Over 3,000 KWH $0.08905

THREE PHASE WHERE AVAILABLE
DEMAND CHARGE: Per KW of billing demand $4.22
ENERGY CHARGE: Customer charge $25.00 per month per customer

First 3,000 KWH $0.09519
Over 3,000 KWH $0.08905

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the Consumer for any period of
15 consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a

demand meter.

MINIMUM CHARGE

The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be $5.00 where 5 KVA or less transformer
capacity is required. Each customer who requires more than 5 KVA of transformer capacity shall pay in
addition to the above minimum, .75 on each additional KVA or fraction thereof required.

DATE OF ISSUE __ June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

\ ) S
ISSUED vawd}zédao//m >

President & Chief Exéelltive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:

Exhibit B
Page 4 of 14
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
SEVENTH REVISED SHEET NO. 7
CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. SIXTH REVISED SHEET NO. 7
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
All Three Phase Schools and Churches - Schedule il
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all public or non-profit private schools and churches whose total energy requirement,
including but not limited to heating, air conditioning, lighting and water heating is supplied by electricity
furnished by the Cooperative.
CHARACTER OF SERVICE
The electric service furnished under this rate schedule will be 60 cycle, alternating current, three phase
service, present facilities permitting and at the following nominal voltages: Three phase, 120/240,
120/280Y, 240/480, 277/480Y volts.
RATE
Customer Charge $45.00 Per month per customer (1
All KWH $0.08040 ] (1)

MINIMUM CHARGE

The minimum annual charge will be not less than $0.75 per KVA of required transformer capacity as
determined by the Cooperative.

TERM OF CONTRACT

Service under this rate schedule will be furnished under an “Agreement for Purchase of Power”.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Yea

- < —
ISSUED BY (\fc/@( ;L/ (o570

President & Chief Exefutive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED




FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4

SEVENTH REVISED SHEET NO. 9
CANCELING PSCKY NO.4

SIXTH REVISED SHEET NO. 9

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Large Power — IndustrIaI Schedule IV
APPLICABLE

In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY

Available to all commercial and industrial consumers whose kilowatt demand shall exceed 2500 KW for
lighting and/or heating and/or power.

CONDITIONS

An “Agreement for Purchase of Power” shall be executed by the consumer for service under this
schedule.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

The electric service furnished under this Schedule will be 60 cycle alternating current and at available
nominal voltage.

RATE
Customer Charge: $100.00 Per customer per month
DEMAND CHARGE: Per KW of billing demand $6.55

ENERGY CHARGE:
All KWH $0.05112

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for a period of
fifteen consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a
demand meter and adjusted for power factor as provided below.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 201¢

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY Ji/& D-v/’ oo L0

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:

Exhibit B
Page 6 of 14
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
SEVENTH REVISED SHEET NO. 12
CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. SIXTH REVISED SHEET NO. 12
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
Large Power Rate — 50 KW to 2,500 KW. Schedule IV-A
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILLITY
Available to all commercial and industrial consumers whose kilowatt demand shall exceed 50 KW for
lighting and/or heating and/or power up to 2,500 KW.
CONDITIONS
An “Agreement for Purchase of Power” shall be executed by the consumer for service under this
Schedule.
CHARACTER OF SERVICE
The electric service furnished under this schedule will be 60 cycle alternating current and at available
nominal voltage.
RATE
Customer Charge: $65.00 Per month per customer ()
DEMAND CHARGE: Per KW of billing demand $4.22
ENERGY CHARGE:
All KWH © $0.06078

DETERMIN "™ "N OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for a period of
fifteen consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a
demand meter and adjusted for power factor as provided below.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016 _

onth / Date / Year

President & Chief EXécutive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4

NINETH REVISED SHEET NO. 23
CANCELLING PSC KY NO. 4
EIGHTH REVISED SHEET NO. 23

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Outdoor Lighting — Security Lights Schedule Vi

AVAILABILITY

Available to all consumers of the Cooperative for dusk to dawn ocutdoor lighting in close proximity to

existing overhead secondary circuits.

RATE PER LIGHT PER MONTH

Mercury Vapor Lamps

1) 175 watt
2) 400 Watt

Other Lamps

3) 100 Watt OPEN BOTTOM

APPROX. LUMENS 7,000
APPROX. LUMENS 22,000

APPROX. LUMENS 9,500

4) 100 Watt COLONIAL POST APPROX. LUMENS 9,500

5) 100 Watt DIRECTIONAL FLOOD APPROX. LUMENS 9,500

6) 400 Watt DIRECTIONAL FLOOD APPROX. LUMENS 50,000

7) 400 Watt COBRA HEAD APPROX. LUMENS 50,000
LED Lig-**--

8) OPEN BOTTOM APPROX. LUMENS 6,200

9) COBRA HEAD APPROX. LUMENS 13,650

10) DIRECTIONAL

APPROX. LUMENS 18,800

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

$9.42 Per Lamp Per Month
$13.90 Per Lamp Per Month

$ 9.44 Per Lamp Per Month

$ 10.61 Per Lamp Per Month
$11.40 Per Lamp Per Month
$17.98 Per Lamp Per Month
$17.98 Per Lamp Per Month

$9.15 Per Lamp Per Month
$15.43 Per Lamp Per Month
$18.89 Per Lamp Per Month

1. The Cooperative shall furnish, install, operate and maintain the outdoor lighting equipment including

lamp, luminaire, bracket attachment and control device on an existing secondary pole.

2. The lighting equipment shall remain the property of the Cooperative. The Consumer shall protect the

lighting equipment from deliberate damage.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BYf\_QQ W: ‘E/?j;

President & ChietExecutive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:

Exhibit B
Page 8 of 14
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 2.1
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE (N)
Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches - Schedule | Time of Day (TOD)
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all Residential, Schools and Churches eligible for Schedule I. Consumers must remain on this rate
schedule for one (1) year.
TYPE OF SERVICE
Single phase at available voltages.
Customer Charge $20.00 Per month per customer
ENERGY CHARGE:
On-Peak Per kWh $0.10161
Off-Peak Per kWh $0.06000
Months On Peak Hours-EPT Off Peak Hours-EPT
October through April 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon 12:00 noon to 5:00 p.m.
5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.
May through September 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 10:00 p.m. to 10:00 a.m.
MINIMUM CHARGE
3. The minimum charge under the above rate shall be the current customer charge listed above.
For seasonal load, water pumps, barns, camps, mobile homes, and similar type consumers, the customer
must pay no less than twelve (12) times the monthly customer charge. Cooperative may bill such in
advance.
SPECIAL RULES
Service under this schedule is limited to individual motors up to and including ten horsepower (10 H.P.) A4

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY ff/&ﬂl@—)

'S
President & Chief Ex&utive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKYNO. 4
ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 2.2

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

(N)
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches - Schedule | Time of Day {TOD)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Customer bill will be due by the due date printed on each monthly bill.

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

All rates are applicable to the Fuel Adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an amount
per KWH equal to the fuel adjustment amount per KWH as billed by the Wholesale Power Supplier plus an
allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed 10% and is based on a twelve-
month moving average of such losses. This Fuel Clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set
outin 807 KAR 5:056.

The monthly kilowatt hour usage shall be subject to plus or minus an adjustment per KWH determined in
accordance with the “Fuel Adjustment Clause.”

This tariff is subject to the Energy Emergency Control Program as filed with the Kentucky Energy
Regulatory Commission {now the Public Service Commission) on February 23, 1981 in Administrative Case
No. 240 and as approved by the Commission order of March 31, 1981.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016 _

Month/ Date / Year

ISSUED BY j &ﬁ[&%)

President & Chief E}écutive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKYNO. 4
ORIGINALSHEE™ 0.2.3

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Inclining Block Rate- Schedule VII

APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.

AVAILABILITY
Available to all Single Phase Residential, Schools, Churches and Single Phase Small Commercial.

TYPE OF SERVICE
Single phase at available voltages.

Customer Charge: $9.90
Energy Charge:
Block Energy Charge
First 200 per kWh .08842
Next 300 per kWh .09342
Over 500 per kWh .09842

MINIMUM CHARGE

5.  The minimum charge under the above rate shall be the current customer charge listed above.

6. Forseasonal load, water pumps, barns, camps, mobile homes, and similar type consumers, the customer
must pay no less than twelve (12) times the monthly customer charge. Cooperative may bill such in
advance.

SPECIAL RULES

Service under this schedule is limited to individual motors up to and including ten horsepower (10 H.P.)

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016

Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY . te i o

President & Chief‘Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4
ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 2.4

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Inclining Block Rate- Schedule VI

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Customer bill will be due by the due date printed on each monthly bill.

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

All rates are applicable to the Fuel Adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an amount
per KWH equal to the fuel adjustment amount per KWH as billed by the Wholesale Power Supplier plus an
allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed 10% and is based on a twelve-

month moving average of such losses. This Fuel Clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set
out in 807 KAR 5:056.

The monthly kilowatt hour usage shall be subject to plus or minus an adjustment per KWH determined in
accordance with the “Fuel Adjustment Clause.”

This tariff is subject to the Energy Emergency Control Program as filed with the Kentucky Energy
Regulatory Commission {now the Public Service Commission) on February 23, 1981 in Administrative Case
No. 240 and as approved by the Commission order of March 31, 1981.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY j—é& QLL‘Q%:;

President & Chiéf)Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:




FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4

FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 32
CANCELLING PSCKY NO. 4

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 32

21.

BILLING

Members will receive statement for electric service monthly on a date to be determined by the Board of
Directors for service rendered for a thirty-day period ending the same day of the preceding month. All
statements are due and payable upon receipt and shall be paid at the office or the Cooperative within fifteen
(15) days from date of bill. Failure to receive electrical statement will not release the member from payment
obligation. Should the statement not be paid as above, the Cooperative may, after ten (10) days written
notice, discontinue service to that member provided such service shall not be discontinued before twenty-
seven (27) days after the mailing date of the original bill. Should it become necessary for the Cooperative’s
representative to call at the Consumer’s premises or other locations for the purpose of collecting a
delinquent account or to disconnect for non-payment, a charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) will be made
to the member account for the extra'service rendered due and payable at time such delinquent account is
collected. If service is disconnected for non-payment, an additional charge of twenty-five dollars {$25.00) will
be made for reconnecting service due and payable at the time of such reconnection.

In some instances, solely at the discretion of Cumberland Valley Electric, a remote disconnect switch will be

installed. If service is disconnected for non-payment with the switch, a fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) will

be applied tc 1e member’s account for the extra service rendered, due and payable at the time such
delinquent account is collected. An additional fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) will be added for
reconnecting the service with the remote switch. If, prior to discontinuance of service, there is delivered to
Cumberland Valley Electric or its employees empowered to discontinue service a written certificate signed by
a physician, a registered nurse, or a public health officer that in the opinion of their certifier, discontinuance
of service will aggravate an existing iliness or infirmity on the premises, service shall not be discontinued until
the affected member can make arrangements or until thirty (30) days elapse from the time of the
Cooperative's notification to the member, in writing, of the existence of local, state and federal programs
providing for the payment of utility bills under certain conditions and of the offices to contact for such
possible assistance as per 807 KAR 5:006 Section 15.

22, BUDGET PAYMENT PLAN
The Cooperative has a budget payment plan available for its residential customers whereby a customer may
elect to pay a monthly amount for the budget year in lieu of monthly or bimonthly billings for actual usage.
The monthly budget payment will be determined by the Cooperative based, under normal circumstances, on a
minimum of one-twelfth of the estimated annual usage, subject to review and adjustment during the budget
year.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016

Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY wafﬁ(%@
xecutive Officer

President & Chie

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSCKY NO. 4

FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 33

CANCELLING PSCKY NO. 4

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 33

22. BUDGET PAYMENT PLAN CONT'D
The normal budget year is the twelve (12) months determined as shown below:

Customer Budget Year Settlement Month
All Residential Customers May-June June

The customer’s account may be adjusted through a series of levelized adjustments on a monthly basis if usage
indicates that the account will not be current upon payment of the last budget amount.

If customer fails to pay bills as rendered under the budget payment plan, the company reserves the right to revoke
the plan, restore the customer to regular billing and require immediate payment of any deficiency.

Failure to receive a bill in no way exempts customer from the provision of these terms and conditions.

When the Cooperative is unable to read a meter after reasonable effort, the customer will be billed at the average
of the three immediately preceding monthly or bimonthly bills and the billing adjusted when the meter is read.

Fuel clause adjustments (+-) are in addition to the minimum.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / Year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY CZQ JM%

President & Chie?gExecutive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:

Exhibit B
Page 14 of 14
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
NINET! REVISED SHEET NO. 2
CANCELLING PSC KY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. EIGHTE .EVISED SHEET NO. 2
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches- Schedule |
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all Residential, Schools and Churches.
TYPE OF SERVICE
Single phase at available voltages.
|
Customer Charge LO per month per customer E';
ALL KWH 0.08642

(1)

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date 7 vear
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date/ vear

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORNFR OF THF PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSC KY NN 4

FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. :
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

MINUMUM CHARGE

1. The minimum charge under the above rate shall be $5.00 net where 5 KVA or less of transformer capacity
is required. Each customer who requires more than 5 KVA of transformer capacity shall pay, in addition to
the minimum, .75 on each additional KVA or fraction thereof required.

2. For seasonal load, water pumps, barns, camps, mobile homes, and similar type consumers, the customer
must pay no less than $60.00 annually and the Cooperative may bill such in advance.

SPECIAL RULES

Service under this schedule is limited to individual motors up to and including ten horsepower (10 H.P.)

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Customer bill will be due by the fifteenth of each month.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Daie s rear
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 201

Month / vate s vear

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDFR OF THE PUBLIC SERVICF COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. ___DATED_
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKYNO 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. HRSTFREVISED SHEET-NO-

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Rates for Residential, Schools and Churches- Schedule |

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

All rates are applicable to the Fuel Adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an amount
per KWH equal to the fuel adjustment amount per KWH as billed by the Wholesale Power Supplier plus an
allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed 10% and is based on a twelve-

month moving average of such losses. This Fuel Clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set
out in 807 KAR 5:056.

The monthly kilowatt hour usage shall be subject to plus or minus an adjustment per KWH determined in
accordance with the “Fuel Adjustment Clause.”

This tariff is subject to the Energy Emergency Control Program as filed with the Kentucky Energy
Regulatory Commission (now the Public Service Commission) on February 23, 1981 in Administrative Case
No. 240 and as approved by the Commission order of March 31, 1981.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Dawe 7 vear
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Dawe s rear

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. __ DATED_



FOR ALL AREAS SERVED

PSC KY NO. 4

SEVENTH \EVISED SHEET NO. 5

CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. SIXTt {EVISED SHEET NO. 5

" *SIFICATION OF SERVICE

Small Commercial and Small Power- Schedule Il
APPLICABLE
Entire Territory served.

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

Available to all commercial and small power service under 50 KW.
TYPE OF SERVICE

SINGLE PHASE

ENERGY CHARGE: Customer chargt 515.00 per month per customer
First 3,000 KWH <nnag1q
Over 3,000 KWH ,0.08905

THREE PHASE WHERE AVAILABLE

DEMAND CHARGE: Per KW of billine demand $4.22

ENERGY CHARGE: Customer chargi 25.00 per month per customer
First 3,000 KWH $0.09519
Over 3,000 KWH 0.08905

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the Consumer for any period of
15 consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a
demand meter.

MINIMUM CHARGE

The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be $5.00 where 5 KVA or less transformer
capacity is required. Each customer who requires more than 5 KVA of transformer capacity shall pay in
addition to the above minimum, .75 on each additional KVA or fraction thereof required.

DATE OF ISSUE == 2016
Month / Date 7 vear
DATE EFFECTIVE 'uly 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:_

Exhibit C
Page 4 of 10
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(1)
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSC KY NO. 4
SEVENTF \EVISED SHEET NO. 7
CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. SIXTH REVISED SHEET NO. 7
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
All Three Phase Schools and Churches- Schedule IlI
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all public or non-profit private schools and churches whose total energy requirement,
including but not limited to heating, air conditioning, lighting and water heating is supplied by electricity
furnished by the Cooperative.
CHARACTER OF SERVICE
The electric service furnished under this rate schedule will be 60 cycle, alternating current, three phase
service, present facilities permitting and at the following nominal voltages: Three phase, 120/240,
120/280Y, 240/480, 277/480Y volts.
RATE
Customer Charge 45.00 per month per customer (1)
All KWH 50.08040 (1)

MINIMUM CHARGE

The minimum annual charge will be not less than $0.75 per KVA of required transformer capacity as
determined by the Cooperative.

TERM OF CONTRACT

Service under this rate schedule will be furnished under an “Agreement for Purchase of Power”.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 201¢
Month / Date s vear
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date ;7 vear

ISSUED BY_

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDFR OF THF PIIBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO._ DATED__
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
SEVENTL LEVISED SHEET NO. 9
CANCELING PSC KY NO.4
SIXTH ‘EVISED SHEET NO. 9
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
Large Power — Industrial Schedule 1V
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILITY
Available to all commercial and industrial consumers whose kilowatt demand shall exceed 2500 KW for
lighting and/or heating and/or power.
CONDITIONS
An “Agreement for Purchase of Power” shall be executed by the consumer for service under this
schedule.
CHARACTER OF SERVICE
The electric service furnished under this Schedule will be 60 cycle alternating current and at available
nominal voltage.
RATE
Customer Charge 100.00 Per customer per month (1)
DEMAND CHARGE: Per KW of billing demand $6.55
ENERGY CHARGE:
All KWH $0.05112

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for a period of
fifteen consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a
demand meter and adjusted for power factor as provided below.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date ; vear
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4
SEVENT! REVISED SHEET NO. 12
CANCELING PSCKY NO. 4
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. SIXTtH REVISED SHEET NO. 12
CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE
Large Power Rate ~ 50 KW to 2,500 KW. Schedule IV-A
APPLICABLE
In all territory served by the Seller.
AVAILABILLITY
Available to all commercial and industrial consumers whose kilowatt demand shall exceed 50 KW for
lighting and/or heating and/or power up to 2,500 KW.
gf\llf\l'!"lf\llf~
An “Agreement for Purchase of Power” shall be executed by the consumer for service under this
Schedule.
CHARACTER OF SERVICE
The electric service furnished under this schedule will be 60 cycle alternating current and at available
nominal voltage.
RATE
Customer Charge 165.00 Per month per customer ()
DEMAND CHARGE: Per Kw of billing demand $4.22
ENERGY CHARGE:
All KWH $0.06078

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum kilowatt demand established by the consumer for a period of
fifteen consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a
demand meter and adjusted for power factor as provided below.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date / 1ea:
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date / year

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. ___DATED



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

NINETH

EIGHTt

FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKY NO. 4

EVISED SHEET NO. 23
CANCELLING PSCKY NO. 4
EVISED SHEET NO. 23

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE

Outdoor Lighting — Security Lights Schedule VI

AVAILABILITY

1)
2)

3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

8)
9)

Available to all consumers of the Cooperative for dusk to dawn outdoor lighting in close proximity to

existing overhead secondary circuits.

Mercury Vapor Lamps

175 Watt
400 Watt

Other Lamps

100 Watt OPEN BOTTOM

100 Watt COLONIAL POST

100 Watt DIRECTIONAL FLOOD
400 Watt DIRECTIONAL FLOOD
400 Watt COBRA HEAD

LED Lighting

OPEN BOTTOM
COBRA HEAD

10) DIRECTIONAL

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

APPROX. LUMENS 7,000

APPROX. LUMENS 22,000

APPROX. LUMENS 9,500
APPROX. LUMENS 9,500
APPROX. LUMENS 9,500
APPROX. LUMENS 50,000
APPROX. LUMENS 50,000

APPROX. LUMENS 6,200
APPROX. LUMENS 13,650
APPROX. LUMENS 18,800

3.42 Per Lamp Per Month
13.90 Per Lamp Per Month

9.44 Per Lamp Per Month

10.61 Per Lamp Per Month
11.40 Per Lamp Per Month
17.98 Per Lamp Per Month
17.98 Per Lamp Per Month

59.15 Per Lamp Per Month
15.43 Per Lamp Per Month
18.89 Per Lamp Per Month

1. The Cooperative shall furnish, install, operate and maintain the outdoor lighting equipment including
lamp, luminaire, bracket attachment and control device on an existing secondary pole.

2. The lighting equipment shall remain the property of the Cooperative. The Consumer shall protect the
lighting equipment from deliberate damage.

DATE OF ISSUE

DATE EFFECTIVE

June 6, 2016

Month / Date / Year

July 8, 2016

Month / Date / Year

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

IN CASE NO.

DATED:

Exhibit C
Page 8 of 10
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKYNO. 4
FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 3.

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

21.

BILLING
Members will receive statement for electric service monthly on a date to be determined by the Board of

Directors for service rendered for a thirty-day period ending the same day of the preceding month. Al
statements are due and payable upon receipt and shall be paid at the office or the Cooperative within fifteen
(15) days from date of bill. Failure to receive electrical statement will not release the member from payment
obligation. Should the statement not be paid as above, the Cooperative may, after ten (10) days written
notice, discontinue service to that member provided such service shall not be discontinued before twenty-
seven (27) days after the mailing date of the original bill. Should it become necessary for the Cooperative’s
representative to call at the Consumer’s premises or other locations for the purpose of collecting a
delinquent account or to disconnect for non-payment, a charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) will be made
to the member account for the extra service rendered due and payable at time such delinquent account is
collected. If service is disconnected for non-payment, an additional charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) will
be made for reconnecting service due and payable at the time of such reconnection.

In some instances, solely at the discretion of Cumberland Valiey Electric, a remote disconnect switch will be

installed. If service is disconnected for non-payment with the switch, a fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) (1
vill be applied to the member’s account for the extra service rendered, due and

pavable at the time such delinquent account is collected. An additional fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) n
vill be added for reconnecting the service with the remote switch. If, prior to

discontinuance of service, there is delivered to Cumberland Valley Electric or its employees empowered to

discontinue service a written certificate signed by a physician, a registered nurse, or a public health officer

that in the opinion of their certifier, discontinuance of service will aggravate an existing illness or infirmity on

the premises, service shall not be discontinued until the affected member can make arrangements or until

thirty (30) days elapse from the time of the Cooperative’s notification to the member, in writing, of the

existence of local, state and federal programs providing for the payment of utility bills under certain

conditions and of the offices to contact for such possible assistance as per 807 KAR 5:006 Section 15.

22. BUDGET PAYMENT PLAN

The Cooperative has a budget payment plan available for its residential customers whereby a customer may
elect to pay a monthly amount for the budget year in lieu of monthly or bimonthly billings for actual usage.
The monthly budget payment will be determined by the Cooperative based, under normal circumstances, on a
minimum of one-twelfth of the estimated annual usage, subject to review and adjustment during the budget
year.

DATE OF ISSUE lune 6, 201

Month / Date s vear

DATE EFFECTIVE luly 8, 2016

Month / Date ; vear

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO.__ DATED:___
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FOR ALL AREAS SERVED
PSCKYNO 4
FIRST REVISED SHEET NO. 3:
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.
22. BUDGET PAYMENT PLAN CONT’D
The normal budget year is the twelve {12) months determined as shown below:
Customer Budget Year Settlement Month
All Residential Customers May-June June

The customer’s account may be adjusted through a series of levelized adjustments on a monthly basis if usage
indicates that the account will not be current upon payment of the last budget amount.

If customer fails to pay bills as rendered under the budget payment plan, the company reserves the right to revoke
the plan, restore the customer to regular billing and require immediate payment of any deficiency.

Failure to receive a bill in no way exempts customer from the provision of these terms and conditions.

When the Cooperative is unable to read a meter after reasonable effort, the customer will be billed at the average
of the three immediately preceding monthly or bimonthly bills and the billing adjusted when the meter is read.

Fuel clause adjustments (+-) are in addition to the minimum.

DATE OF ISSUE June 6, 2016
Month / Date 7 year
DATE EFFECTIVE July 8, 2016

Month / Date ; vear

ISSUED BY

President & Chief Executive Officer

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
IN CASE NO. DATED:
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[aY /DS PiS I N DU L SN

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc., with its principal office at Gray,
Kentucky and with its address at 6219 North U.S.Highway 25E, Gray, Kentucky 40734,
intends to file with the Kentucky Public Service Commission in Case No. 2016-00169
an application to adjust its retail rates and charges. This adjustment will result in a
general rate increase to the member-consumers of Cumberiand Valley Electric.
The proposed effective date of these new rates are July 8, 2016 and these rates
are to be filed with the Commission on June 6, 2016.

The present and proposed rates for each Customer Classification are provided below:

Rates
Present Proposed
Schedule | - Residential, Schools and Churches :
Customer Charge $ 873 % 14.10
Energy Charge per kWh $ 0.08563 $ 0.08642
Marketing Rate - All kWh $ 0.05138 Rate Discontinued
Cumberland Valley is proposing that the Schedule [ - Marketing Rate be
discontinued and replaced by a TOD rate.
Schedule 1l - Small Commercial and Small Power Service
Single Phase
Customer Charge $ 896 $ 15.00
First 3,000 kWh per kWh $ 009519 $ 0.09519
Over 3,000 kWh per kWh $ 0.08880 $ 0.08905
Scheduie Il -Small Commercial and Small Power Service
Three Phase
Customer Charge $ 896 $ 25.00
First 3,000 kWh per kWh $ 009519 § 0.09519
Over 3,000 kWh per kWh $ 0.08880 3 0.08905
Demand Charge per kW $ 422 §$ 4.22
Schedule [} - Three Phase Schools and Churches
Customer Charge $ 25.00 $ 45.00
Energy Charge per kWh $ 007915 § 0.08040
Schedule |V - Large Power Industrial
Customer Charge $ 5000 $ 100.00
Energy Charge per kwWh $ 0.05112 3 0.05112
Demand Charge per kW $ 6.55000 $ . 6.55000
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 50 kW -2500 kW
Customer-Charge $ 4000 $ 65.00
Energy Charge per kWh $ 0.06078 $ 0.06078
Demand Charge per kW $ 422 $ 4.22
Schedule VI - Outdoor Lights and Security Lights
175W MV $ 857 § 942
400W MV $ 1276 $ 13.90
100W Open Bottom $ 859 % 9.44
100W Colonial Post $ 968 $ 10.61
100W Direct. Flood $ 1042 $ 11.40
400W Direct. Fiood $ 1657 § 17.98
400W Cobra Head $ 16.57 $ 17.98
LED Open Bottom $ 832 $ 9.15
LED Cobra Head $ 1419 §$ 15.43
LED Directional $ 1742 $ 18.89
Schedule | - Prepaid Service
Customer Charge $ 873 % 14.10
Energy Charge per kWh $ 0.08563 3 0.08642
Prepaid Fee $ 300 $ 3.00
Nonrecurring Charges
Remote Disconnect Charge $ 2000 $ 25.00
Off-Peak Energy Charge per kWh $ 0.05138 $ 0.06000
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The amount of the change requested in dollar amounts and percentage change for each

customer classification is presented below: Increase
Dollar Percent

Schedule | - Residential, Schools and Churches $ 1,646,800 5.87%
Schedule 1l -Small Commercial and Small Power Service 97,406 6.49%
Schedule [l -Small Commercial and Small Power Service 3PH 27,657 3.20%
Schedule |l - Three Phase Schools and Churches 31,374 2.47%
Schedule 1V - Large Power Industrial 750 0.07%
Schedule [V-A - Large Power Rate 50 kW -2500 kW 24,600 0.36%
Schedule VI - Outdoor Lights and Security Lights 128,675 9.43%
Schedule | - Prepaid Service 11,283 6.63%
Schedule | - Marketing Rate/Replaced by TOD Rate 6,358 21.76%
Nonrecurring Charge - Remote Disconnect 22,450 20.00%

The amount of the average usage and the effect upon the average bill for each customer
classification is provided below Increase

Dollar Percent
Schedule | - Residential, Schools and Churches $ 6.28 5.87%
Schedule Il -Small Commercial and Small Power Service $ 6.10 6.49%
Schedule 1l -Small Commercial and Small Power Service $ 16.72 3.20%
Schedule Il - Three Phase Schools and Churches $ 54.37 2.47%
Schedule iV - Large Power Industrial $ 50.00 0.07%
Schedule V-A - Large Power Rate 50 kW -2500 kW $ 25.00 0.36%
Schedule VI - Outdoor Lights and Security Lights $ 0.97 9.43%
Schedule | - Prepaid Service $ 6.11 6.63%
Schedule | - Marketing Rate $ 10.63 21.76%
Nonrecurring Charge - Remote Disconnect $ 5.00 20.00%
New Rates Classes Proposed
Rates

Residential Time of Day (TOD) Rate Present Propused

Customer Charge $ 20.00

On-Peak Energy Charge per kWh ) 0.10161

Off-Peak Energy Charge per kWh 0.06000
Inclining Block Rate

Customer Charge $ 9.90

First 200 kWh 0.08842

Next 300 0.09342

Over 500 0.09842

A person may examine this application at the offices of Cumberland Valley Electric iocated

at 6219 North U.S. Highway 25E, Gray, KY. A person may examine the application at commission's
offices located at 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort, KY, Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to

4:00 p.m., through the commission's Web site at http:/psc.ky.gov.

Comments regarding this application may be submitted to the Kentucky Public Service
Commission through its Web site or by mail to the Public Service Commission, Post Office
Box 615, Frankfort, KY 40602.

The rates proposed in this application are the rates proposed by Cumberland Valiey
Electric. However, the Kentucky Public Service Commission may

order rates to be charged that differ from these proposed rates. Such action may
result in rates for consumers other than the rates in this application.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the Public Service
Commission, Post Office Box 615, Frankfort, KY 40602, establishing the grounds

for the request including the status and interest of the party. If the Commission does

not receive a written request for intervention within thirty (30) days of initial

publication or mailing of the notice, the Commission may take final action on the application.
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! 1y3,2016

Kentucky Public Service Commission
211 Sower Boulevard

P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, Ke: 1cky 40602-0615

Dear Executive Director:

This is to advise, in accordance with the Commission’s Administrative Regulation 807
KAR 5:001, Section 16(2), that, after 30 days from May 3, 2016 Cumberland Valley
Electric, Inc. intends to e an application for an increase in its retail rates based on a
historical test year ending November 30, 2015.

If there are any questions concerning this matter, please contact me at your convenience.

Respectf y submitted,

%@‘M" {©eluser.
Robert T' iver
Office Manager

Copy to:

Attorney General

Utility Intervention and Rate Division
1024 C ital Center Drive

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

MAIN OFFICE:
P.O. Box 440 * Gray, KY 40734
Phone: 606-528-2677 G Fax: 606-523-2698

UIDIKICT UFFICE:
P.O. Box C < Cumberland, KY 40823
Phone:606-589-4421 ¢ Fax: 606-589-5297
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NOTICE OF ELECTION OF USE OF ELECTRONIC FILING PROCEDURES
(Complete All Shaded Areas and Check Applicabie Boxes)

In accordance with 807 KAR5:001, Section 8, Cumberland Valley Electric. Inc. gives notice of its
intent to file an application for General Rate Increase with the Public Service Commission
no laterthan June 6. 2016 and to use the electronic filing procedures set forth in that regulation.

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc. further states that:

Yes No
1. It requests that the Public Service Commission assigna case number to the intended [} []
application and adviseit of that number as soon as possible;

2. |t orits authorized representatives have registered with the Public Service Commission and [ [}
are authorized to make electronic filings with the Public Service Commission;

3. Neither it nor its authorized representatives have registered with the Public Service [ [Y
Commission for authorization to make electronic filings but will do so no later than seven
days before the date of its filing of its application for rate adjustment;

4. ltorits authorized agents possess the facilities to receive electronic transmissions; X [

5. The following persons are authorized to make filings on its behalf and to receive electronic

service of Public Service Commission orders and any pleadings filed by any party or the
Public Service Commission Staff:

Name tlectronic Mail Auaress
Robert Tolliver PSC@cumberlandvalley.coop
Barbara Elliott Barbara.Elliott@cumberlandvalley.coop
Jim Adkins : Jimadkins25@aol.com

6. It and its authorized representatives listed above have read and understand the procedures [ []
for electronic filing set forth in 807 KAR5:001 and will fully comply with those procedures
unless the Public Service Commission directs otherwise. ‘

Siqned—QMM /E%‘W

Name: Robert Tolliver

Title: Office Manager
Address: P.O. Box 440

Gray, Kentucky 40734
Telephone Number:  606-528-2677
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Daniel E. Logsdon Jr.
Vice Chairman

Matthew G. Bevin
Governor

Charles G. Snavely Commonweaith of Kentucky Robert Cicero

Secretary : : feci Commissioner
Energy and Environment Cabinet Public Sze1:VSIce C;n;mnssnon
ower Blvd,
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort Kentucky 40602-0615
Telephone: (502) 564-3940
Fax: (502) 564-3460
psc.ky.gov

May 05, 2016

PARTIES OF RECORD

RE: Case No. 2016-00169

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc.
(General Rates)

This letter is to acknowledge receipt of notice of election of use of electronic filing procedures
to file an application in the above case. The notice was date-stamped received May 05, 2016,
and has been assigned Case No. 2016-00169. In all future correspondence or filings in
connection with this case, please reference the above case number.

All documents submitted to the Commission in this proceeding must comply with the rules of
procedure adopted by the Commission found in 807 KAR 5:001. Any deviation from these rules
must be submitted in writing to the Commission for consideration Additionally, confidential
treatment of any material submitted must follow the requirements found in 807 KAR 5:001 (13).

Materials submitted to the Commission which do not comply with the rules of procedure, or
that do not have an approved deviation, are subject to rejection by Commission pursuant to 807
KAR 5:001 (3). In order to insure cases are processed in a timely manner and accurate reliable
records are created, please make sure that the rules of procedure are followed. Should you
have any questions, please contact inda Faulkner in the Division of Filings at 502-564-3940.

Sincerely,
” . 4
[T A ] 1

Aaron Greenwell
Acting Executive Director

\

AG/rs L
. v—/x Sy
KentudeyUnbridled Spirit.com l(f}’lmd(j)l‘ An Equal Opporunity Employer MIF/D
R -

LVARLED B
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Cumberiand Valley Electric, Inc.
Highway 25E

P. 0. Box 440

Gray, KY 40734

*James R Adkins

Jim Adkins Consulting

1041 Chasewood Way

Lexington, KENTUCKY 40513-1731

*Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc.
Highway 25E

P. 0. Box 440

Gray, KY 40734

*Robert Tolliver

Officer Manager

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc.
Highway 25E

P. O. Box 440

Gray, KY 40734

*Denotes Served by Email Service List for Case 2016-00169
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CUMBERLAND VAI EY ELECT °C
BOARD I SOLUTION

AUTHORIZAT DN TO THE PRESIDENT & CEO TO FILE FOR
A RATE INCREASE WITH THE
veNTOOKY  BLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

WHEER AS, to provide its members with a reliable source of power it is the opinion of the Board ’
of Directors of Cumberland Valley Electric that a rate increase is necessary to maintain Cumberland
Valley Electric in a sound financial condition, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Cumberland Valley Electric hereby authorizes and directs
its President & CEO, Ted Hampton, to file with the Kentucky Public Service Commission for a rate
increase in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00,

NOW, T IREFORE BEIT RESC VED, that this resolution was properly authorized by the
Board of Directors during a monthly Board of Directors meeting held on March 17, 2016. a

S

Vemnon Shelly
ATTEST:

Certificate of Secretary
I, Lansford Lay, secretary for Cumberland Valley Electric, do hereby certify that the above is a

true and correct copy of the resolution, as adopted by the Board of Directors of the Cooperative, at their
meeting on March 17, 2016, and that said resolution now appears in the record of the Cooperative’s

minutes without changes or alterations.
Lansford Lay / / © / /




1 Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit G
2 Case No. 2016-00169 page 1 of 1
3 Revenue Analysis Witness: Jim Adkins
4 November 30, 2015

: Percent Normalized Percent Percent

7 Rate Kwh Test Year of Case No. of Proposed of Increase

8 Schedule Useage Revenue Total 2014-00159 Total Revenue Total Amount Percent
o

11 | - Residential, Schools and Churches 300,860,320 $27,951,430 68%  $28,053,474 68% $29,700,273 69% $1,646,800 5.87%
12 | - Prepaid Service 1,734,061 $169,299 0% $170,141 0% $181,424 0% 11,283 6.63%
13 | - Marketing Rate 737,631 37,815 0% 37,899 0% 44,258 0% 6,358 16.78%
14 Il -.Small Power, Single Phase 14,488,863 1,493,911 4% 1,500,641 4% 1,598,048 4% 97,406 6.49%
15 Il - Small Power, Three Phase 7,393,144 836,668 2% 837,356 2% 865,012 2% 27,657 3.30%
16 Il - Three Phase Schools and Churches 15,867,403 1,269,444 3% 1,270,330 3% 1,301,704 3% 31,3714 2.47%
17 IV - Large Power, Industrial 16,450,200 1,139,142 3% 1,143,449 3% 1,144,199 3% 750 0.07%
18 IV-A - Large Power Rate 90,899,192 6,806,614 17% 6,811,729 17% 6,836,329 16% 24600 0.36%
19 S & T - Outdoor Lighting Service 11,317,722 1,333,495 3% 1,364,320 3% 1,492,982 3% 128,662 9.43%
20 Envirowatts 27,600 780 0% 780 0% 780 0% - 0.00%
21 Rounding differences 0 0

22

23 Total from base rates 459,776,136 41,038,598 100% $41,190,120 100% $43,165,010 100% $1,974,890 5%

24

25 Fuel adjustment billed (1,665,196)

26 Environmental surcharge billed ‘ 4,646,101

27 $44,019,503

28 Increase $151,522 $1.974,890

29
30
31
32
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CUI 3ERLAND VALLEY RIC
APPLICATI VFORAN ( EASEINE IC UTILITY RATES
CASE NO. 2016-00169

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF ROBERT D. TOLLIV R

¢ 1te yc r name, job title and business address.

| am Robert D. Tolliver, Office Manager for Cumberland Valley Electric

(“Cumberland Valley”),6219 North U.S. Highway 25E, Gray, KY 40734.

How long have you been em} »yed by Cumberlan Valley and what are

your e« onsibilities?

| have been employed by Cumberland Valley for twenty-six years. | am
responsible for Finance and Administration, Human Resources and the

Information Technology activities for Cumberland Ve :y.
What is your educational ackground?

| have a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of
the Cumberlan ; and several hours toward an MBA from Morehead State

University.
What has been your role in the preparation of this Application?

| have provided guidance and direction to the rate consultant in the develo| 1ent
of the cost of service study and rate design in this application. | have also

directed, supervised and reviewed the preparation of the rate application.
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What is the main reason ehind Cun__erland Valley’s req st for an

increase in rates?

1e main reason for this request for an increase in rates is that Cumberland
Valley has not met its mortgage requirements with the Rural Utilities Service
(“RUS”). Cumberland Valley's operating TIER has been below 1.1 for the years
2012 through 2015. Cumberland Valley’s financial situation continues to
deteriorate today as evident by the Statement of Operations presented in Exhibit

S of e Application.

In your ¢ inion, what is the ‘imary reasons be¢ ind this financii situation

that curren rexists at Cun__erla 1 Valley?

Cumberland Valley has experienced significant decreases in revenue from its
members especially in the commercial and industrial sector over 1000 kVa. The
revenue for this sector of Cumberland Valley’s customer base has decreased by
approximately $3.8 million or forty-seven perce'nt between calendar years 2011
and 2015. This decrease is due mainly to decline of the coal industry in
Southeastern Kentucky. The revenue from the residential rate class is also down

by 1.08 percent for the same time period.

Do you expect th: this situation in the large commercial and industri:

set >r along with 1e residentic sector cou change in the future?

Cumberland Valley does not foresee any time in the future when this situation
could change back to any resemblance of what it was just a few years ago. ltis

our feeling that the coal industry in Southeastern Kentucky will not recover to any
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degree muc« greater than what it is today. The unemployment level in
Cumberland Valley's service area is very significant and an increase in the
residential sector will not change for the positive until unemployment is alleviated.
A continuation of high unemployment may cause a continuation in the decrease

of residential members.

What has been Cun erland Valley’s policy in regar ;tol g term
financing and interest r¢ s and has Cun erland Valley ma :any recet

( ¢ gesto' ispc cy?

Cumberland Valley has always strived to find a balance between maximizing
savings on interest rates and maintaining stability to lessen the impact on electric
rates. Ten years ago Cumberland Valley Electric had approximately $31 million
in long term debt and interest expense on that amount was approximately $1.6
million dollars. The composite interest rate during this period of time was
approximately 5.24 percent. In the last ten years Cumberland Valley Electric has
taken advantage of extremely low variable FFB rates. In 2013 our total long term
debt was approximately $43 million dollars and the interest expense on that debt
was approximately $380,000 dollars. The composite rate in 2013 was .88 percent
and the ratio was 85% variable and 15% fixed. This composite rate ranked 2nd
lowest in the nation in CFC’s Key Ratio Trend Analysis (KRTA) report.
Cumberland Valley Electric estimated savings of $6 million to $10 million dollars
over this period of time as we took advantage of rates that were at times slightly
above zero. More recently we have been locking in historically low long term

rates. Since March of 2015 we have locked rates on approximately $22.6 million
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dollars and the rates have ranged from 2.3 to 2.6 percent. The current ratio of
fixed to variable rates stands at 60% fixed and 40% variable with a composite
rate of approximately 1.75%. Cumberiand Valley thinks it's a prudent decision to
lock in these historically low interest rates as it creates long term stability with our

interest expense.

In the Commission’s Ord¢ in Case No. 2014-00159, the Commission
ordered Cumberland Valley to have a Wage and Salary Survey completed
along with the con letion of a De reciation Study. Has Cumb¢ ind Valley

had these two studies c¢ leted?

Both of these studies were initiated shortly after receiving the Commission’s
Order in the above mentioned case and were completed in 2015. Both of these
studies are a part of this Application. The Wage and Salary Survey was

comj :ted by Winston Tan of Intandem, LLC and is based on a job evaluation
hierarchy which is merged with the latest 2015 NF  CA and Economic Research
Institute (“ERI”) survey data. The ERI data is based on a wider cross section of
industries in Kentucky. This Wage and Salary Survey was presented to the
Board of Directors and they plan to address these results in 2016. The
Depreciation Study was completed in the fa of 2015 by JDS Consulting. Listed
below is a summary of the results of this study and the RUS recommended range
of depreciation rates. Cumberiand Valley would like to place these depreciation

rates into effect in January 2017.
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Prooosed | Present RUS RUS
Account Description Rate Rate Low High
362 Sustation 6.70% 3.10% 2.70% 3.20%
364| Poles, Towers 3.90% 4,00% 6.00% 4.00%
365 OH Conductor 3.27% 2.80% 2.30% 2.80%
367| UG Conductor 4.02% annezl 93 AnoL 2 ano/
368| Transformers 2.39%|  3.10%
369 Services 4.14% 3.60%
370 Meters 3.40% 3.40%
370.01| Rratars AMI 6.70% 6.70% 2.90% 3.40%| .
install Cons
371 Premises 4,89% 4.00% 3.90% 4.40%

Q10. Does this conclude your testimony?

A10. Yes, it does.

- Affiant, Robert D. Tolliver, states that the answers given by him in the foregoing questions are true

and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

Kbt Tamga

Robert D. Tolliver

Subscribed and sworn to before me by the affiant, Robert D. Tolliver, this

;Z@ day of May, 2016.

Ao el 08

Notary Public, Kentucky State at Large.
i
My Commission Expires 4' - // - QO / 57




Residential Revenue 2011 & 2015 Comparison

Difference % Change
Manth 2011 2015 2011 v 2015 2011 v 2015
-January 54,116,072.27 $3,803,311.33 -$312,760.94 -7.60%
February $3,304,804.11 $4,216,424.72 $911,620.61 27.58%
March $2,604,601.34 $2,806,518.20 $201,916.86 7.75%
April $1,957,402.05 $2,024,409.06 $67,007.01 3.42%
May $1,788,129.56 $1,843,782.82 $55,653.26 3.11%
June $2,280,120.19 $2,220,984.90 -$59,135.29 -2.59%
July $2,626,959.19 $2,815,324.95 $188,365.76 7.17%
August $3,042,493.19 $2,404,982.05 -$637,511.14 -20.95%
September $2,039,592.38 $2,032,998.95 -$6,593.43 -0.32%
October $1,891,203.76 $2,023,251.88 $132,048.12 6.98%
November $2,594,806.42 $2,377,559.18 -§217,247.24 -8.37%
December $3,214,684.03 §? 850,151.19 -5664,532.84 -20.67%
Total $31,460,868.49  $31,119,699.23 -$341,169.26 -1.08%
Cnmmereial 50 kVA or less Revenue 2011 & 2015 Comparison
Difference % Change
Month 11 2015 2011v 2015 2011v 2015

January $260,525.10 $287,116.31 $26,591.21 10.21%
February $245,533.31 $289,935.85 $44,402.54 18.08%
March $227,408.43 $246,893.81 $19,485.38 8.57%
April $202,631.28 $237,406.87 $34,775.59 17.16%
May $205,263.62 $221,016.87 $15,753.25 7.67%
June $221,778.37 $235,904.71 $14,126.34 6.37%
July $244,221.35 $269,594.54 $25,373.19 10.39%
August $280,045.57 $259,081.39 -520,964.18 -7.49%
September $243,208.74 $245,509.88 $2,301.14 0.95%
October $213,199.86 $231,773.66 $18,573.80 8.71%
November $240,764.72 $228,749.38 -$12,015.34 -4.99%
December $257,526.46 $232,315.00 -$75 211 4R -9.79%
Total $2,842,106.81 $2,985,298.27 $143,191.4b 5.04%

Exhbit H-1
Page 6 of 8

ATTACHMENT RDT-1
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Commercial 50-1000 kVA Revenue 2011 & 2015 Comparienn

Difference % Change
Month . 2011 2015 2011 v 2015 2011v 201K
‘January $435,546.03 $486,833.48 $51,287.45 11.78%
February $431,697.24 $442,292.61 $10,595.37 2.45%
March $383,084.78 $411,722.28 $28,637.50 7.48%
April $383,792.03 $396,185.12 $12,393.09 3.23%
May $368,435.35 $365,471.25 -$2,964.10 -0.80%
June $364,514.48 $405,009.35 $40,494.87 11.11%
July $444,519.38 $440,300.01 -$4,219.37 -0.95%
August $471,923.63 $453,504.54 -$18,419.09 -3.90%
September $440,900.25 $428,695.70 -$12,204.55 -2.77%
October $376,763.38 $401,947.44 $25,184.06 6.68%
November $407,380.35 $395,757.24 -$11,623.11 -2.85%
December $444,703.71 $402,307 R0 -$42,395.91 -9.53%
Total $4,953,260.61 $5,030,02b.582 $76,766.21 1.55%
Commercial twer 1000 kVA Revenue 2011 & 2015 Comparison
Difference % Change
Month 2011 2015 2011v 2015 2011v 2015

January $726,461.47 $381,811.90 -$344,649.57 -47.44%
February $737,414.71 $397,912.69 -$339,502.02 -46.04%
March $641,033.12 $302,649.56 -$338,383.56 -52.79%
April $626,490.32 $357,639.14 -5268,851.18 -42.91%
May $633,245.69 $341,847.02 -$291,398.67 -46.02%
June $576,332.53 $360,027.00 -$216,305.53 -37.53%
July $667,948.10 $376,118.95 -$291,829.15 -43.69%
August $720,475.95 $411,384.76 -$309,091.19 -42.90%
September $733,383.19 $372,068.39 -$361,314.80 -49.27%
October $651,373.53 $363,503.90 -$287,869.63 -44.19%
November $701,515.38 $365,056.69 -$336,458.69 -47.96%
December $789,415.96 $338,559 22 -$450,856.64 -57.11%
Total $8,205,089.95 $4,368,5/9.32 -$3,836,510.63 -46.76%




Total Revenue 2011 & 2u15 Comparison

Difference % Change
Manth 2011 2015 2011v 2015 7011 v 2015

January $5,538,604.5/ $4,959,073.02 -$579,531.85 -10.46%
February $4,719,449.37 $5,346,565.87 $627,116.50 13.29%
March $3,856,127.67 $3,767,783.85 -$88,343.82 -2.29%
April $3,170,315.68 $3,015,640.19 -$154,675.49 -4.88%
May $2,995,074.22 $2,772,117.96 -$222,956.26 -7.44%
lune $3,442,745.57 $3,221,925.96 -$220,819.61 -6.41%
July $3,983,648.02 $3,901,338.45 -$82,309.57 -2.07%
August $4,514,938.34 $3,528,952.74 -$985,985.60 -21.84%
September $3,457,084.56 $3,079,272.92 -$377,811.64 -10.93%
October $3,132,540.53 $3,020,476.88 -$112,063.65 -3.58%
November $3,944,466.87 $3,367,122.49 -$577,344.38 -14.64%
December $4,706,330.16 $3,523,333.31 -$1,182,996.85 -25.14%
Total $47,461,325.86  $43,503,603.64 -$3,957,722.22 -8.34%

Exhbit H-1
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CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

APPLICATION FOR AN INCREASE IN ELECTRIC UTILITY RATES
CASE NO. 2016-00169

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF JAMES R. ADKINS

State your name and business address.

My name is James R. Adkins and my address is 2189 Roswell Dr., Lexington, KY
40513.

What is your past experience in cost of service studies and rate design for
electric utilities?

| have been dealing with electric utility cost of service studies, rate design, revenue
requirements and many different types of projects in the accounting and financial
aspects of an electric utility for over thirty-five years..

What is your experience in the electric utility industry?

| spent twenty-five years as the rate/pricing manager for East Kentucky Power
Cooperative (‘EKPC”) and the last thirteen years, |1 have provided similar
consulting services to electric cooperatives.

Have you ever appeared as a witness before this Commission?

| have appeared as a witness before this Commission many times for East
Kentucky Power Cooperative and for all the distribution cooperatives of EKPC and
for two of the distribution cooperatives of Big Rivers Electric Corporation.

What is your education background?

| have a Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance and a Master's Degree in

Accounting and both degrees are from the University of Kentucky.
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What has been your role in the preparation of this Application?
My role in this application}has been to provide guidance, assistance and oversight
in the development of revenue requirements including the preparation of the test
year adjustments and determination of margin levels, the completion the cost of
service study presented in this Application, and in the development of the
proposals on the appropriate rate design,
Please explain what provides the basis for the revenue requirements in this
application and what is the basis for the amount of increase in rates that is
being requested by Cumberland Valley Electric (“CVE”)?
The amount of increase requested in this case is based on an adjusted test year
expenses plus margin requirements minus the actual revenues for the test year
from base rates. The adjustment clauses for fuel adjustment clause (“FAC") and
the environmental surcharge clause ("ESC”) are not a part of the request in this
application and the revenues and expenses associated with these clauses have
been removed for rate-making purposes from the financial statements presented
in this case. The adjusted test year presented in this case indicates that CVE
needs an increase in electric rate revenue of approximately $1.975 million with an
increase in base rates and approximately $22,450 thousand for nonrecurring
charges. The results for the test indicate anactual margin of $2,266,319 including
the annual allocation of capital credits (“GTCCs") from its wholesale power
supplier, East Kentucky Power Cooperative (‘EKPC”). When the allocation of
GTCCs received during the test year of $2,489,456 are removed from the actual

financial statements for the test year, CVE had a loss of $232,837. With the other
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test year adjustments included, CVE has an adjusted test year with losses of
$776,400.

Why were the GTCCs removed from the actual test year financial statements
which changes the actual results from a positive margin to a loss for this
period?

It the normal policy of the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“Commission”) to
remove these EKPC capital credits from CVE's financial statements for rate-
making purposes. These capital credits are only a book entry at the current time
since EKPC has never paid any of its capital credits.

What are other adjustments has been make to the financial statements CVE
and what these test year adjustments?

The other test year adjustments have been completed in the normal and same
manner as the test year adjustments have been make in the rate applications of
other distribution cooperatives in the state of Kentucky. The test year adjustments
dealing with revenues consist of the following ones:

U Nérmalization of revenue from base rates to insure that the rate
increase of January 2015 is properly accounted for in the amount of
$151,522.

¢+ Removal of the FAC and ESC revenues received during the test year
which totals $2,982,174.

s The adjustment for the end of test year number of customers in the

amount of $25,923 which is a decrease.
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e And an adjustment for the proposed increase of $5.00 in the
reconnect charge in order to make the manual and remote charges
equal and this amounts to an increase of $22,450

The test year adjustment for expenses include the following ones:

e Normalization of wages and salaries for $40,910;

o Normalization of payroll taxes for $4,278,:

e Normalization of depreciation expenses for $214,741;

o Normalization of interest expenses for $344,521;

e Normalization of retirement and pension expenses for $17,849;

e The removal of certain advertising expenses for $1,144;

e Removal of donations for $12,632;

e Removal of specific expenses for directors that not acceptable for
rate-making purposes in the amount of $68,173;

e Removal of certain professional fees that abnormal for $17,212;

e Normalization of purchased power expenses and the removal of the
FAC and ESC expenses from the test year in the amount of
$2,835,633;

e Removal of certain miscellaneous expenses for $2,1689;

¢ Inclusion of an estimate of the expenses that will be incurred for this
rate application for $35,000; and,

e Exclusion from the test year the GTCCs form EKPC as mentioned

earlier in this testimony in the amount of $2,818,449.
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Q10. What does the term normalization mean as used above in your description
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of the test year adjustments?

The term normalization as used in the above adjustments basically means that test
year end data and test year end rates have been used to determine what the
annual expense or annual lrevenue would be under these specific conditions. A
specific example is below that is very descriptive of this process. Depreciation
expense is a good example. Throughout the test year, CVE added new plant to
its general plant and distribution plant for a variety of reasons. Since depreciation
expense is calculated on a monthly basis, the test year expense for depreciation
is not representative of what the year-end depreciable plant balances would
provide as annual depreciation expense. To determine the amount of the
adjustment, the test year end, depreciable plant balances are multiplied by their
proper depreciation rates to determine the annual depreciation expense would be.
The actual depreciation expense for the test year would then be subtracted from
the above calculated annual depreciation to determine the amount of this
adjustment for depreciation expense. The other normalized expenses would follow
a very similar pattern.

What is CVE proposing for margins and what is the basis for the proposal?
CVE is proposing a margin amount of $1,199,412 and is based on a Times Interest
Earned Ratio (“TIER”) of 2.41X. The TIER method for determining margins has
been the approach that this Commission has normally approved in past rate cases
involving electric distribution cooperatives. The normal TIER authorized by this

Commission has been a 2.0X. However, in Case No, 2011-00096, Application of



Q2.

A12.

Exhibit H-2

Page é_ofﬁz
Scuth Kentucky RECC for an Adjustment in Electric Rates, the Commission
authcrized a TIER cf 2.10X in this case because of the declining equity leve] that
the cooperative had experienced in recent years. CVE has had a very similar
experience for the last several years with a declining equity level due to very low
margins cr losses. During the 1980s, this Commissicn did autherize distributicn
cooperative rates tc be based cn TIERs in amounts greater than 2.25X and up to
2.50X.
Cumberland Valley received an increase in base rates in January 2015 during
the test year that is a part of the current rate application. What is the reason
why CVE is filing this application in such a short period of time since the
filing of the last rate application?
CVE has filed this application because its financial statements reflects that CVE is
still in violaticn cf its mortgage agreements with its crediters. CVE witnesses in
the last rate case testified that CVE woeuld file an application in a very short period
of time if the Commission did not grant the complete amount of increase that was
requested in that application. The Commission granted an increase that was
approximately sixty percent of the amount requested. Furthermore, CVE is in
worse financial conditions today than it was in its last application. When margins
are authorized in an amount equal to its interest expense (such as a TIER of 2.0X),
then low interest expenses translate to low margins. In a manner, this method of
setting margins on the basis of TIER may be a disincentive for a distribution

cooperative to maintain the lowest interest expense possible.
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Since its last rate application, has CVE changed or modified his approach to
debt?
CVE has modified its approach in regards to its long term debt. In the last rate
application, CVE had approximately eighty-five percent of its long term debt in
variable short term interest rates. The remainder or fifteen percent of its long term
debt was in fixed interest rates. In this rate application, CVE has approximately
sixty percent of its debt in fixed interest rates and the other forty percent in variable
interest rates. The debt that has been moved from variable interest rates to fixed
interest rates has received long term interest rates that are very favorable. A
cursory review of the Statement of Operations for the test year that has been filed
in this application indicates the significant change in interest expense that CVE
has experienced due to the movement of some of its long term debt from variable
interest rates to fixed interest rates.
If the Commission were to grant CVE the full amount of increase that is
requested in this application, how long would it be before CVE would file an
application for another increase?
| would expect CVE would not have the need to file another application for an
increase in base rates until sometime in 2020 or probably a later date. It is heavily
dependent upon two occurrences over which CVE does no control. The first item
is weather and extremely mild weather may cause CVE to come in sooner than
stated above. Weather worse than normal could postpone the need for a longer
period of time. The other item is the economy. CVE’s sales have deteriorated with

the decline of the coal industry in its service area and CVE may not have felt the
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full impact yet. Any speculation about the need of increase requests in the future
is a very subjective estimate.

Q15. Are you responsible for the Cost of Service Study (“COSS”) in this rate
application?

A15. 1am responsible for the COSS in this case as | completed this study for CVE.

Q16. Please explain the purpose of the COSS.

A16. The COSS was completed based on the methodé and guidance provided in the

National Association of Reguiatbry Utility Commission (*“NARUC") Electric Utility

Cost Allocation Manual (1992). The purpose of this study is to determine the costs

and revenue requirements to provide service to each rate class. The revenue
requirements for each rate class is then compared with the current revenue from
rates for each rate class to determine an increase amount for a rate class if
needed. The COSS provides a breakdown into the various cost components for
each rate class including the demand related costs, the energy related costs and
the customer/member related components. This breakdown of costs may be used
by CVE in determining the appropriate rate design for each rate class.

Q17. What is the process used in the COSS?

A17. The proceés used is the normal three step process of the functionalization of
expenses, the classification of expenses and the allocation of expenses to the rate
classes of CVE. Before this part of the study begins, the actual test year expenses
and all test year adjustments are integrated into an adjusted statement of
operations. Additionally, the margin requirements are also included and these

margin requirements are based on a TIER of 2.41X as previously discussed.
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allocated. Provided below is the allocators used to allocate the demand and energy

related expenses/revenue requirements to the appropriate rate class.

a)

b)

d)

e)

Purchased power demand related costs are allocated proportionally on the
basis of each rate class’s contribution to EKPC’s coincident peak during the
EKPC’s on-peak hours for each season. EKPC bills its demand on the
basis of its coincident peak.

Purchased power substation costs are allocated proportionally on the basis
of the sum of the monthily peak demands of each rate class.

Purchased power energy costs are allocated proportionally on the basis of
each rate class’s retails energy sales for the test year.

Distribution station and line demand related costs are allocated
proportionally on the basis of the sum of the monthly peak demands for
each rate class.

Distribution transformer demand related costs are allocated proportionally

on the sum of the monthly peak demand for each rate class.

The consumer related components are allocated on the following basis:

a)

b)

c)

Consumer related line costs are allocated proportionally on the number of
individual accounts in each rate class.

Consumer related transformer costs are allocated proportionally on the
basis of the minimum size transformer cost for each class weighted by the
number of accounts in rate class.

Consumer related services costs are allocated proportionally on the cost of

the minimum service and the number accounts within each rate class.
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d) Meter costs are all consumer related and are allocated proportionally on the
basis of the cost of the standard meter for each rate class and the number
of accounts within each rate class.

e) Consumer and accounting services are allocated proportionally on the basis
of the number of accounts weighted by the complexity of the bills, meter
reading data and an estimate of the time that may be spent dealing with a
consumer matter. The more complex the bill and the size of the bill have
entered into the development of this allocation.

How is revenue from other sources other than from electric rates handled in
the COSS?

These revenues have been allocated to Schedule |, Schedule il, Schedule 1l and
Schedule VL This‘allocation has been made on the basis of the number of
consumers in each one of these rate classes. These revenues have the effect of
reducing the need of revenue from rates for these rate classes and the lessening
of the increase amount needed for these rate classes.

Provide a summary of the results of the COSS.

The results of the COSS indicates that three rate classes do not provide enough
revenue from rates to cover their revenue requirements. These rate classes are
Schedule | — Residential, Schools & Churches (single phase), Schedule 1 —
Marketing Rate and Schedule 1l — Small Commercial and Small Power (three
phase) and Schedule VI — Outdoor Lighting. The results of the COSS for these

four rate classes is provided below:
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COSS RESULTS FOR RATE CLASSES WITH RATES THAT DO NOT RECOVER COSTS

... . |Schedulel| Schedulell |
Schedule | |Residential.| Three Phase | Schedule VI |
Residential [Market - ETS| Commercial Lighting
Revnue fromRates | $ 28,223,615 | 5 37,899 | $ 837,357 |\ $ 1,364,318
Total Costto Serve 30,840,765 47,093 861,987 1,447,912
Margins from Rate Revenue|  (2,617,150)  (9,194)]  (24,630)  (83594)
OtherRevenue = 1,739,599 - 11,054 3,790
Net Margins (877,551) (9,194) (13,577) (79,805)

All other rate classes are providing rate revenue that does recover the costs to
serve.

Are these the rate classes that you are proposing to have increases in their
electric rates?

| am proposing an inc;rease in rates for all rate classes with most of the increase
being placed on the customer charges for all rate classes that have a customer
charge plus increases in the rates for all lights. Some energy rates for some
classes are also being proposed for an increase in rates. The rationale for this
approach is to keep the overall increase in Schedule | — Residential, Schools, and
Churches to a reasonable amount. More importantly, it should be noted that the
customer charges for all rate classes do not recover in full the consumer related
costs. The above stated reasons are the primary ones for the proposals that are
presented in this application.

What are the proposed increase amounts for each rate class in this
application?

The increase amounts and important ratios for each rate class is presented below:
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e RATE b TIER OTIER
CLASS Increase Before After Before | After

| - Residential, Schools and Churches |$1,646,800 (0.35) 2.20 (0.66) 1.88
| - Prepaid Service $11,283 2.20

I - Marketing Rate $6,358 (34.31)] (34.31)| (34.31)| (34.61)
Il - Small Power, Single Phase $97,406 2.26 4.85 1.93 452
Il - Small Power, Three Phase $27,657 0.17 1.87 0.09 1.79
Il - Three Phase Schools and Churches| $31,374 1.66 3.74 1.63 3.71
IV - Large Power, Industrial $750 5.54 5.62 5.54 5.62
IV-A - Large Power Rate $24,600 2.56 2.93 2.56 2.93
S & T - Outdoor Lighting Service $128,675 (0.49) 191 {0.50) 1.90

Provide a comparison of the present and the proposed rate designs and the

consumer related cost for each rate class that has a customer charge.

Listed below is the requested comparison.

RATE Customer Charge |Consumer

CLASS Current Proposed Costs
Sched. I - Resid., Sch, Chrh S 873|$14.10 (S 28.23
Sched. Il - Sml Com 1 Ph 8.96| 15.00 35.14
Sched. Il - Sml Com 3 Ph 8.96; 25.00 90.21
Sched. 1l - All Elec Schl Chrh 25.00 45.00 53.15
Sched. IV - Lrg Pow> 2500kW 50.00 | 100.00 140.53
Sched. IV-A Lrg Pow

50-2500kwW 40.00 65.00 114.76

You stated above that you did want the increase for any rate class to exceed

five percent.

Commercial (Single Phase) does exceed five percent.

situation exist?

However, the increase percent for Schedule Il — Small

Why does the
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The proposed increase for Schedule Il — Small Commercial (Single Phase) does
exceed five percent. The primary reason for this situation is the preference to have
the customer charge at least equal to the customer charge for Schedule | —
Residential, Schools, and Churches. One could reasonably argue for a higher
customerAcharge for this rate class, but the percentage increase in revenue for this
class would have exceeded the 5.1% that is being requested in this application.
The Commission issued an Order in Qase No. A2014-00159 on or about
January 16, 2015. Why is CVE filing a new rate application in such short time
since the completion of that case?
As mentioned earlier, the amount of increase that CVE received was not large
enough to care of its financial conditions. CVE has gone several years without
meeting its mortgage requirements for the Operating Times Interest Earned Ration
("OTIER") ratio. | believe that it is imperative that CVE start meeting all of this
mortgages agreements.
What has CVE accomplished since receiving an order in Case No. 2014-
0015972
CVE has accomplished several things. CVE is always looking at ways to control
or reduce its costs and this is readily indicated by having among the lowest rates
among cooperatives in Kentucky. Also, CVE has had a wage and salary study

completed as ordered in the last case and has had a depreciation study completed

as also ordered in the last case. Both of these documents have been filed as a

part of this case. CVE has also changed its approach to long term debt by fixing

the amount the interest rates on about fifty percent of its long term debt and
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keeping the other fifty percent at variable interest rates. The debt is monitored on
a continuous basis.

Does CVE need to receivg this complete amount of the increase that it is
requesting?

CVE most certainly does need the complete amount requested in this case with
one major reason being that it needs to meet its mortgage requirements. Another
significant reason is to keep from having the need to come back before this
Commission after very short periods of time. CVE needs the complete increase
amount.

Is CVE proposing some new rates?

Yes, CVE is proposing a couple of new rate structures as a part of its overall tariffs.
The first one is a new residential time-of-day rate. This rate is replacing the current
tariff identified as Schedule 1-Residential Marketing Rate which is utilized for
Electric Thermal Storage (“ETS”) units. CVE is proposing to discontinue this ETS
program. This new tariff was developed on the concept of revenue neutrality. With
this concept, if all customers on Schedule | were to switch to the TOD schedule,
the amount of revenue that CVE would receive would be an amount equal to what
derives from the current Schedule 1 tariff. Attachment JRA-1 to this testimony
contains the basis for the development of this new tariff. The second new rate is
an inclining block rate which CVE is proposing to place into effect for the very low
energy users |

Is CVE proposing a change to one of its nonrecurring charges?
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A28. CVE is proposing to make the remote connect/disconnect charge and the manual
connect/disconnect charge equal at the amount of $25.00 per occurrence. One is
now $20.00 while the other is $25.00. CVE feels that these rates should be the
same.
Q29. Does this conclude your testimony?

A29. Yes, this concludes my testimony.

Affiant, James R. Adkins, states that the answers given by him in the foregoing questions are
true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

/@WM e

Subscribed and sworn to before me by the affiant, James R. Adkins, this

2044 day of May, 2016.

Rordoora Mlgh-

Notary Public, Kentucky State at Large.

My Commission Expires A-13~19
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ATTACHMENT JRA-1

PROPOSED TIME OF DAY RATE STRUCTURE

Residential Time of Day Rates

Customer Qhargbe“ } S 20.00
Off-Peak Energy Rate Per kWh -~ 0.06000
On-Peak Energy Rate Per kwh ~ . 010161

Derivation of On-Peak Energy Rate with Customer Charge and Off-Peak Energy Rate Set These Amounts

Residential TOD Rate | Cust. Charges Energy kWh Revenue Prop
Schedule | - Farm, Residential 262,406 300,860,320 29,700,273
Schedule | - Prepay 1,846 1,734,061 44,258
Schedule | - Marketing 737,631 175,886
264,252 303,332,012| 29,920,417
On-Peak Energy 154,656,734
Off-Peak Energy 148,675,278 Off-Peak Energy $ 0.06000 8,920,517
Total Energy 303,332,012 ’ Customer Charge 20 5,285,040
Subtotal 14,205,557
On-Peak Energy Revenue 15,714,861

On-Peak Energy Rate S 0.10161
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Customer charge
Energy charge

kwh Useage

0
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1,700
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2,000

The average monthly useage
1,147

Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169
Average Bill for Residential Rate Class
Schedule 1, Residential, Schools and Churches

Present
$8.73
$0.08563

Existing
Rate

$8.73.

10.87
13.01
17.29
21.57
25.86
30.14
3442
38.70
42.98
47.26
51.55
60.11
68.67
77.23
85.80
94.36
102.92
111.49
120.05
128.61
137.18
145.74
154.30
162.86
171.43
179.99

106.91

Proposed
$14.10

$0.08642

Proposed
Rate

$14.10
16.26
18.42
22,74
27.06
31.38
35.71
40.03
44 35
48.67
52.99
57.31
65.95
74.59
83.24
91.88
100.52
109.16
117.80
126.45
135.09
143.73
152.37
161.01
169.66
178.30
186.94

113.18
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Increase

Amount

$5.37
5.39
541
5.45
5.49
5.53
5.57
5.61
5.65
5.69
5.73
5.77
5.84
5.92
6.00
6.08
6.16
6.24
6.32
6.40
6.48
6.56
6.63
6.71
6.79
6.87
6.95

6.28

Percent

61.5%
49.6%
41.6%
31.5%
25.4%
21.4%
18.5%
16.3%
14.6%
13.2%
12.1%
11.2%
9.7%
8.6%
7.8%
7.1%
6.5%
6.1%
3.7%
5.3%
5.0%
4.8%
4.6%
4.4%
4.2%
4.0%
3.9%

5.9%
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Revenue Analysis
November 30, 2015
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22
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25

26

27

29

31
32

Percent Normalized  Percent Percent
Rate Kwh Test Year of Case No. of Proposed of increase

Schedule Useage Revenue Total 2014-00159 Total Revenue Total Amount Percent
| - Residential, Schools and Churches 300,860,320 $27,951,430 68%  $28,053,474 68% $29,700,273 69% $1,646,800 5.87%
| - Prepaid Service 1,734,061 $169,299 0% $170,141 0% $181,424 0% 11,283 6.63%
| - Marketing Rate 737,631 37,815 0% 37,899 0% 44,258 0% 6,358 16.78%
Il - Small Power, Single Phase 14,488,863 1,493,911 4% 1,500,641 4% 1,598,048 4% 97,406 6.49%
Il - Small Power, Three Phase 7,393,144 836,668 2% 837,356 2% 865,012 2% 27,657 3.30%
Il - Three Phase Schools and Churches 15,867,403 1,269,444 3% 1,270,330 3% 1,301,704 3% 31,374  247%
IV - Large Power, Industrial 16,450,200 1,139,142 3% 1,143,449 3% 1,144,199 3% 750 0.07%
IV-A - Large Power Rate 90,899,192 6,806,614 17% 6,811,729 17% 6,836,329 16% 24,600 0.36%
S & T - Qutdoor Lighting Service 11,317,722 1,333,495 3% 1,364,320 3% 1,492,982 3% 128,662 9.43%
Envirowatts 27,600 780 0% 780 0% 780 0% - 0.00%
Rounding differences 0 0
Total from base rates 459,776,136 41,038,598 100% $41,190,120 100% $43,165,010  100% $1,974,890 5%
Fuel adjustment billed (1,665,196)
Environmental surcharge billed 4,646,101

$44,019,503
Increase $151,522 $1,974,890



Description
Facility charge
Energy charge per kWh
Total from base rates

Fue! adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule 1, Residential, Schools and Churches

Exhibit J
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates I Revenues Rates I Revenues
262,406 $2,188,761 $8.73 $2,290,804 $14.10 $3,699,925
300,860,320 25,762,669  $0.08563 25,762,669  $0.08642 26,000,349
27,951,430 $28,053,474 $29,700,273
(1,090,009)
3,165,856
$30,027,277
$102,044 $1,646,800
0.4% 5.9%
$106.52 $106.91 $113.18
$0.39 $6.28
0.4% 5.9%



Description
Facility charge

Prepay charge
Energy charge per kWh

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2014-00159
Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule 1, Residential, Schools and Churches
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2008-00525 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates I Revenues
1,846 $20,882 $8.73 $16,116 $14.10 $26,029
- 1,846 0 $3.00 5,538 $3.00 5,538
1,734,061 148,417  $0.08563 148,488 $0.08642 149,858
169,299 $170,141 $181,424
(6,287)
19,176
$182,188
$842 $11,283
0.5% 6.6%
$91.71 $92.17 $98.28
$0.46 $6.11
0.5% 6.6%



Description
Facility charge
Energy charge
Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule 1, Marketing Rate
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates | Revenues
774 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0
737,631 37,815  $0.05138 37,899  $0.06000 44,258
37,815 $37,899 $44,258
(2,674)
4,283
$39,424
$84 $6,358
0.2% 16.8%
$48.86 $48.97 $57.18
$0.11 $8.21
0.2% 16.8%



Description

Facility charge
KVA Minimum Charge
Energy charge

First 3,000

All over 3,000

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valiey Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule Il, Small Commercial - Single Phase
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates | Revenues
15,967 $136,334 $8.96 $143,064 $15.00 $239,505
4,085 3,064 $0.75 3,064 $0.75 3,064
10,626,321 1,011,519  $0.09519 1,011,519  $0.09519 1,011,519
3,862,542 342,994  $0.08880 342,994  $0.08905 343,959
14,488,863
1,493,911 $1,500,641 $1,598,048
(52,529)
169,207
$1,610,589
$6,730 $97,406
0.5% 6.5%
$93.56 $93.98 $100.08
$0.42 $6.10
0.5% 6.5%



Description

Facility charge
KVA Minimum Charge

Demand charge

Energy charge
First 3,000
All over 3,000

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule |1, Small Commercial - Three Phase
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates | Revenues
1,654 $14,130 $8.96 $14,820 $25.00 $41,350
26,539 19,904 $0.75 19,904 $0.75 19,904
30,254 127,674 $4.22 $127,672 $4.22 $127,672
2,887,110 274,824  $0.09519 274,824 $0.09519 274,824
4,506,034 400,136  $0.08880 400,136 $0.08905 401,262
7,393,144
836,668 $837,356 $865,012
(26,804)
94,765
$904,629
$688 $27,657
0.1% 3.3%
$505.85 $506.26 $522.98
$0.42 $16.72
0.1% 3.3%



Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule 11, Three Phase Schools and Churches
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‘Test Normalized '
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Description Determinants Revenues Rates l Revenues Rates | Revenues

Facility charge 577 $12,563 $25.00 $14,425 $45.00 $25,965
KVA Minimum Charge 0 - $0.75 0 $0.75 0
Energy charge 15,867,403 1,256,881 $0.07915 1,255,905 $0.08040 1,275,739
Total from base rates 1,269,444 $1,270,330 $1,301,704
Fuel adjustment (57,527)

Environmental surcharge 141,798

Total revenues $1,353,715

Amount $886 $31,374
Percent 0.1% 2.5%
Average monthly bill $2,200.08 $2,201.61 $2,255.99
Amount $1.54 $54.37
Percent 0.1% 2.5%



Description
Facility Charge

Demand Charge
Energy charge

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthly bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule IV, Large Power - Industrial
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates I Revenues Rates | Revenues
15 $5622 $50.00 $750 $100.00 $1,500
46,071 301,766 $6.55 301,765 $6.55 301,765
16,450,200 836,854  $0.05112 840,934 $0.05112 840,934
1,139,142 $1,143,449 $1,144,199
(59,640)
129,029
$1,208,531
$4,307 $750
0.4% 0.1%
$75,942.80 $76,229.95 $76,279.95
$287.15 $50.00
0.4% 0.1%



Description

Facility Charge

KVA Minimum Charge
Demand Charge
Energy charge

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Average monthiy bill
Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis

November 30, 2015

Schedule IV-A, Large Power Rate
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates | Revenues
984 $34,244 $40.00 $39,360 $65.00 $63,960
12,660 9,495 $0.75 9,495 $0.75 9,495
293,370 1,238,022 $4.22 1,238,021 $4.22 $1,238,021
90,899,192 5,524,853  $0.06078 5,524,853  $0.06078 5,524,853
6,806,614 $6,811,729 $6,836,329
(329,556)
770,949
$7,248,007
$5,115 $24,600
0.1% 0.4%
$6,917.29 $6,922.49 $6,947 .49
$5.20 $25.00
0.1% 0.4%



Description
Mercury Vapor:
175 Watt
400 Watt

Other Lamps:
100 Watt Open Bottom
100 Watt Colonial Post

100 Watt Directional Flood
400 Watt Directional Flood

400 Watt Cobra Head
LED Open Bottom
LED Cobra Head
LED Directional

kWh

Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Schedule S and T - Outdoor Lighting Facilities

Exhibit J
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Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates | Revenues Rates Revenues
86,822 726,753 $8.57 744,065 $9.42 817,863
0 $12.76 0 $13.90 0
17,189 144,445 $8.59 147,654 $9.44 162,264
0 $9.68 0 $10.61 0
332 3,384 $10.42 3,459 $11.40 3,785
11,874 195,458 $16.57 196,752 $17.98 213,495
16,404 262,881 $16.57 271,816 $17.98 294,944
69 574 $8.32 574 $9.15 631
0 $14.19 0 $15.43 0
0 $17.42 0 $18.89 0
11,317,722

1,333,495 $1,364,320 $1,492,982

(40,170)

151,038

$1,444,363
$30,825 $128,662
2.31% 9.43%




Description
Envirowatts
kWh
Billing adjustments
Total from base rates

Fuel adjustment
Environmental surcharge

Total revenues

Amount
Percent

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169
Billing Analysis
November 30, 2015

Envirowatts

Exhibit J
pae 11 of 11
Witness: Jim Adkins

Test Normalized
Billing Year Case No. 2014-00159 Proposed
Determinants Revenues Rates l Revenues Rates | Revenues
780  $0.02825 780  $0.02825 780
27,600

0 0
780 $780 $780

$780
$0 $0
0.0% 0.0%



Net margins

G&T capital credits

Interest on long-term debt

Total

Net rate base
Rate of return
Equity Capitalization

Rate of return

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Computation of Rate of Return
November 30, 2015

Actual
Test Year
$ 2,266,320
(2,489,156)

506,126

$ 283,290

Exhibit K
page 1 of 7

Witness: Jim Adkins

Adjusted
Test Year

1,199,412

850,647

2,050,059

§ 66,249,766

66,030,603

0.43%

$ 67,827,210

109

i=)

62,831,117

429

3.26%
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Determination of Rate Base
November 30, 2015

QGross rate base:

Total electric plant

Actual
Test Year

$ 100,810,405

Material and supplies 412,083
(13 months average for test year)
Prepayments 151,813
(13 months average for test year)
Working capital:
12.5% of operating expense
less cost of power 991,384
102,365,685
Deductions from rate base:
Accumulated depreciation 36,032,638
Consumer advances 83,281
Net rate base $ 66,249,766
Material Prepayments
November. 2014 427,422 86,331
December 427,412 45,952
January 413,710 134,594
February 449,617 126,696
March 423,647 116,459
April 457,697 262,651
May 474,287 252,374
June 475,618 242,097
July 453,381 199,426
August 431,248 206,050
September 467,916 166,051
October 380,193 126,053
November 502,353 95,169
Average 444,962 158,454

Exhibit K
page 2 of 7
Witness: Jim Adkins

Adjusted
Test Year

$- 100,810,405
412,083

151,813

991,831

102,366,132

36,252,248
83,281

$§ 66,030,603
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11
12
13
14
15
16
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18
19

20
21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Net margins

Interest on long-term debt

Total

Net rate base

Rate of return

Return excluding G & T
patronage dividends:

Net margins

G & T patronage dividends
Interest on long-term debt

Total

Net rate base

Rate of return, excluding G & T

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Computation of Rate of Return

November 30, 2015

Exhibit K
page 3 of 7

Witness: Jim Adkins

Calendar Year

1st

Test Year 2nd 3rd 4th 5th
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$2,266,320 $2,735,613 $3,031,856 $2,473,447 $3,687,972 $3,465,120
506,126 348,543 354,342 427,212 449,190 567,377
2,772,446 3,084,156 3,386,198 2,900,659 4,137,162 4,032,497
66,249,766 65,044,423 63,796,898 60,934,675 58,106,354 55,768,535
4.18% 4.74% 5.31% 4.76% 112% 1.23%
Calendar Year
Test Year 1st 2nd Ist 2nd 3rd
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 |
$2.266,320 $2,735,613 $3,031,856 $2.473,447 $3,687,972 $3,465,120
2,489,156 2,489,157 2,957,019 2,364,260 2,700,063 1,513,478
506,126 348,543 354,342 427212 449,190 567,377
283,290 594,999 429,179 536,399 1,437,099 2,519,019
66,249,766 65,044,423 63,796,898 60,934,675 58,106,354 55,768.535
0.43% 0.91% 0.67% 0.88% 2.47% 4,52%
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Gross rate base:

Total electric plant

Material and supplies (13 mo. ave t
Prepayments (13 mo. ave test year)

Working capital:

12.5% of operating expense
less cost of power

Deductions from rate base:
Accumulated depreciation
Consumer advances

Net rate base

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Determination of Rate Base

Exhibit K
page 4 of 7

Witness; Jim Adkins

November 30, 2015
Calendar Year
Test Year Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Sth
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$100,810,405 $97,990,900 $95,868,118  $91,907,099 $87,488,900 $84,725,706
412,083 427,412 496,675 700,215 587,895 515,580
151,813 45,952 69,683 46,119 42,743 39,578
991,384 967,383 932,570 024,738 891,626 917,403
102,365,685 99,431,647 97,367,046 93,578,171 89,011,164 86,198,267
36,032,638 34,331,984 33,482,599 32,589,402 30,851,298 30,384,843
83,281 55,240 87,549 54,094 53,512 44,889
$66,249,766  $65,044,423  $63,796,898  $60,934,675 $58,106,354  $55,768,535
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169
TIER and DSC Calculations

November 30, 2015
Actual Adjusted
Test Year Test Year
TIER:
Margins, excluding G&T capital credits ($222,836) $1,199.412
Interest on long term debt 506,126 850,647
TIER 0.56 241
DSC:
Margins, excluding G&T capital credits ($222,836) $1,199,412
Depreciation expense 3,485,419 3,705,029
Interest on long term debt 506,126 850,647
Principal payment on
long term debt 2,024,179 2,024,179
DSC 1.49 2.00

DSC=

(Margins + depreciation + interest)
/ (interest + principal payments)
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Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit K

2 Case No. 2016-00169 page 6 of 7
3 TIER and DSC Calculations Witness: Jim Adkins
4 November 30, 2015

5

6 Calendar Year

7 Test Year Ist 2nd 3rd 4th 5th

8 TIER calculations: 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

9

10 Margins, excluding G&T

1 capital credits (222,836) 246,456 74,837 109,187 987,909 1,951,642
12 Interest on long term debt 506,126 348,543 354,342 427,212 449,190 567,377
13 TIER, excluding G&T capital cr 0.56 1.71 1.21 1.26 3.20 4,44
14

15 Margins, including G&T

16 capital credits 2,266,320 2,735,613 3,031,856 2,473,447 3,687,972 3,465,120
17 Interest on long term debt 506,126 348,543 354,342 427,212 449,190 567,377
18 TIER 5.48 8.85 9.56 6.79 9.21 7.11
19

20  DSC calculations:

n DSC = ((Margins + depreciation + interest) / (interest + principal payments)

2

23 Margins, excluding G&T

24 capital credits (222,836) 246,456 74,837 109,187 987,909 1,951,642
25 Depreciation expense 3,485,419 3,246,850 3,115,270 2,750,265 2,968,519 2,868,087
26 Interest on long term debt 506,126 348,543 354,342 427,212 449,190 567,377
27 Principal payment on

28 long term debt 2,024,179 1,888,565 1,944,489 1,656,579 1,884,303 2,138,705
29 DSC,excluding G&T capital crec 1.49 1.72 1.54 1.58 1.89 1.99
30

31 Margins, including G&T

32 capital credits 2,266,320 2,735,613 3,031,856 2,473,447 3,687,972 3,465,120
33 Depreciation expense 3,485,419 3,246,850 3,115,270 2,750,265 2,968,519 2,868,087
3¢ Interest on long term debt 506,126 348,543 354,342 427,212 449,190 567,377
35 Principal payment on

36 long term debt 2,024,179 1,888,565 1,944,489 1,656,579 1,884,303 2,138,705

37 DSC 2.47 2.83 2.83 2.71 3.05 2.55
38




Equity Capitalization:
without G&T patronage capital

Total margins and equities
Less G&T Patronage capital

Long-term debt
Total

Equity capitalization ratio

Equity Capitalization:
with G&T patronage capital

Total margins and equities
Long-term debt
Total

Equity capitalization ratio

Equity to Total Assets:

with G&T patronage capital

Total margins and equities
Total assets

Equity to total asset ratio

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Equity Capitalization
November 30, 2015

Exhibit K
page 7 of 7

Witness: Jim Adkins

Test Calendar Year
Year
Proposed 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
3_7,973,4 10 42,969,503 42,864,919 40,094,172 31,322,996 37,000,392 34,652,023
23,066,206 23,066,206 20,577,049 17,620,030 15,255,770 12,555,707 11,042,229
14,907,204 19,903,297 22,287,870 22,474,142 16,067,226 24,444 685 23,609,794
47,923,913 47,923,913 43,857,616 42,813,061 35,722,364 37,921,171 37,526,041
62,831,117 67,827,210 66,145,486 65,287,203 51,789,590 62,365,856 61,135,835
24% 29% 34% 34% 31% 39% 39%
37,973,410 42,969,503 42,864,919 40,094,172 31,322,996 37,000,392 34,652,023
47,923,913 47,923,913 43,857,616 42,813,061 35,722,364 37,921,171 37,526,041
85,897,323 90,893,416 86,722,535 82,907,233 67,045,360 74,921,563 72,178,064
44% 47% 49% 48% 47% 49% 48%
37,973,410 42,969,503 42,864,919 40,094,172 31,322,996 37,000,392 34,652,023
91,086,437 100,240,172 96,904,768 93,207,169 77,308,129 85,721,370 82,033,415
42% 43% 44% 43% 41% 43% 42%
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Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169
Reconciliation of Rate Base and Capital
November 30, 2015

Reconciliation of Rate Base and Capital used to determine revenue requirements
are as follows:

Equity Capitalization, with G&T capital credits $ 90,893,416
G&T capital credits (23,066,206)
Equity, excluding G&T capital credits 67,827,210

Reconciling items:
Capital credits from associated organizations

(Allocated but unpaid) (1,732,446)
Working capital requirements 991,384
Material and supplies, 13 month average 412,083
Prepayments, 13 month average 151,813
Cash and temporary investments (5,070,910)
Accounts receivable (3,493,030)
Material and supplies - ~(407,597)
Prepayments (917,473)
Deferred charges (774,743)
Accumulated operating provisions 3,538,956
Accounts payable 3,152,263
Short term borrowings -
Consumer deposits 1,223,581
Accrued expenses 1,348,675

Net Rate Base $ 66,249,766




. ST ATYIOEIT ANTEN N7 AT T IV nfzcc Page 1
04/15/2016  1:42:24 PM (eneral Ledger
Chart of Accounts
Div Account Description
—(T 107.2 CONST WORK IN PROGRESS
0 107.53 WK IN PROG-RADIO TOWER @ ROCKHOLD
0 107.8 WK IN PROG-GRAY OFFICE ADDITION
0 108.6 ACCUM PROV-DEPR OF DIST PT
0 108.7 ACCUM PROV-DEPR OF TRANS
0 108.7) ACCUM PROV-DEPR OF COMMUN EQU!I
0 108.72 ACCUM PROV-DEPR OR GRAY OFF
0 108.73 ACCUM PROV-DEPR FOR OTHIER
[¢] 108.8 RETIREMENT WORK IN PROGRESS
0 123.11 PATRON CAPITAL-EAST KY RECC
0 123.12 PATRON CAPITAL-KY RECC-KAEC
0 123.14 PATRON CAPITAL-STATEWIDE RECC-UUS
0 123.15 PATRON CAPITAL-ASSOC COOQP-CFC
[§] 123.16 PATRON CAPITAL-NISC
0 123.17 PATRON CAPITAL-FEDERATED INS
0 123.18 PATRON CAPITAL-COBANK
0 123.19 PATRON CAPITAL-CRC
0 123.22 INVEST IN CAP TERM CERT CFC
0 123.23 OTHER INVEST IN ASSOC ORGAN
0 123.24 INVEST-ENVISION
i 2325 INVEST-COBANK
0 123.26 INVEST-ASSOC COMP E KY MEMBER
i 123.29 INVEST-CRC
0 1233 INVLEST-CFC MBR CAP SECURITIES
4} 128.0 OTHER SPEC FDS-DEFERR COMP
¢} 1281 SPEC FDS RESERVE-DEFERR COMP
0 131.12 CASH-GENERAL COMMERCIAL
0 131.13 CASH-COMMERCIAL BANK CUMBLERLAND
0 13115 CASH-E ACCOUNT-COMMERCIAL BANK
[ 131.25 CASH-CAPITAL CREDITS COMMIERCIAL
V] 134.0 SPECIAL DEPOSITS
0 134.1 SPEC DEPOSIT-WATER DEPOSIT TOTZ
¢ 135.0 WORKING FUNDS
Q 136.0 TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS
0 1420 CONSUMER ACCOUNTS
0 143.0 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(4} 1442 ACCUM PROV UNCOLL CONS ACCTS
0 14421 ACCURAL QF BAD DEBTS
0 134.0 MATERIALS-SUPPLIES-ELEC
¢ 1541 MATERIALS-SUPPLIES-FUEL
0 165.12 PREP INS BARB INS AGCY VARIOUS
0 165.13 PREP INS BARB INS AGCY AUTO
0 163.14 PREPAID INS-DIRECTOQORS LiA
Q 165.4 PREPAID GPS FOR TRUCKS

Exhibit M
Page 1 of 5



~ CUMBERLAND VALLEY """

04/15/2016  1:42:24 PM General Ledger
Chart of Accounts
Div Account Description
o 165.5 PREPAID FOR UNIFORMS
U 171.0 INT AND DIVIDEND RECEIC CFC
0 186.3 MISC DEF DEBITS-RS PREPAYMENT
0 200.1 MEMBERSHIPS ISSUES
( 2011 PATRONS CAPITAL CREDITS
0 208.0 DONATED CAPITAL
0 2150 ACCUM OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
0 217.0 Capital Credit Unclaimed
0 2171 Capital Credit Retire No check
0 219.1 OPERATING MARGINS
0 219.2 NONOPERATING MARGINS
0 224.14 OTHER LONG TERM DEBT-NCSC
0 224.15 OTHER LONG TERM DEBT-COBANK
0 2243 LONG-TERM DEBT-CONST NOTE EXEC
0 22433 1T DEBT-FFB CONST NOTE EXEC
0 224.45 FFB NOTES EXECUTED-CONST DEBIT
0 2246 ADV PMTS UNAPPLIED - L-T DEBT
0 228.3 ACCUM PROV FOR PENS & BEN
0 2321 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE-GENERAL
0 23237 ACCTS PAYABLE-FLOWER FUND
§ 2350 CONSUMER DEPOSITS
Y 2351 CONSUMER DEPOSITS-CATV
0 236.1 ACC PROPERTY TAXES
0 236.2 ACC US SOC SEC TAX-UNEMPLO
0] 236.4 ACC ST SS TAX-UNEMPLOYMENT
0 236.5 ACC ST SALES TAX-CONSUMERS
0 236.51 ACC STATE SALES TAX-OTHER
0 236.54 ACCR FRANCHISE TAX-CUMBERLAND
0 236.65 ACCR SCHOOL TAX
0 237.1 INT ACC-REA CONST OBLIGATION
0 237.25 INTEREST ACCRUED NCSC
0 237.6 ACC INT ON CONSUMER DEPOSITS
0 2411 TAX COLL PAYABLE-STATE INC
0 241.15 TAX COLL PAYABLE-WHITLEY OCCUP
0 24117 TAX COLL PAYABLE-LESLIE OCCUP
0 2412 TAX COLL PAYABLE-KNOX OCCUP
0 24231 OTH CURR-ACC LIAB=SICK LEAVLE
¢ 242.32 OTH CURR-ACC LIAB - VACATION
0 2523 ADV CONST REFUNDABLE
¢ 2333 OTH DEFERR CR-ADV FOR CONST
0 2535 ADV FOR CONST-LONNIE COLLETT DEC'3-10YR
1 25351 ADV FOR CONST-CONNIE BENNETT OCT'15-10Y!}
2 253.52 ADV FOR CONST-RONALD CANADA DEC'15-10Y)
3 253.53 ADV FOR CONST-BRETT BOWMAN OC1"15-10YR

Page 2

— 1
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CUMBERLAND VALLEY RECC

Page 3

/152016 1:42:24 PM General Ledger
Chart of Accounts
Div Account Description
0 3601 LAND RIGHTS

0 3620 STATION EQUIPMENT

0 36201 TS2 STATION EQUIPMENT

0 3640 POLES-TOWERS-FIXTURES

0 3650 OVERHEAD COND AND DEVICES

0 3670 UNDERGROUND COND AND DEVICES
0 3680 LINE TRANSFORMERS

0 3690 SERVICES

0 3700 METERS

I 37001 2-3 WIRE METERS-SOLID STATE

2 37002 DEMAND METERS-SOLID STATE

0 370 TURTLES

0 37011 TURTLE Ul

0 37012 METER W/DISCONNECT SWITCH
137003 METER W/TS2

2 37014 METER COMBO (W/TS2 & DISCONNECT SWITCH
o 37045 REMOTE SERVICE SWITCHES

6 310 INSTALL ON CONSUMERS PREMISES

0 3891 LAND RTS-GEN PLT-OFF SITI GRA

0 3892 LAND CUMBERLAND OFFICE

0 3900 STRUCTURES CUMBER. RADIO SHACK
0 3900 STRUCTURES-IMPROVE-GRAY OFF

0 39015 STRUCTURES-IMPROVE-GRAY ENG

0 39017 STRUCT-IMPROV GRAY TRANS BLDG
0 390.18 STRUCT-IMPROV GRAY TRANS #2 BLDG
0 390.19 STRUCT-GENERATOR BLDG-GRAY

0 3902 STRUCTURES CUMBERLAND OFFICE

0 39021 STRUCTURES CUMBERLAND GARAGE
0 3910 OFFICE FURN AND EQUIP

0 3920 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT

0 3940 TOOLS-SHOP-GARAGE EQUIP

0 3950 LABORATORY EQUIPMENT

0 3960 POWER OPERATED EQUIPMENT

0 3970 COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT

0 3980 MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT

0 4036 DEPT EXP-DISTRIBUTION PLANT

0 4037 DEPT EXP-GENERAL PLANT

0 408.0 TAXES-OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES
A 4192 DIVIDEND INCOME - CRC

0 4193 INT DIV INCOME-P AND P INVEST

0 4194 INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INC CFC

0 4230 GEN-TRANS COOP CAPITAL CREDITS

0 4240 OTH CAP CR-PATRON CAP ALLOC

0 4261 DONATIONS

Exhibit M
Page 3 of 5
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CUMBERLAND VALLEY RECC

Page 4

vt 10r2016 liasica rv
Account Description
426.11 DONATIONS-SCHOLARSHIPS
426.12 DONATIONS-MEMBERSHIPS, DUES
4271 INT ON REA CONST LOAN
427.15 INT ON FFB CONST LOAN )
427.2 INT ON OTHER LONG TERM DEBT CFC
427.25 INT ON OTHER LONG TERM DEBT NCSC
427.26 INT ON OTHER LLONG TERM DEBT-COBANK
431.0 INTEREST EXP-OTHER
431.1 INT EXP-CFC LINE OF CREDIT
440.1 RESIDENTIAL SALES-RURAL FARM
440.11 RESIDENTIAL SALES-ENVIROWATTS
4421 COMM-INDUST SALE-SMALL
4422 COMM-INDUST SALES-LARGE
450.0 FORFEITED DISCOUNTS
451.0 MISC SERVICE REVENUES
454.0 RENT FROM ELECTRIC PROPERTY
436.0 OTHER ELEC REVENUES
3550 PURCHASED POWER
582.0 STATION EQUIPMENT
583.0 OVERHEAD LINE EXPENSE
584.0 UNDERGROUND LINE EXP
586.0 METER EXPENSES
387.0 CONSUMER INSTALL EXPENSES
588.0 MISC DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE
589.0 RENTS
592 MAINT OF STATION EQUIPMENT
593.0 MAINT OF OVERHEAD LINES
593.01 RIGHT OF WAY CUTTING
593.02 RIGHT OF WAY MATERIALS
393.03 RIGHT-OF-WAY BUSHHOGGING
593.05 PCB MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
595.0 MAINT OF LINE TRANSFORMERS
397.0 MAINTENANCE OF METERS
597.1 MAINT OF METERS-METER TEST FEE
5980 MAINT OF MISC DISTR PLANT
902.0 METER READING EXPENSES
903.0 CONSUMER RECORDS-COLLECT EXP
903.1 CONS REC-COLL EXP-OVER-UNDER
504.0 UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS
908.0 CUSTOM ASSIST EXP
909.0 INFO AND INST ADV EXP
920.0 ADMIN AND GENERAL SALARIES
921.0 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EXPENSES

9230

OUTSIDE SERVICES EMPLOYED

General Ledger
Chart of Accounts

Exhibit M
Page 4 of 5
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- ) CUMBERLAND VALLEY RECC
v 1212010 14ziza v General Ledgel‘ i

Chart of Accounts

Div Account . Description
) 929.0 DUPLICATE CHARGES
¢ 930.1 MISC GENERAL EXP-DIRECTORS EXP
0 930.11 GENERAL ADVERTISING EXP
0 930.2 MISC GENERAL EXPENSE-OTHER
0 930.3 MISC GEN EXP-CAPITAL CREDITS
0 9304 MISC GEN EXP-ANNUAL MEETING
0 932.0 MAINT OF GEN PLANT
0 998.1 Profit Clearing Operating

0 998.2 Profit Cleuring Non Operating
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Gray, Kentucky
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ALAN M. ZUMSTEIN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

1032 CHETFORD DRIVE MEMBER

LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40509 * AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA'S
(859) 264-7147 ) «KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CPA’S
zumstein@windstream.net . *INDIANA SOCIETY OF CPA’S

* AICPA DIVISION FOR FIRMS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Cumberland Valley Electric
Gray, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

[ have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cumberland Valley Electric, which comprise
the balance sheets as of May 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of revenue and
comprehensive income, changes in equities, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. I conducted
my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion. -



To the Board of Directors
Cumberland Valley Electric

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial po ion of Cumberland Valley Electric as of May 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their
operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued a report dated July 21, 2015, on
my consideration of Cumberland Valley Electric’s internal control over financial reporting and my tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Alin M. Zumitein

Alan M. Zumstein, CPA
July 21, 2015
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Balance Sheets, May 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Electric Plant, at original cost:
In service 98,996,776 96,752,015
Under construction 174,020 578,301
99,170,796 97,330,316
Less accumulated depreciation 28 NRQ 578 34,169,335
64,101,218 63,160,981
Investments in Associated Organizations 24,797,194 22,246,572
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,631 1,549,583
Accounts receivable, less allowance for
2015 0f $132,131 and 2014 0f $198,491 2,887,571 3,349,780
Other receivables 445,292 172,170
Material and supplies, at average cost 474,287 575,240
Other current assets 684,678 689,566
6,213,459 6 334,339
Accelerated Pension Payments 797,961 858,945
Total 95,909,832 92,602,837
Members' Equities and Liabilities
Members' Equities:
Memberships 431,635 430,200
Patronage capital 41,852,324 39,278,540
Other equities 2,237,079 2,235,303
Accumulated other comprehensive income (826,504) (854,804)
43,694,534 41 NRG 239
Long Term Debt 41,160,215 40,185,578
Accumulated Postretirement Benefits 3,488,373 2271,726
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,511,324 2,852,293
Current portion of long term debt 2,000,000 2,000,000
Consumer deposits 1,222,747 1,357,571
Accrued expenses 1,689,132 1,604,711
7,423,203 7,814,575
Consumer Advances 143,507 141,719
Total € 95,909,832 $ 92,602,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

3



Exhibit N
Page 6 of 19

Cumberland Valley Electric
Statements of Revenue and Comprehensive Income
for the years ended May 31, 2015 and 2014

Operating Revenues
Sale of electric energy

Other « ctric revenues 1,664,049 1,674,986
44 0% SR80 47,248,209
Operating Expenses:
Cost of power 35,362,547 36,371,745
Distribution - operations 1,410,540 1,411,200
Distribution - maintenance 2,779,976 2,682,015
Consumer accounts 1,980,417 1,831,927
Customer services 131,436 153,482
Administrative and general 1,570,719 1,382,382
Depreciation, excluding $270,448 in 2015 and
$307,098 in 2014 charged to clearing accounts 3,354,281 3,177,095
Taxes 56,178 51,441
46,646,094 47,061,287
Operating margins before interest charges 252,495 186,922
Interest Charges:
Long-term debt 372,503 364,111
Other 1,758 2,550
374,261 366,661
Operating margins after interest charges (121,766) (179,739)
Nonoperating Margins
Interest income 124,310 120,344
Others (17,938) (9,713)
106,372 110 A1
Patronage Capital Credits 2,589,164 3,050,756
Net Margins 2,573,770 2,981,648
Other comprehensive income
Accumulated postretirement benefits 28,300 52,620
Net Comprehensive Income $ 2,602 n70 $ 3,034,268

015

$ 45,234,540

2014

$ 45,573,223

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Statement of Changes in Members' Equity
for the years ended May 31,2015 and 2014

Accumulated
Other Total
Patronage Other Comprehensive ~ Members'
Memberships Capital Equity Income Equity

Balance - Beginning of year

Comprehensive income:

$ 430,680 $36,296,899 $2,223,418 § (907,424) $38,043,573

Net margins 2,981,648 2,981,648
Postretirement benefit obligation
Amortization 52,620
Adjustments - 52,620
Total comprehensive income 3,034,268
Net change in memberships (480) (480)
Refunds of capital credits (N @)
Other equities 11,885 11885
Balance - May 31, 2014 430,200 39,278,540 2,235,303 (854,804) 41,089,239
Comprehensive income:
Net margins 2,573,770 2,573,770
Postretirement benefit obligation
Amortization 52,620
Adjustments (24,320) 28,300
Total comprehensive income 2,602,070
Net change in memberships 1,435 1,435
Refunds of capital credits 14 14
Other equities 1774 1,776

Balance - May 31, 2015

$ 431,635 $41,852324 $2237.079 § (826,504) $43,694,534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended May 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net margins
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation:
Charged to expense
Charged to clearing accounts
Patronage capital credits assigned
Accumulated postretirement benefits
Past service pension costs
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Material and supplies
Other assets
Payables
Consumer deposits and advances
Accrued expenses

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Plant additions
Plant removal costs
Salvage recovered from retired plant
Receipts from other investments, net

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase in memberships
Increase in other equities
Refund of capital credits
Advances of long term debt
Payments on long term debt
Advance payments on long term debt

Net increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flows information:
Interest paid on long-term debt

2015

$ 2,573,770

3,354,281
270,448
(2,589,164)
144,947
60,984

189,087
100,953
4,888
(340,969)
(133,036)
84,421

3,720,610
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2014

$ 2,981,648

3,177,095
307,098
(3,050,756)
154,669
55,902

(75,075)
308,066
8,283

(308,144)
103,615
127,772

3,790,173

(3,988,972)

(5,723,815)

(645,012) (596,884)
69,018 197,875
38,542 58,981

(4,526,424) (6,063,843)
1,435 (480)

1,776 11,885

14 (7)
3,000,000 3,900,000
(1,956,804) (1,891,930)
(68,559) (65775)
977,867 1,954,233
172,048 (319,437)
1,549,583 1,869,020

$ 1,721,631 $ 1,549,583
$ 336,737 $ 360,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cumberland Valley Electric (“Cumberland Valley”) maintains its records in accordance with the policies
prescribed or permitted by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (“PSC”) and the United States
Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service (“RUS™), which conform in all material respects with
generally accepted accounting principles. The more significant of these policies are as follows:

Electric Plant Electric plant is stated at original cost, which is the cost when first dedicated to public
service. Such amount includes applicable supervisory and overhead cost including any construction period
interest and taxes. There was no interest required to be capitalized during the year.

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is charged to operating
expense. The cost of replacement of depreciable property units, as distinguished from minor items, is
charged to electric plant. The units of property replaced or retired, including cost of removal, net of any
salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation for distribution plant. Gain or loss is recognized on
disposition of general plant items. Electric plant consists of:

2015 2014
Distribution plant $91,077,148 $89,116,505
General plant 7,919,628 7,635,510
Total $98,996,776 $96,752,015

Depreciation Provision has been made for depreciation on the basis of the estimated lives of assets, using
the straight-line method. Depreciation rates range from 2.33% to 5.44%, with a composite rate of 3.37% for
distribution plant. General plant rates are as follows:

Structures and improvements 2.5%
Transportation equipment 11.3%
Office furniture and equipment 5.0%
Other general plant 4.0% - 6.0%

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cumberland Valley considers all short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Off Balance Sheet Risk Cumberland Valley has off-balance sheet risk in that they maintain cash deposits
in financial institutions in excess of the amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) at various time during the month. These financial institutions have strong credit ratings and
management believes that the credit risk related to the accounts is minimal. Cumberland Valley uses Insured
Cash Sweep (“ICS”) services for FDIC coverage for all accounts.

Revenue Cumberland Valley records revenue as billed to its consumers based on monthly meter-reading
cycles. All consumers are required to pay a refundable deposit, however, it may be waived under certain
circumstances. Cumberland Valley’s sales are concentrated in an eight county area of southeastern
Kentucky. Consumers must pay their bill within 20 days of billing, then are subject to disconnect after
another 10 days. Accounts are written off when they are deemed to be uncollectible. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts is based on the aging of receivables. “There were no customers whose individual
account balance exceeded 10% of outstanding accounts receivable at May 31, 2015 or 2014.

Cumberland Valley is required to collect, on behalf of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, sales taxes based on
6 percent of gross sales from non-residential consumers, a 3 percent school tax from certain counties on most
.gross sales, and franchise fees in certain cities. Cumberland Valley’ policy is to exclude sales tax from
revenue when collected and expenses when paid and instead, record collection and payment of sales taxes
through a liability account.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Cost of Power Cumberland Valley is one of sixteen (16) members of East Kentucky Power Cooperative
(“East Kentucky”). Under a wholesale power agreement, Cumberland Valley is committed to purchase its
electric power and energy requirements from East Kentucky until 2051. The rates charged by East Kentucky
are subject to approval of the PSC. The cost of purchased power is recorded monthly during the period in
which the energy is consumed, based upon billings from East Kentucky. The power bill includes a fuel
adjustment and environmental surcharge component that is passed on to Cumberland Valley’s customers
using a methodology prescribed by the Commission.

Fair Value Measurements The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC 820,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received
for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal, or most advantageous, market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Fair
Values Measurements Topic establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs when possible.
The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measure and unobservable.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying amounts of Cumberland Valley’s cash and cash equivalents, other receivables, investments,
inventories, other assets, trade accounts payable, accrued expenses and liabilities, and other liabilities
approximate fair value due to their short maturity. Investments in associated organizations are not considered
a financial instrument because they represent nontransferable interests in associated organizations. Other
assets are not considered financial instruments because they represent activities specifically related to
Cumberland Valley. Long term debt cannot be traded in the market, and is specifically for electric
cooperatives and, therefore, a value other than its outstanding principal cannot be determined.

Cumberland Valley may, and also does, invest idle funds in local banks and in National Rural Utilities
Cooperative Finance Corporation (“CFC”) commercial paper. These investments are classified as held-to-
maturity in accordance with provisions of the Financial Instruments Topic of FASB ASC 320. Held-to-
maturity securities are presented at amortized cost. The fair value of held-to-maturity securities
approximates cost at 2015 and 2014.

Estimates  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Advertising Cumberland Valley expenses advertising costs as incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Risk Management Cumberland Valley is exposed to various forms of losses of assets associated with, but
not limited to, fire, personal liability, theft, vehicular accidents, errors and omissions, fiduciary
responsibility, workers compensation, etc. Each of these areas is covered through the purchase of
commercial insurance.

Income Tax Status Cumberland Valley is exempt from federal and state income taxes under provisions of
Section 501(c)(12). Accordingly, the financial statements for Cumberland Valley include no provision for
income taxes. Cumberland Valley’s accounting policy provides that a tax expense/benefit from an uncertain
tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon
examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits. Management believes Cumberland Valley has no uncertain tax positions resulting in an accrual of tax
expense or benefit. Cumberland Valley recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. Cumberland Valley did not recognize any interest or
penalties during the years ended May 31, 2015 and 2014. Cumberland Valley’s income tax return is subject
to possible examination by taxing authorities until the expiration of related statues of limitations on the
return, which is generally three years.

Comprehensive Income  Comprehensive income includes both net margin and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income represents the change in funded status of the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation.

Subsequent Events Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 21, 2015, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. There were no significant subsequent events to report.

Note 2. Investments in Associated Organizations

Investments in associated organizations consist of:

2015 2014
East Kentucky, patronage capital $23,066,206 $20,577,050
CFC, patronage capital - 193,937 193,916
CFC, CTC's 850,942 850,942
Others 686,109 A74,664
Total $24,797,194 $22,246,572

Cumberland Valley records patronage capital assigned by associated organizations in the year in which such
assignments are received. The Capital Term Certificates (“CTCs”) of CFC are recorded at cost. The CTCs
were purchased from CFC as a condition of obtaining long-term financing. The CTCs bear interest at 3% and
5% and are scheduled to mature at varying times from 2020 to 2080.

Note 3. Patronage Capital

Patronage capital consisted of:

2015 2014
Assigned to date $44,522,832 $41,787,218
Assignable margins 806,690 968,533
Retirements to date (3,477,198) (3,477,211)
Total $41,852,324 $39,278,540
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Patronage Capital, continued

Under provisions of the long-term debt agreement, return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited
to amounts which would not allow the total equities and margins to be less than 30% of total assets, except
that distributions may be made to estates of deceased patrons. The debt agreement provides, however, that
should such distributions to estates not exceed 25% of the net margins for the next preceding year,
Cumberland Valley may distribute the difference between 25% and the payments made to such estates. At
May 31, 2013, the equities and margins were 46% of total assets.

Note 4. Long Term Debt
All assets, except vehicles, are pledged as collateral on the long term debt to RUS, Federal Financing Bank

(FFB), National Bank for Cooperatives (CoBank), CFC, and National Cooperative Services Corporation
(NCSC) which is an affiliate of CFC, under a joint mortgage agreement. First mortgage notes consist of:

2015 2014
RUS, 0.125% to 5.375% $3,267,663 $3,398,042
Advance payments (1,414,281) (1,345,723)
1,853,382 2,052,319
FFB, 0.039%t0 2.327% 37,247,776 35,536,335
CoBank 1.86% to 3.68% 2,316,300 2,545,130
NCSC, 3.05% to 4.30% 1,742,757 2,051,794
43,160,215 42,185,578
Less current portion 2,000,000 2,000,000
Long term portion $41,160,215 $40,185,578

The long term debt payable is due in quarterly and monthly installments of varying amounts through 2039.
During November 2010, $3,839,834 of RUS loans were refinanced with lower interest rate notes from
NCSC. Cumberland Valley has loan funds available from FFB in the amount of $7,708,000 at May 31, 2015.
These funds will be used for future plant additions. RUS assesses a fee of 25 basis points to administer the
FFB loans.

As of May 31, 2015, annual current principal due for the next five years are as follows: 2016 - $2,000,000;
2017 - $2,050,000; 2018 - $2,100,000; 2019 - $2,150,000; 2020 - $2,200,000.

Note 5. Short Term Borrowings
Cumberland Valley has executed short term line of credit agreements with both CFC and CoBank in the

amount of $5,000,000 each. At May 31, 2015 Cumberland Valley had repaid all advances against this line of
credit.

10
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6. Pension Plan

All eligible employees of Cumberland Valley participate in the NRECA Retirement and Security Plan
(“R&S Plan™), a defined benefit pension plan qualified under section 401 and tax exempt under section
501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a multiemployer plan under the accounting standards. The Plan
sponsor’s identification number is 53-0116145 and the Plan Number is 333. A unique characteristic of a
multiemployer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are available to pay benefits of
any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for participating employers. This means that
assets contributed by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating
employers.

Cumberland Valley’s contributions to the R&S Plan in 2015 and 2014 represent less than 5 percent of the
total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. Cumberland Valley Energy made
contributions to the plan of $282,138 in 2015 and $278,909 in 2014. There have been no significant changes
that affect the comparability of 2015 and 2014.

In the R&S Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under the
Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan assets are
not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the R&S Plan was between 65
percent and 80 percent funded at January 1, 2014 and 2012 based on the PPA funding target and PPA
actuarial value of assets on those dates. Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the R&S Plan,
funding improvement plans and surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are
determined each year as part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan
experience.

At the December 2012 meeting of the I&FS Committee of the NRECA Board of Directors, the Committee
approved an option to allow participating cooperatives in the Retirement Security (“R&S”) Plan ( a defined
benefit multiemployer pension plan) to make a prepayment and reduce future required contributions. The
prepayment amount is a cooperative share, as of January 1, 2014, of future contributions required to fund the
R&S Plan’s unfunded value of benefits earned to date using Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The
prepayment amount will typically equal approximately 2.5 times a cooperative’s annual R&S Plan required
contribution as of January 1, 2013. After making the prepayment, for most cooperatives the billing rate is
reduced by approximately 25%, retroactive to January 1, 2013. The 25% differential in billing rates is
expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes in interest rates, asset returns and other
plan experience different from that expected, plan assumptions changes, and other factors may have an
impact on the differential in billing rates and the 15 year period.

Two prepayment options were available to participating cooperatives:

1. Use current assets to make the prepayment over a period of not more than 4 years, or,
2. Borrow funds sufficient to make the prepayment in a lump sum, with the prepayment of the
borrowed amount determined by the loan’s amortization schedule.

On February 14, 2013, RUS issued a memorandum to all of its borrowers regarding the proper accounting
treatment of the R&S Plan prepayment. RUS stipulated that the prepayment shall be recorded as a long term
prepayment in Account 186, Miscellaneous Deferred Debits. This prepaid expense shall be amortized to
Account 926, Employee Pensions and Benefits, over a ten year period. Alternatively, RUS borrowers may
calculate the amortization period by subtracting the cooperative’s average age of its workforce as provided
by NRECA from the cooperative’s normal retirement age under the R&S Plan, up to a maximum period of
20 years. If the entity choses to finance the prepayment, interest expense associated with the loan shall be
recorded in the year incurred as is required under the RUS Uniform System of Accounts (“USoA™).
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Notes to Financial Statements
Note 6. Pension Plan, continued

Section 6.13(e) of the RUS Loan Contract limits the amount of unsecured debt that a borrower may incur to
15% on Net Utility Plant if the equity level of the borrower, after considering such unsecured debt, is below
30% of its Total Assets, unless the borrower obtains RUS consent. RUS will consider any unsecured debt
associated with the R&S Plan prepayment to be “Permitted Debt” and accordingly, it will be excluded from
the application of Section 6.13(e). During May, 2013, the Corporation made a prepayment of $914,847 to the
R&S Plan. The amount is being amortized over 15 years.

Cumberland Valley also sponsors a Retirement Savings Plan available to all eligible employees. The plan
allows participants to make contributions by salary reduction, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Cumberland Valley makes contributions of 10% for non-salaried employees and 5% for
salaried employees of the participant’s base compensation. Contributions for both plans were $273,917 for
2015 and $253,357 for 2014.

Note 7. Postretirement Benefits

Cumberland Valley sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides medical insurance coverage for retired
employees and their spouses. Cumberland Valley pays all the premiums for retirees and their dependents. For
measurement purposes, an annual rate of increase of 8.0% in 2014, then decreasing by 0.5% per year until
5% per year, in the per capita cost of covered health care benefit was assumed. The discount rate used in
determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 5.0% in 2015 and 2014.

The funded status of the plan is as follows:

2015 2014
($3,488,373) (83,371,726)
Plan assets at fair value - -

Total ($3,488,373) ($3,371,726)

Projected benefit obligation

The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost are as follows:

2015 2014

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $3,371,726 $3,269,677
Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost 51,878 57,345

Interest cost 171,502 166,035

Net periodic benefit cost 223,380 223,380
Benefits paid (131,053) (121,331)
Actuarial gain/loss 24,320 -
Benefit obligation at end of year $3,488,373 $3,371,726

Projected retiree benefit payments for the next five years are expected to be as follows: 2016 - $109,333;
2017 - $107,661; 2018 - $105,034; 2019 - $88,817; 2020 - $79,452.

Note 8. Related Party Transactions

Several of the Directors of Cumberland Valley and its President & CEO are on the Boards of Directors of
various associated organizations.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Commitments

Cumberland Valley has various other agreements outstanding with local contractors. Under these
agreements, the contractors will perform certain construction and maintenance work at specified hourly rates
or unit cost, or on an as needed basis. The duration of these contracts are one to two years.

Note 10. Environmental Contingency

Cumberland Valley from time to time is required to work with and handle PCBs, herbicides, automotive
fluids, lubricants, and other hazardous materials in the normal course of business. As a result, there is the
possibility that environmental conditions may arise which would require Cumberland Valley to incur cleanup
costs. The likelihood of such an event, or the amount of such costs, if any, cannot be determined at this time.
However, management does not believe such costs, if any, would materially affect Cumberland Valley’s
financial position or its future cash flows.

Note 11. Labor Force

Approximately 80% of Cumberland Valley’s labor force is subject to a collective bargaining agreement. A
four (4) year agreement was negotiated and approved for the period starting September, 2012 between
Cumberland Valley and the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied
Industrial and Service Workers International Union.

Note 12. Contingencies

Cumberland Valley, on occasion, is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. Presently,
there are no such litigations pending.

Note 13. Rate Matters

During January 2015, the PSC approved a rate increase in the amount of $968,000, or approximately a 3%
increase in base revenues.

® ok ok ok ok ok
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ALAN M. ZUMSTEIN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

1032 CHETFORD DRIVE MEMBER
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40509 * AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA’S
(859) 264-7147 *KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CPA’'S
zumstein@windstream.net «INDIANA SOCIETY OF CPA’'S

¢ AICPA DIVISION FOR FIRMS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Cumberland Valley Electric

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Cumberland Valley
Electric, which comprise the balance sheets as of May 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of
revenue and comprehensive income, members’ equities and cash flows for the years then ended, and
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated July 21, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered Cumberland Valley’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cumberland Valley’s internal control.
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cumberland Valley’s internal control.

- A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cumberland Valley’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, I performed test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
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To the Board of Directors
Cumberland Valley Electric

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, [ do not express such an opinion.
The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Rural

Utilities Service, and supplemental lenders, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Alar M. Zumitiin.

Alan M., Zumstein, CPA
July 21, 2015

15

Exhibit N
Page 17 of 19



Exhibit N
Page 18 of 19

ALAN M. ZUMSTEIN
CERTIFIED PUB]I - ACCOUNTANT

1032 CHETFORD DRIVE MEMBER
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40509 * AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA’S
(859) 264-7147 *KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CPA'S
zumstein@windstream.net *INDIANA SOCIETY OF CPA’S

: * AICPA DIVISION FOR FIRMS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Aspects of Contractual
Agreements and Regulatory Requirements for Electric Borrowers

Board of Directors
Cumberlar Valley Electric

Independent Auditor’s Report

I have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Cumberland Valley Electric (“the Cooperative™), which comprise the balance sheet as of May 31,
2015, and the related statements of revenue and comprehensive income, patronage capital, and
changes in cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued my report thereon dated July 21, 2015. In accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, we have also issued my report dated July 21, 2015, on my consideration of the
Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. No reports other
than the reports referred to above and my schedule of findings and recommendations related to my
audit have been furnished to management.

In connection with my audit, nothing came to my attention that caused me to believe that the
Cooperative failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their loan, grant,
and security instruments as set forth in 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy on Audits of Rural Utilities Service
Borrowers, §1773.33 and clarified in the RUS policy memorandum dated February 7, 2015, insofar
as they relate to accounting matters as enumerated below. However, my audit was not directed
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had I performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to my attention regarding the Cooperative’s
noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the
contractual agreements and regulatory requirements, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. In
connection with my audit, I noted no matters regarding the Cooperative's accounting and records to
indicate that the Cooperative did not:

e Maintain adequate and effective accounting procedures;

o Utilize adequate and fair methods for accumulating and recording labor, material,
and overhead costs, and the distribution of these costs to construction, retirement,
and maintenance or other expense accounts;

e Reconcile continuing property records to the controlling general ledger plant
accounts;

e (Clear construction accounts and accrue depreciation on completed construction;

e Record and properly price the retirement of plant;

16



Board of Directors
Cumberland Valley Electric

e Seek approval of the sale, lease, or transfer of capital assets and disposition of
proceeds for the sale or lease of plant, material, or scrap;

¢ Maintain adequate control over material and supplies;

» Prepare accurate and timely Financial and Operating Reports;

e Obtain written RUS approval to enter into any contract for the management,
operation, or maintenance of the borrower’s system if the contract covers all or
substantially all of the electric system;

e Disclose material related party transactions in the financial statements, in
accordance with requirements for related parties in generally accepted accounting
principles;

e Record depreciation in accordance with RUS requirements (“See RUS Bulletin 183-
1, Depreciation Rates and Procedures™);

e Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of deferred debits and
deferred credits, which are listed below; and

e Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of investments, of which
there were none.

The deferred debits are as follows:
Accelerated pension payments $797,961

The deferred credits are as follows:
Consumer advances for construction $143,507

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors,
management, RUS, and supplemental lenders and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distributions is not limited.

Alan M. Zumstein, CPA
July 21, 2015
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Witness: Robert Tolliver
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC
CASE NO. 2016-00169
COMPUTER SOFTWARE PROGRAMS
November 30, 2015

Cumberland Valley has used Microsoft Excel and Word along with Adobe in the preparation of this
Application.



11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

29

Exhibit P
page 1 of 9
Witness: Robert Tolliver
Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169
Annual Meeting Information
November 30, 2015

The most recent Cumberland Valley annual meeting was held June 5, 2015. The
minutes of that annual meeting are attached, along with the information
given to the members attending the annual meeting.

Data for the last five (5) annual meetings are as follows:

Members Members
Year Attending Voting Cost
2015 232 - $ 23,601
2014 298 - 5 32,088
2013 454 - 3 46,238
2012 373 - 3 76,071
2011 379 - $ 65,965
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EXHIBIT R

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc.
Gray, KY

Case No. 20.6-00.69

COST OF SERVICE STUDY
Test Year -

Twelve Months Ending Novermber 2015

Prepared: March 2016

J. Adkins



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC Exhibit R
Pageiof (4

CASE NO. 2016-00169 Witness: James R Am

OUTLINE

Schedule
A Test Year - Actual & Adjusted
B Functionalization of Expenses
C Funtionalization Footnotes
D Rate Base Functionalized
E Classification of Expenses
F Determination of Demand & Consumer Related Plant Investments
G Allocation of Costs
H Demand & Energy Allocators
| Consumer Allcators
J Unbundled Statement of Operations
K Increase Amounts by Rate Class & Rate Design

L Rate Base for Each Rate Class



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC Exhibit R

CASE NO. 2016-00169 Page 3 _of 4O
ACTUAL TEST YEAR EXPENSES WITH ADJUSTMENTS Witness: Jim Adkins
Schedule A
Test Year Adjustments
Actual Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment Pro Forma
Acct |Description $8SS 1,2&5 3 4,6,87 [8,9,10,&11 12 13 & 15 $SS8S
No. ’
555 |Demand Charges 6,986,348 6,986,348
Energy Charges 26,406,018 (2,818,449) 23,587,569
Load Center Charges 722,360 {17,184) 705,176
Total Purchased Power 34,114,726 - - - - - (2,835,633) 31,279,093
580 |Operations Supv & Eng - -
582 [Station Expense 5,629 27 5,656
583 |Overhead Line Exp. 622,602 2,960 625,562
584 |Underground Line Exp 46,746 222 46,968
586 |[Meter Expense 448,223 2,131 450,354
587 {Consumer Installations 118,166 562 118,728
588 |[Misc. Distribution Exp 162,367 772 163,139
589 [Rents 7,500 36 (1,138) 6,398
Total Operations 1,411,233 6,709 (1,138) - - - - 1,416,804
590 |[Maint Supv & Eng - -
592 |Maint of Station Equip - -
593 [Maint. Overhead Lines 2,547,433 19,029 2,566,463
594 |Maint of Underground Lines - - -
595 |Maint Line Transformers 13,072 98 13,170




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC Exhibif R

CASE NO. 2016-00169 Page ¥ of
ACTUAL TEST YEAR EXPENSES WITH ADJUSTMENTS Witness: Jim Adkins
Schedule A
Test Year Adjustments
Actual Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment Pro Forma

Acct |Description $88S 1,2&5 3 4,6,&7 1|8,9,10,&11 12 13& 15 $88S
596 |Maint of St Lg & Signal Sys - - -
597 |Maintenance of Meters 137,635 1,028 138,663
598 Maint Misc Distrib Plant 183,389 1,370 (2,034) 182,725

Total Distribut Maintenance 2,881,530 21,525 {2,034) - - - - 2,901,021
902 |Meter Reading Expense 173,508 1,625 (523) 174,610
903 |Cons Recds & Collections 1,661,185 15,554 1,676,738
904 |Uncollectible Accounts 176,961 1,657 178,618

Total Consumer Accounts 2,011,654 18,835 (523) 2,029,966
908 |Customer Assist. Expense 75,190 1,075 76,265
909 |Customer Information Exp 39,864 570 (432) 40,002

Total Customer Service 115,054 1,645 (432) 116,267

Total of Above 40,534,196 48,714 (4,127) - - - (2,835,633) 37,743,150
920 |Administrative Salaries 875,442 13,423 888,865
921 |Office Supplies 111,055 111,055
923 |Outside Services 71,607 17,788 89,395
928 |Regulatory Comm Expenses 10,691 10,691
925 |[Injuries & Damages - -
929 |Duplicate Charges {42,650) (42,650)




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC
CASE NO. 2016-00169
ACTUAL TEST YEAR EXPENSES WITH ADJUSTMENTS

xhibit R
Page -S_E of 4O

Witness: Jim Adkins

Schedule A
Test Year Adjustments
Actual Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment Pro Forma
Acct |Description $SSS 1,2&5 3 4,6,&7 18,9,10,&11 12 13& 15 $58S
930.1 |Director Fees 179,483 (68,173) 111,310
930.1 |General Advertising Exp 75,546 (1,144) 74,402
930.2|Misc. General Exp-Other 87,210 (2,169) 85,041
930.3 |Capital Credits 13 13
930.4 |Annual Meetings 25,840 25,840
932 |Maintenance of General Plant 117,369 (742) 116,627
Total Admin & General 1,511,605 13,423 (742) (1,144) (52,554) - - 1,470,588
403 |[Deprec. Distribution Plant 3,299,174 219,610 3,518,784
403 |Deprec. General Plant 186,245 186,245
Total Depreciation 3,485,419 - 219,610 - - - - 3,705,029
408 |Taxes Other Than Income Tax 56,395 56,395
426.1 |Donations 6,181 (6,181) 0]
426.1 |Donations - Scholarships 4,500 (4,500) -
423.1 |Donations - dues 1,950 (1,950) 0
Total Miscellaneous 69,027 - - (12,631) - - - 56,396
Total Interest on LTD 506,126 344,521 850,646
Total Short Term Interest 3,796 3,796
Total Costs 46,110,168 62,137 214,741 330,746 (52,554) - (2,835,633)| 43,829,605




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Exhibit R

Case No. 2016-00169 Witnode —=- 0 ==
. Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements
Allocation Pro Forma Power Substa-

Acct |Description Basis SIS Supply Station Lines
No.
555 |Demand Charges Direct Assign 6,986,348 6,986,348

Energy Charges Direct Assign 23,587,569 23,587,569 -

Load Center Charges Direct Assign 705,176 705,176

Total Purchased Power 31,279,093 31,279,093
580 |Operations Supv & Eng Prop. Exp(b) -
582 [Station Expense Direct Assign 5,656 5,656
583 |Overhead Line Exp. Plant Bal (a) 625,562 551,027
584 |Underground Line Exp Plant Bal (a) 46,968 41,372
586 |Meter Expense Direct Assign 450,354
587 |Consumer Installations Direct Assign 118,728
588 [Misc. Distribution Exp Prop. Exp(b) 163,139 740 77,484
589 |Rents Prop. Exp(b) 6,398 29 3,039

Total Operations 1,416,804 - 6,424 672,922
590 [Maint Supv & Eng Prop. Exp(b) -
592 |Maint of Station Equip Direct Assign -
593 [Maint. Overhead Lines Plt Bal (a) 2,566,463 2,260,674
594 [Maint of Underground Lines |Plt Bal (a) -
595 |Maint Line Transformers Direct Assign 13,170
596 |Maint of St Lg & Signal Sys Direct Assign -




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Exhibit R

Case No. 2016-00169 o F200 L of SO
Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements
Allocation Trans Cons. & Acct| Outdoor

Acct |Description Basis former Services Meters Services Lighting |
No.
555 |Demand Charges Direct Assign

Energy Charges Direct Assign

Load Center Charges Direct Assign

Total Purchased Power
580 |Operations Supv & Eng Prop. Exp(b)
582 |Station Expense Direct Assign
583 {[Overhead Line Exp. Plant Bal (a) 74,534
584 |Underground Line Exp Plant Bal (a) 5,596
586 |Meter Expense Direct Assign 450,354
587 |Consumer Installations Direct Assign 118,728
588 |[Misc. Distribution Exp Prop. Exp(b) 10,481 58,905 15,529
589 [Rents Prop. Exp(b) - 411 2,310 609

Total Operations - 91,022 511,569 - 134,866
590 [Maint Supv & Eng Prop. Exp(b)
592 |Maint of Station Equip Direct Assign
593 |Maint. Overhead Lines Pit Bal (a) 305,789
594 |Maint of Underground Lines [Pt Bal (a) -
595 |Maint Line Transformers Direct Assign 13,170
596 |Maint of St Lg & Signal Sys Direct Assign




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Exhibit R

Case No. 2016-00169 208 T of SO
Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements
Allocation Pro Forma Power Substa-

Acct [Description Basis $8SS Supply Station Lines
No.
597 [Maintenance of Meters Direct Assign 138,663
598 [Maint Misc Distrib Plant Prop. Exp {c} 182,725 151,964

Total Distribut Maintenance 2,901,021 - 2,412,637
901 |Supervision Direct Assign
902 [Meter Reading Expense' Direct Assign 174,610
903 |Cons Recds & Collections Direct Assign 1,676,738
904 |Uncollectible Accounts Direct Assign 178,618

Total Consumer Accounts 2,029,966 -
908 |Customer Assist. Expense Direct Assign 76,265
909 |Customer Information Exp Direct Assign 40,002

Total Customer Service 116,267 - - -

Total of Above 37,743,150 31,279,093 6,424 | 3,085,559
920 |Administrative Salaries Prop. Exp(d) 888,865 883 424,291
921 |Office Supplies Prop. Exp(d) 111,055 110 53,011
923 [Outside Services Prop. Exp(d) 89,395 89 42,672
928 |Regulatory Comm Expenses |Prop. Exp{d) . 10,691 11 5,103
925 |Injuries & Damages Prop. Exp(d) - - -
929 |[Duplicate Charges Prop. Exp(d) (42,650) (42) (20,359)

930.1 |Director Fees Prop. Exp(d) 111,310 111 53,133




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Exhibit R

Case No. 2016-00169 Wit 2 o T
Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements
Allocation Trans Cons. & Acct| Outdoor
Acct |Description Basis former Services Meters Services Lighting
No.
597 |Maintenance of Meters Direct Assign 138,663
598 |Maint Misc Distrib Plant Prop. Exp {c} 885 20,555 9,321
Total Distribut Maintenance 14,055 326,344 147,984 - -
901 |Supervision Direct Assign
902 |Meter Reading Expense Direct Assign 174,610
903 |Cons Recds & Collections Direct Assign 1,676,738
904 |Uncollectible Accounts Direct Assign 178,618
Total Consumer Accounts - - 2,029,966 -
908 |Customer Assist. Expense Direct Assign 76,265
909 |Customer Information Exp Direct Assign 40,002
Total Customer Service - - 116,267 -
Total of Above 14,055 417,367 659,553 | 2,146,233 | 134,866
920 |Administrative Salaries Prop. Exp(d) 1,933 57,392 90,694 295,126 18,545
921 |Office Supplies Prop. Exp(d) 241 7,171 11,331 36,873 2,317
923 |Outside Services Prop. Exp(d) 194 5,772 9,121 29,681 1,865
928 |[Regulatory Comm Expenses |Prop. Exp(d) 23 690 1,091 3,550 223
925 |[Injuries & Damages Prop. Exp(d) - - - - -
929 |Duplicate Charges Prop. Exp(d) (93) (2,754) (4,352) (14,161) (890)
930.1 |Director Fees Prop. Exp(d) 242 7,187 11,357 36,958 2,322




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Exhibit R

Page /0 of
Case No. 2016-00169 Witness: James Adkins
Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements
Allocation Pro Forma Power Substa-
Acct |Description Basis SSSS Supply Station Lines
No.
930.1 [General Advertising Exp Prop. Exp(d) 74,402 74 35,515
930.2{Misc. General Exp-Other Prop. Exp(d) 85,041 85 40,594
930.3 |Capital Credits Prop. Exp(d) 13 0 6
930.4 |Annual Meetings Prop. Exp(d) 25,840 26 12,334
932 |Maintenance of General Plant |Prop. Exp(d) 116,627 116 55,671
Total Admin & General 1,470,588 1,462 701,972
403 |Deprec. Distribution Plant Net Plant 3,518,784 27,118 { 2,279,515
403 |Deprec. General Plant Net Plant 186,245 1,435 120,652
Total Depreciation 3,705,029 - 28,553 | 2,400,167
408 |Taxes Other Than Income Taxe|Rate Base 56,395 435 36,535
426.1 |Donations Rate Base 0 0 0
426.1 |Donations - Scholarships Rate Base -
423.1 |Donations - dues 0
Total Miscellaneous 56,396 - 435 36,536
Total Interest on LTD 850,646 - 6,557 551,087
Total Short Term Interest Rate Base 3,796 - 29 2,459
Total Costs 43,829,605 31,279,093 43,460 | 6,777,779




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. page _/LE);?ib&Ro
Case No. 2016-00169 Witness: Jarmes AdKins

Schedule B
Functionalization of Revenue Requirements

Allocation Trans Cons. & Acct| Outdoor
Acct |Description Basis former Services Meters Services gghting_
No.
930.1 |General Advertising Exp Prop. Exp(d) 162 4,804 7,592 24,703 1,552
930.2|Misc. General Exp-Other Prop. Exp(d) 185 5,491 8,677 28,236 1,774
930.3 |Capital Credits Prop. Exp(d) 0 1 1 4 0
930.4 |Annual Meetings Prop. Exp(d} 56 1,668 2,637 8,579 539
932 |Maintenance of General Plant |Prop. Exp{d) 254 7,530 11,900 38,723 2,433
Total Admin & General 3,198 94,952 150,050 488,273 30,682
403 ([Deprec. Distribution Plant Net Plant 372,575 308,312 260,916 93,030 177,319
403 |Deprec. General Plant Net Plant 19,720 16,319 13,810 4,924 9,385
Total Depreciation 392,295 324,630 274,726 97,954 186,704
408 |Taxes Other Than Income Taxe|Rate Base 5,972 4942 4,181 1,488 2,842
426.1 |Donations Rate Base 0 0 0 0 0
426.1 [Donations - Scholarships Rate Base
423.1 |Donations - dues
Total Miscellaneous 5,972 4,942 4,181 1,488 2,842
Total Interest on LTD 90,085 74,536 63,071 22,440 42,871
Total Short Term Interest Rate Base 402 333 281 100 191
Total Costs 506,006 | 916,759 | 1,151,862 | 2,756,488 | 398,157




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

CASE NO. 2016-00169

FUNCTIONALIZATION OF REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit R

Page /R of 4C

Witness: James Adkins

Schedule C

FOOTNOTES
{(a) |Plant Balances
Amount Percent
Poles, Towers & Fixtures| 29,674,571
Overhead Conductor 27,905,005
Underground Conductor{ 3,889,519
Subtotal 61,469,094 88.1%
Services 8,314,588 11.9%
Total 69,783,683 100.0%
(b) |Expense Proportion
Stations Lines Transformers Services Meters Lighting Total
582|Station Expense 5,656 - ' - - 5,656
583|Overhead Line Exp. - 551,027 - 74,534 - - 625,562
584|Underground Line Exp - 41,372 - 5,596 - - 46,968
586|Meter Expense - - 450,354 - 450,354
587|Consumer installations - - - 118,728 118,728
Total 5,656 592,399 - 80,131 450,354 118,728 1,247,267
Percent 0.45% 47.50% 0.00% 6.42% 36.11% 9.52% 100.0%




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

CASE NO. 2016-00169

Exhibit
Page [Z of 4%

Witness: James Adkins

Schedule C
FUNCTIONALIZATION OF REVENUE REQUIREMENTS
FOOTNOTES
[c] |Expense Proportion
Lines Transformers Services Meters Total
593 |Maint. Overhead Lines 2,260,674 - 305,789 - 2,566,463
594 (Maint of Underground Li - - - -
595{Maint Line Transformers - 13,170 - 13,170
596 | Maint of St Lg & Signal Sy - - - - -
597|Maintenance of Meters - - - 138,663 138,663
Total 2,260,674 13,170 305,789 138,663 2,718,296
Percent 83.17% 0.48% 11.25% 5.10% 100.00%
(d) |Expense Proportion
Station Lines Transformers Services Meters Consumer Lighting Total
Total Operations 6,424 672,922 - 91,022 511,569 - 134,866 1,416,804
Total Distribut Maintena - 2,412,637.35 14,054.90 326,344.27 147,984.16 - - 2,901,021
Total Consumer Account - - - - - 2,029,966 2,029,966
Total Customer Service - - - - - 116,267 - 116,267
Total 6,424 3,085,559 14,055 417,367 659,553 | 2,146,233 134,866 6,464,057
Percent 0.10% 47.73% 0.22% 6.46% 10.20% 33.20% 2.09% 100.00%




Exhibit

Page of
CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC. Witness: James AdKins
Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule D
NET INVESTMENT RATE BASE
Consumer |
Meters _[& Accounting] Outdoor
Description $55% Stations Lines Transformers | Services | Consumer | Semvices Lighting
360 |Land & Land Rights 5,488 5,488
362 |Station Equipment 768,921 768,921
364 |Poles, Towers and Fixtures 28,674,571 29,674,571 -
365 |Overhead Conductor 27,905,005 27,905,005
366 |Underground Conduit -
367 |UG Conductor 3,889,519 3,889,519
368 |Line Transformers 10,656,531 10,656,531
369 |Services 8,314,588 8,314,588 -
370 |Meters 6,656,001 6,656,001
371 [Install. On Consumer Prem. 4,912,562 4,912,562
373 |Street Ltg & Signal Systems -
Total Distribution Plant 92,783,185 768,921 | 61,474582 | 10,656,531 | 8,314,588 | 6,656,001 - 4,812,562
0.83% 66.26% 11.49% 8.96% 7.17% 0.00% 5.29%
Total General Plant 8,027,220 7,978 3,831,721 17,454 518,296 819,048 | 2,665,243 167,480
0.1% 47.7% 0.2% 6.5% 10.2% 33.2% 21%
Total Utility Plant 100,810,405 776,899 | 65,306,303 | 10,673,984 | 8,832,884 | 7,475,050 | 2,665,243 | 5,080,042
Accum. Depreciation 36,032,638 277,687 | 23,342,416 3,815,200 [ 3,157,136 | 2,671,805 952,637 | 1,815,758
Net Plant 64,777,767 499,212 | 41,963,887 6,858,785 | 5,675,749 | 4,803,244 | 1,712,606 | 3,264,284
101,039,800 0.77% 64.78% 10.59% 8.76% 7.41% 2.64% 5.04%
CWIP 229,395 1,901 151,988 26,347 20,557 16,456 - 12,146
65,007,162 501,114 | 42,115,876 6,885,132 | 5,696,305 | 4,819,701 | 1,712,606 | 3,276,430
Plus
Cash Working Capital 991,384 7,640 642,232 104,969 86,864 73,511 26,210 49,958
Materials & Supplies 412,083 3,176 266,953 43,632 36,106 30,556 10,895 20,766
Prepayments 412,083 3,176 266,953 43,632 36,106 30,556 10,895 20,766
Minus: Consumer Advances 83,281 690 55,179 9,565 7,463 5,874 - 4,409
Net Investment Rate Base 66,739,431 514,415 | 43,236,834 7,067,800 | 5,847,919 | 4,948,348 | 1,760,605 | 3,363,509
Percentage 0.77% 64.78% 10.59% 8.76% 741% 2.64% 5.04%




CUMBLERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC EXHIBIT

PAGE OF
CASE NO. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Power Supply Distribution Lines
Acct |Description ) $88S Demand Energy Load Center Station Demand
No.
555 |Demand Charges 6,986,348 6,986,348
Energy Charges 23,587,569 - 23,587,569
Load Center Charges 705,176 705,176
Total Purchased Power 31,279,093 6,986,348 23,587,569 705,176
580 |Operations Supv & Eng - -
582 |Station Expense 5,656 5,656
583 Overhead Line Exp. 625,562 1,670,864 252,640
584 |Underground Line Exp 46,968 18,968
586 Meter Expense 450,354
587 |Consumer Installations 118,728
588 Misc. Distribution Exp 163,139 740 35,526
589 |Rents 6,398 29 1,393
Total Operations 1,416,804 6,424 308,527
590 |Maint Supv & Eng -
592 |Maint of Station Equip -
593 Maint. Overhead Lines 2,566,463 1,036,495
594 |Maint of Underground Lines -
595 |Maint Line Transformers 13,170
596 [Maint of St Lg & Signal Sys -
597 |Maintenance of Meters 138,663
598 |Maint Misc Distrib Plant 182,725 69,674




CUMBLERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

EXHIBIT <

. PAGE [ LOF 10
CASE NO. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Lines Transformers Services Meters Cons & Acct | Outdoor
Acct |Description $88% Consumer Demand Consumer | Consumer | Consumer | Consumer Lighting
No.
555 |Demand Charges 6,986,348
Energy Charges 23,587,569
Load Center Charges 705,176
Total Purchased Power 31,279,093
580 |Operations Supv & Eng - - - - -
582 |Station Expense 5,656
583 [Overhead Line Exp. 625,562 298,387 74,534
584 |Underground Line Exp 46,968 22,403 5,596
586 Meter Expense 450,354 450,354
587 |{Consumer Installations 118,728 118,728
588 Misc. Distribution Exp 163,139 41,958 10,481 58,905 15,529
589 Rents 6,398 1,645 - 411 2,310 609
Total Operations 1,416,804 364,394 - 91,022 511,569 134,866
590 |Maint Supv & Eng -
592 [Maint of Station Equip -
593 |Maint. Overhead Lines 2,566,463 1,224,179 305,789
594  |Maint of Underground Lines - -
585 [Maint Line Transformers 13,170 9,991 3,178
596 [Maint of St Lg & Signal Sys -
597 |Maintenance of Meters 138,663 . 138,663
598 Maint Misc Distrib Plant 182,725 82,290 672 214 20,555 9,321 - -
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CASE NO. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Power Supply Distribution Lines
Acct |Description 5888 Demand Energy Load Center Station Demand
Total Distribut Maintenance 2,901,021 - - - - 1,106,168
901 |Supervision 174,610
902 |Meter Reading Expense 174,610
903 |Cons Recds & Collections 1,676,738 94,681
904 |Uncollectible Accounts 178,618
Total Consumer Accounts 2,029,966 -
908 |Customer Assist. Expense 76,265
909 |Customer Information Exp 40,002
Total Customer Service 116,267 - - -
Total of Above 37,743,150 6,986,348 23,587,569 705,176 6,424 1,414,695
920 |Administrative Salaries 888,865 883 194,533
921 |Office Supplies 111,055 110 24,305
923 |Outside Services 89,395 89 19,565
928 |Regulatory Comm Expenses 10,691 11 2,340
925 |injuries & Damages - - -
929 |Duplicate Charges (42,650) (42) (9,334)
930.1 [Director Fees 111,310 111 24,361
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CUMBLERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

) PAGE & OF ¢
CASE NO. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Lines Transformers Services Meters Cons & Acct | Outdoor
Acct |Description 5885 Consumer Demand Consumer | Consumer | Consumer | Consumer | Lighting
Total Distribut Maintenance 2,901,021 1,306,469 10,663 3,392 326,344 147,984 - -
901 [Supervision 174,610
902 |Meter Reading Expense 174,610 174,610
903 |Cons Recds & Collections 1,676,738 1,676,738
904 |Uncollectible Accounts 178,618 178,618
Total Consumer Accounts 2,029,966 - - 2,029,966 -
908 |Customer Assist. Expense 76,265 76,265
909 |Customer Information Exp 40,002 40,002
Total Customer Service 116,267 - - 116,267 -
Total of Above 37,743,150 1,670,864 10,663 3,392 417,367 659,553 2,146,233 134,866
920 |Administrative Salaries 888,865 229,758 1,466 466 57,392 90,694 295,126 18,545
921 |Office Supplies 111,055 28,706 183 58 7,171 11,331 36,873 2,317
923 |Outside Services 89,395 23,107 147 47 5,772 9,121 29,681 1,865
928 |Regulatory Comm Expenses 10,691 2,763 18 6 690 1,091 3,550 223
925 |Injuries & Damages - - - - - - - -
929 [Duplicate Charges (42,650) (11,024) (70) (22) (2,754) (4,352) (14,161) (890)
930.1 |Director Fees 111,310 28,772 184 58 7,187 11,357 36,958 2,322




CUMBLERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC EXHIBIT f

GASE NO. 2016- PAGE /7 OF
S 0. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Power Supply Distribution Lines
Acct |Description 5888 Demand Energy Load Center Station Demand
930.11 |General Advertising Exp 74,402 : 74 16,283
930.2|Misc. General Exp-Other 85,041 85 18,612
930.3 [Capital Credits 13 0 3
930.4 |Annual Meetings 25,840 26 5,655
932 |Maintenance of General Plant 116,627 116 25,525
Total Admin & General 1,470,588 1,462 321,846
403 |Deprec. Distribution Plant 3,518,784 27,118 1,045,133
403 Deprec. General Plant 186,245 1,435 55,318
Total Depreciation 3,705,029 - - - 28,553 1,100,450
408 |Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 56,395 435 16,751
426.1 |Donations 0 0 0
426.11 |Donations - Scholarships - -
423.12 |Donations - dues 0 -
Total Miscellaneous 56,396 - - - 435 16,751
Total Interest on LTD 850,646 - 6,557 252,668
Total Short Term Interest 3,796 - 29 1,127
Total Costs 43,829,605 6,986,348 23,587,568 705,176 43,460 3,107,539
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CASE NO. 2016-00169 WITNESS: James Adkins
Schedule E
CLASSIFICATION OF FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS
Pro Forma Lines Transformers Services Meters Cons & Acct | Outdoor
Acct |Description $8SS Consumer Demand Consumer | Consumer | Consumer | Consumer | Lighting
930.11 |General Advertising Exp 74,402 19,232 123 39 4,804 7,592 24,703 1,552
930.2|Misc. General Exp-Other 85,041 21,982 140 45 5,491 8,677 28,236 1,774
930.3 |Capital Credits 13 3 0 0 1 1 4 0
930.4 |Annual Meetings 25,840 6,679 43 14 1,668 2,637 8,579 539
932 Maintenance of General Plant 116,627 30,146 192 61 7,530 11,900 38,723 2,433
Total Admin & General 1,470,588 380,125 2,426 772 94,952 150,050 488,273 30,682
403 |Deprec. Distribution Plant 3,518,784 1,234,382 282,654 89,921 308,312 260,916 93,030 177,319
403 Deprec. General Plant 186,245 65,334 14,961 4,759 16,319 13,810 4,924 9,385
Total Depreciation 3,705,029 1,299,716 297,614 94,681 324,630 274,726 97,954 186,704
408 |Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 56,395 19,784 4,531 1,441 4,942 4,181 1,488 2,842
426.1 |Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
426.11 |Donations - Scholarships - - )
423,12 |Donations - dues 0 -
Total Miscellaneous 56,396 19,784 4,531 1,441 4,942 4,181 1,488 2,842
Total Interest on LTD 850,646 298,420 68,343 21,742 74,536 63,071 22,440 42,871
Total Short Term Interest 3,796 1,332 305 97 333 281 100 191
Total Costs 43,829,605 3,670,241 383,881 122,125 916,759 1,151,862 2,756,488 398,157
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Witness: James Adkins

Schedule F

Determination of Certain Plant Investments as Demand Related or Consumer

Related

Account 364 - Poles
Pole Investment Number of Units Unit Cost Size

30.00 4,684,595 13,980 335.09 25.00
35.00 1,216,604 8,267 147.16 35.00
40.00 8,757,707 18,467 47424 40.00
45.00 3,082,724 5,788 532.61 45.00
50.00 1,047,257 1,568 667.89 50.00
55.00 390,394 410 952.18 55.00
60.00 106,419 87 1,223.20 60.00
65.00 63,077 58 1,087.54 65.00
70.00 17,987 21 856.50 70.00
75.00 13,697 2 6,848.68 75.00

Total for Sample 19,380,462 48,648

I

X Variable - (Size) 11.01

Zero Intercepr (29.91)

Use Minimum Size Pole 147.16

Number of poles 48,648.00

Consumer Related Investment 7,159,231.75

Total Investment for sample 19,380,462.16

Percent Customer Related 36.94%

Percent Demand Related

63.06%

l
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Witness: James Adkins

Schedule F

Determination of Certain Plant Investments as Demand Related or Consumer

Related

Account 365 - Overhead Conductor
Conductor Investment | Number of Units Unit Cost Amps
6ACWC 689 12,164 | $ 0.0566 140
S8ACWC 8,355 154,482 | § 0.0541 100
4 HD CU 22,935 206,906 | $ 0.1108 170
6HD CU 8,876 107,987 | $ 0.0822 128
1/0 ACSR 1,830,598 4427885 | $ 0.4134 242
2/0 ACSR 117,654 527534 | § 0.2230 276
4/0 ACSR 1,598,035 2,199,887 | $ 0.7264 357
2 ACSR 6,485,603 12,712,740 | $ 0.5102 184
4 ACSR 2,030,455 6,419,782 | $ 0.3163 140
#336.4 ACSR 880,426 918,426 | $ 0.9586 519
3/0 ACSR | 23,425 2,259,903 | $ 0.0104 315
397.5 MCM AL 110 267 | $ 0.4114 576
Aerial Cable | 83,323 72,029 | $ 1.1568 268
4/0 Aerial Cable 4242 7,885 | $ 0.5380 268
Aerial Cable 2 8,106 1430 | $ 5.6688 128
2 SP Cable | 200 838 | $ 0.2385 128
1/0 SP Cable 7,470 950 | $ 7.8632 172
266.8 MCM-CU 9,351 44109 | $ ©0.2120 308
4/0 SP Cable 70,292 23,880 | $ 2.9436 268
Total for Sample 13,190,145 30,099,084 | $ 0.4382
|
X Variable - (Size) 0.00081
Zero Intercept 0.25236
Total Amount of Conductor in Feet 30,099,084
Use Zero Intercept | 0.25236
Minimum Size Investment -Consumer Related 7,595,792.21 57.59%
Demand Related 5,594,353 42.41%

Investment in Conductor

13,190,145.06

100.00%

I
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Witness: James Adkins

Schedule F

Determination of Certain Plant Investments as Demand Related or Consumer

Related

Account 367 - Underground Conductor

_Conductor Investment Number of Unitg Unit Cost Amps
Cable , UG Duplex, 600V 2,769 373 7.42 70
2 URD Triplex 227 471 53,184 4.28 120
4 URD Triplex 4,567 570 8.01 90
350 URD Triplex 156,635 29,635 5.29 320
1/0 URD Conc 33,664 13,213 2.55 155
2/0 URD Triplex 882,420 248,394 3.55 180
4/0 URD Triplex 942,695 292,874 3.22 240
350 URD Quad 5,462 746 7.32 320
2 URD CONC 756,273 172,891 4.37 119
2 URD SOL | 56,982 28,826 1.98 168
Total for Sample 3,068,939 840,706 3.65

l
X Variable - (Size) -0.00386
Zero Intercept 4.32554 :
Total Amount of Conductor in Feet 840,706
Use Minimum Size [ 1.97675
Minimum Size Investment -Consumer Related | 1,661,863.38 54.15%
Demand Related 1,407,075 45.85%
investment in Conductor 3,068,938.58 100.00%

|
Breakdown of Lines into Demand Related and Consumer Related Components

Total Sample Percent Amount Percent Amount
Investment Consumer Consumer Demand Demand
Underground Conductor 3,068,939 54.15%, 1,661,863.38 45.85% 1,407,075
Overhead Conductor 13,190,145 57.59%| 7,595,792.21 42.41% 5,594,353
Poles 19,380,462 36.94%| 7,159,231.75 63.06% 12,221,230
22,449,400.74 8,821,095.14 13,628,305.60

Percentage Allocations For Overhead Lines 39.29% 60.71%

I
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Schedule F
Determination of Certain Plant Investments as Demand Related or Consumer
l Related l |
Account 368-Transformers
Pole Investment Number Unit Cost Predicted Size
of Units Value
1.5KVA CSP 22,260 213.00 104.51 1.50
3.KVA CSP 73,018 542.00 134,72 3.00
5KVA CSP 150,249 881.00 170.54 5.00
7.5KVA CSP 7,132 32.00 222.88 7.50
10KVA CSP 1,031,822 4,548.00 226.87 10.00
15KVA CSP 2,552,394 8,743.00 291.94 15.00
25KVA CSP 2,097,274 4,013.00 522.62 25.00
50 KVA CSP 279,152 337.00 828.35 50.00
10 KVA 23,236 60.00 387.26 10.00
15 KVA 425,502 660.00 644.70 15.00
25 KVA 184,988 280.00 660.67 25.00
37.5 KVA 21,794 46.00 473.79 37.50
50 KVA 328,841 415.00 792.39 50.00
75 KVA CSP 1,645 2.00 822.71
500 KVA URD 40,445 8.00 5,055.66
50R BARE COST 4,610 2.00 2,304.79
300 KVA URD 15,475 4.00 3,868.82
1667 KVA AUTO CONV 4,159 3.00 1,386.17
2000 KVA 3PH PAD MT 16,504 4.00 4,125.96
75KVA 12,457 13.00 958.27
100KVA 177,408 132.00 1,344.00
167 KVA 160,099 87.00 1,840.22
250 KVA 57,539 22.00 2,615.40
333 KVA 175,919 51.00 3,449.40
500 KVA 21,706 3.00 7,235.32
500 KVA 3PH PAD MT 79,745 11.00 7,249.53
1500 KVA PAD MT 9,265 1.00 9,265.00
500 KVA URD 39,937 8.00 4,992.06
750-1000 KVA 3PH PAD MT 79,109 8.00 9,888.68
1500 KVA PAD MT 9,265 1.00 9,265.00
Total Sample Investment 8,102,950 21,130 383.48
|
X Variable - (Size) 15.65
Zero Intercept 67.3766
|
Number of Transformers 20,770.00
Zero Intercept 67.38
Consumer Related Investment 1,399,412.26
Demand Related Investment 5,798,250.94
Percentage of Investment Consumer Related 24.14%
Percentage of Investment Demand Related 75.86%
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. Schedule G
REVENUE REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH RATE CLASS
B C D E
1 Schedule |
2 Catengory Enviro Residential,
3 Amount Watts Schl & Chur
4 Purchased Power Costs
5 Demand 6,986,348 5,059,147
6 Load Center Charges 705,176 470,409
7 Total Purchased Power Demand 7,691,524 5,529,556
8
9 Energy 23,587,569 656 15,493,534
10
11 Distribution Costs
12 Demand Related
13 Stations 43,460 28,991
14 Lines 3,107,539 2,072,979
15 Transformers 383,881 256,080
16 Total Demand Realted 3,534,880 2,358,050
17
18 Consumer Related
19 Lines 3,670,241 3,415,399
20 Transformers 122,125 105,965
21 Services 916,759 788,645
22 Meters 1,151,862 1,000,580
23 Consumer Svc
24 & Accouting 2,756,488 2,149,035
25 Total Consumer Related 8,617,475 7,459,624
26
27 Outdoor Lighting 398,157
28 )
29 Total Costs 43,829,604 656 30,840,765
30
31
32 Purchased Power Demand Costs 7,691,524 5,529,556
33 Purchased Power Energy Costs 23,587,569 656 15,493,534
34 Distribution Demand Costs 3,534,880 2,358,050
35 Distribution Consumer Costs 8,617,475 7,459,624
36 Distribution Qutdoor Lighting 398,157
37 :
38 43,829,604 656 30,840,765
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WITNESS: James Adkins

Schedule G
REVENUE REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH RATE CLASS
B C F G H |
1 Schedule! | Schedulell | Schedule il Schedule il
2 Catengory Marketing Sml Com Smi Com 3 Phase Schi
3 Amount Rate 1 Phase 3 Phase & Churches
4 |Purchased Power Costs
5 |Demand 6,986,348 139,657 218,267 241,749
6 [Load Center Charges 705,176 18,494 18,922 29,036
7 | Total Purchased Power Demand 7,691,524 - 158,151 237,188 270,784
8
9 |Energy 23,587,569 37,988 746,171 380,744 817,165
10
11 |Distribution Costs
12 |Demand Related
13 |Stations 43,460 - 1,140 1,166 1,789
14 |Lines 3,107,539 - 81,500 83,383 127,954
15 |Transformers 383,881 - 10,068 10,301 15,806
16 | Total Demand Realted 3,534,880 - 92,707 94,850 145,549
17
18 [Consumer Related
19 [Lines 3,670,241 - 205,857 21,702 7,441
20 |Transformers 122,125 - 8,218 1,551 1,686
21 |Services 916,759 - 70,839 26,501 6,097
22 |Meters 1,151,862 4,042 60,308 53,933 2,180
23 |Consumer Svc
24| & Accouting 2,756,488 5,064 215,882 45,517 13,265
25| Total Consumer Related 8,617,475 9,106 561,105 149,205 30,668
26
27 |Outdoor Lighting 398,157
28
29 |Total Costs 43,829,604 47,093 1,558,134 861,987 1,264,167
30
31
32 |Purchased Power Demand Costs 7,691,524 - 158,151 237,188 270,784
33 |Purchased Power Energy Costs 23,587,569 37,988 746,171 380,744 817,165
34 |Distribution Demand Costs 3,534,880 - 92,707 94,850 145,549
35 |Distribution Consumer Costs 8,617,475 9,106 561,105 149,205 30,668
36 |Distribution Outdoor Lighting 398,157
37
38 43,829,604 47,093 1,558,134 861,987 1,264,167
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WITNESS: James Adkins

. Schedule G
REVENUE REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH RATE CLASS
B C J K L M
1 Schedule IV | Schedule IV-A | Schedule VI
2 Catengory Large Power | Large Power Outdoor
3 Amount 2500 kW Plus | 50-2500 kw Lights Total
4 |Purchased Power Costs
5 |Demand 6,986,348 132,976 1,107,059 87,495 6,986,348
6 |Load Center Charges 705,176 19,794 134,106 14,414 705,176
7 | Total Purchased Power Demand 7,691,524 152,770 1,241,165 101,909 7,691,524
8
9 |Energy 23,587,569 847,179 4,681,273 582,859 23,587,569
10
11 |Distribution Costs
12 |Demand Related
13 |Stations 43,460 1,220 8,265 888 43,460
14 |Lines 3,107,539 87,228 590,974 63,521 3,107,539
15 |Transformers 383,881 10,776 73,004 7,847 383,881
16 | Total Demand Realted 3,534,880 99,224 672,243 72,256 3,534,880
17
18 [Consumer Related
19 |Lines 3,670,241 155 12,246 7,441 3,670,241
20 |Transformers 122,125 406 4,162 137 122,125
21 [Services 916,759 121 9,579 14,977 916,759
22 |Meters 1,151,862 385 30,434 - 1,151,862
23 |Consumer Svc
24| & Accouting 2,756,488 1,040 56,506 270,178 2,756,488
25 | Total Consumer Related 8,617,475 2,108 112,927 292,732 8,617,475
26
27 |Outdoor Lighting 398,157 398,157 398,157
28
29 [Total Costs 43,829,604 1,101,281 6,707,609 1,447,912 43,829,604
30
31
32 |Purchased Power Demand Costs 7,691,524 152,770 1,241,165 101,909 7,691,524
33 |Purchased Power Energy Costs 23,587,569 847,179 4,681,273 582,859 23,587,569
34 |Distribution Demand Costs 3,534,880 99,224 672,243 72,256 3,534,880
35 |Distribution Consumer Costs 8,617,475 2,108 112,927 292,732 8,617,475
36 |Distribution Outdoor Lighting 398,157 398,157 398,157
37 -
38 43,829,604 1,101,281 6,707,609 1,447,912 43,829,604
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Schedule H
Demand Related Costs and Energy Related Costs Allocators
C. Monthly Peak Demands for Each Rate Class
Schedule 1 Schedule 1 Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule il Schedule IV Schedule IV-A Schedule VI
Residential Residential Commercial Small Power Three Phase Large Power Large Power | Outdoor Lights Total

Month Schis & Chur ETS No Demand W/Demand Schls & Chur Industrial Rate Security Lights

December 74,329 - 4,235 2,772 4,840 4,256 21,889 2,458 114,779
January 104,562 - 4,261 3,334 5,230 4,071 21,202 2,461 145,121
February 122,387 - 4,157 4,145 5,246 4,241 20,547 2,462 163,185
March 91,285 - 2,678 3,097 4,749 4,759 22,615 2,456 131,639

April 61,056 - 4,248 2,806 4,860 4,193 22,869 2,458 102,490

May 69,422 - 1,949 3,396 5,382 3,494 23,661 2,469 109,773

June 67,625 - 2,236 3,087 4,408 3,403 23,567 2,471 106,797

July 75,830 - 3,762 3,628 4,156 2,515 23,997 2,478 116,366
August 75,737 - 2,012 3,400 5,213 2,401 24,955 2,484 116,202
September 84,224 - 1,982 3,525 5,608 2,407 24,371 2,490 124,607
October | 71,560 - 3,159 2,717 5,096 2,391 24,209 2,492 111,624
November 70,286 - 3,390 3,042 4,980 2,614 22,166 2,492 108,970
Total 968,303 - 38,069 38,949 59,768 40,745 276,048 29,671 1,451,553
Percent 66.71% 0.00% 2.62% 2.68% 4,12% 2.81% 19.02% 2.04% 100.00%
Used to allocate distribution demand related costs to appropriate rate classes
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Witness: James Adkins]

Schedule H
Demand Related Costs and Energy Related Costs Allocators
A. Energy Sales Allocation is proportional on actual sales to end use customers
Schedule 1 Schedule 1 Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule IV Schedule IV-A Schedule VI
Residential Residential Commercial Small Power Three Phase Large Power Large Power | Outdoor Lights Total

Month Schis & Chur ETS No Demand W/Demand Schis & Chur Industrial Rate Security Lights

January 29,103,214 119,674 1,173,456 597,612 1,335,021 1,956,600 7,091,903 938,854 42,316,334
February 36,488,522 160,352 1,362,903 645,799 1,584,899 1,602,000 7,788,431 942,844 50,585,750
March 42,781,729 192,039 1,498,154 638,848 1,610,651 1,728,000 8,013,886 941,164 57,404,471
April 27,076,069 117,757 1,171,325 608,159 1,270,416 1,591,200 6,203,863 940,954 38,979,743
May 19,397,048 50,227 1,148,740 649,327 1,240,462 1,648,800 7,381,378 941,374 32,457,356
June 17,973,045 12,568 1,053,649 640,603 1,207,283 1,335,600 7,373,376 942,354 30,538,478
July 21,815,204 935 1,176,442 635,825 1,192,677 1,242,000 8,091,828 939,624 35,094,535
August 25,916,196 1,013 1,366,439 613,644 1,033,766 993,600 8,044,206 941,724 38,910,588
September 21,823,413 877 1,205,115 639,367 1,356,211 1,083,600 8,153,421 947,534 35,209,538
October 18,538,351 1,351 1,145,361 620,866 1,527,049 1,062,000 7,882,800 946,526 31,724,304
November 18,105,995 19,832 1,119,258 551,711 1,264,542 1,058,400 7,416,068 947,772 30,483,578
December 21,831,534 61,006 1,068,021 551,383 1,244,426 1,148,400 7,458,032 947,002 34,309,804
Total 300,860,320 737,631 14,488,863 7,393,144 15,867,403 16,450,200 90,899,192 11,317,726 458,014,479
Percent 65.69% 0.16% 3.16% 1.61% 3.46% 3.59% 19.85% 2.47% 100.00%

Used to allocate purchased p

ower energy costs to retail rate classes. Wholesale energy cost:

s for rate classes LP1 And LP2 are directly assigned.
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Schedule H
Demand Related Costs and Energy Related Costs Allocators
B. Wholesale Billing CP Contributions
Schedule 1 Schedule 1 Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule IV Schedule IV-A Schedule Vi
Residential Residential Commercial Small Power Three Phase Large Power Large Power | Outdoor Lights Total
Month Schls & Chur ETS No Demand W/Demand Schls & Chur industrial Rate Security Lights
December 71,427 - 2,699 2,772 4,363 2,109 16,674 2,458 102,502
January 104,561 - 4,261 3,334 3,052 2,305 17,965 2,461 137,939
February 122,387 - 4,157 4,145 3,377 2,105 18,684 2,462 157,317
March 91,285 - 2,678 3,092 3,044 2,851 19,023 2,456 124,429
April 48,528 - 1,490 2,594 3,313 1,922 14,532 - 72,379
May 42,781 - 861 3,334 2,505 913 13,286 - 63,680
June 58,638 - 1,368 2,811 2,998 2,083 16,622 - 84,520
July 62,936 - 522 3,370 3,767 1,860 14,041 - 86,496
August 60,428 - 1,226 2,884 3,741 1,629 12,757 - 82,665
September 58,628 - 1,140 2,853 4,070 2,046 12,604 - 81,341
October I 49,849 - 1,355 2,717 3,196 1,298 13,607 2,482 74,504
November 84,960 - 1,884 3,042 3,497 1,389 17,607 2,492 114,871
Total 856,408 - 23,641 36,948 40,923 22,510 187,402 14,811 1,182,643
Percent 72.41% 0.00% 2.00% 3.12% 3.46% 1.90% 15.85% 1.25% 100.00%
Used to allocate wholesale power demand costs to rate classes. Wholesale power demand is billed on basis of CP demand.
2,458 2,461 2,462 2,456 2,458 2,463 2,471 2,478 2,484 2,490 2,492
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Schedule H
Demand Related Costs and Energy Related Costs Allocators
C. Monthly Peak Demands for Each Rate Class
Schedule 1 Schedule 1 Schedule Il Schedule Il Schedule 111 Schedule IV Schedule IV-A Schedule Vi
Residential Residential Commercial Small Power Three Phase Large Power Large Power | Outdoor Lights Total

Month Schis & Chur ETS No Demand W/Demand Schls & Chur Industrial Rate Security Lights

December 74,329 - 4,235 2,772 4,840 4,256 21,889 2,458 114,779
January 104,562 - 4,261 3,334 5,230 4,071 21,202 2,461 145,121
February 122,387 - 4,157 4,145 5,246 4,241 20,547 2,462 163,185
March 91,285 - 2,678 3,097 4,749 4,759 22,615 2,456 131,639
April 61,056 - 4,248 2,806 4,860 4,193 22,869 2,458 102,490
May 69,422 - 1,949 3,396 5,382 3,494 23,661 2,469 109,773
June 67,625 - 2,236 3,087 4,408 3,403 23,567 2,471 106,797
July 75,830 - 3,762 3,628 4,156 2,515 23,997 2,478 116,366
August 75,737 - 2,012 3,400 5,213 2,401 24,955 2,484 116,202
September 84,224 - 1,982 3,525 5,608 2,407 24,371 2,490 124,607
Qctober I 71,560 - 3,159 2,717 5,096 2,391 24,209 2,492 111,624
November 70,286 - 3,390 3,042 4,980 2,614 22,166 2,492 108,970
Total 968,303 - 38,069 38,949 59,768 40,745 276,048 29,671 1,451,553
Percent 66.71% 0.00% 2.62% 2.68% 4.12% 2.81% 19.02% 2.04% 100.00%
Used to allocate distribution demand related costs to appropriate rate classes
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Witness: James Adkins

Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule |

Consumer Related Costs Allocators

A. Lines (poles and conduit)

Number of Allocation

Consumers Percent
Schedule | - Residential 22,033 93.06%
Schedule | - Prepaid 0.00%
Schedule | - Marketing ETS 0 0.00%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh) 1,328 5.61%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW) 140 0.59%
Schedule Il - 3 Phase Schools & Churches 48 0.20%
Schedule IV - Large Power Industrial 1 0.00%
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 79 0.33%
Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights 48 0.20%

23,677 1.0000

B. Transformers Minimum

Number of Transformel Relative Allocation
Rate Class Consumers  Cost Cost Weight Percent
Schedule | - Residential 22,033 227 0.14 3,017.29 86.768%
Schedule | - Prepaid 0.000%
Schedule | - Marketing ETS ‘ - - - - 0.000%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh) 1,328 292 0.18 234.02 6.730%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW) 140 523 0.32 44 .16 1.270%
Schedule Il - 3 Phase Schools & Churches 48 1,657 1.00 48.00 1.380%
Schedule IV - Large Power Industrial 1 19,154 11.56 11.56 0.332%
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 79 2,485 1.50 118.50 3.408%
Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights 48 135 0.08 3.90 0.112%

23677 3,477.43 100.0%
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Witness: James Adkins

Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule |

Consumer Related Costs Allocators

C. Services Minim

Service Relative Allocation
Rate Class # of Consume  Cost Cost Weight  Percent
Schedule | - Residential 22,033 195.27 0.28 6,208.81 86.03%

Schedule | - Prepaid

Schedule | - Marketing ETS - - - - 0.00%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh) 1,328 291.00 0.42 557.70 7.73%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW) 140 291.00 1.49 208.64 2.89%
Schedule lll - 3 Phase Schools & Churches 48 692.93 1.00 48.00 0.67%
Schedule IV - Large Power Industrial 1 661.47 0.95 0.95 0.01%
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 79 661.47 0.95 75.41 1.04%
Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights 11,080 7.37 0.01 117.91 1.63%

34,709 7,217.42 1.00
D. Meters Minimum

Meter  Relative _ Allocation

Rate Class # of Consume  Cost Cost Weight Percent
Schedule | - Residential 22,033 36.00 1.00 22,033.00 86.87%
Schedule | - Prepaid
Schedule | - Marketing ETS 89 36.00 1.00 89.00 0.35%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh) 1,328 36.00 1.00 1,328.00 5.24%
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW) 140 305.38 8.48 1,187.62 4.68%
Schedule lll - 3 Phase Schools & Churches 48 36.00 1.00 48.00 0.19%
Schedule IV - Large Power Industrial 1 305.38 8.48 8.48 0.03%
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 79 305.38 8.48 670.16 2.64%
Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights - - - -

23,718 25,364.26 1.00




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.

Rate Class

Schedule | - Residential

Schedule 1 - Prepaid

Schedule | - Marketing ETS

Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh)
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW)
Schedule Il - 3 Phase Schools & Churches
Schedule 1V - Large Power Industrial
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate
Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights

Schedule | - Residential

Schedule 1 - Prepaid

Schedule | - Marketing ETS

Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh)
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW)
Schedule lll - 3 Phase Schools & Churches
Schedule 1V - Large Power Industrial
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate

xhibit R

Page.?__ ofﬂ
Witness: James Adkins
Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule |
E. Consumer & Accounting Services Consumer Related Costs Allocators
Relative Relative Relative  Combined
Number of Weight  Weight Weight Relative Allocation
Consumers Meter ReadCons Reds Cust Asst  Weights Weight Percent
22,033 1.00 4.00 1.00 6.00 132,198  77.96%
89 1.00 1.00 1.50 3.50 312 0.18%
1,328 1.00 6.00 3.00 10.00 13,280 7.83%
140 2.00 10.00 8.00 20.00 2,800 1.65%
48 1.00 8.00 8.00 17.00 816 0.48%
1 4.00 20.00 40.00  64.00 64 0.04%
79 4.00 20.00 20.00 44.00 3,476 2.05%
11,080 - 1.00 0.50 1.50 16,620 9.80%
169,565.50 1.00
Meter Reading Consumer Records
Relative Relative
Weight . Weight
Factor Weight Factor  Weight
1.00 1.00 1.00 4.00 1.00 4.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 2.00 6.00
2.00 1.00 2.00 5.00 2.00 10.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 4.00 2.00 8.00
4.00 1.00 4.00 10.00 2.00 20.00
4.00 1.00 4.00 10.00 2.00 20.00
- 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights
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Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule |

Consumer Related Costs Allocators

Consumer Assistance

Relative
Weight
Factor  Weight
Schedule | - Residential 1.00 1.00 1.00
Schedule 1 - Prepaid
Schedule | - Marketing ETS 1.00 1.50 1.50
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kWh) 1.00 3.00 3.00
Schedule Il - Small Commercial (kW) 2.00 4.00 8.00
Schedule |l - 3 Phase Schools & Churches 2.00 4.00 8.00
Schedule 1V - Large Power Industrial 2.00 20.00 40.00
Schedule IV-A - Large Power Rate 2.00 10.00 20.00

Schedule VI - Outdoor & Security Lights 0.50 1.00 0.50



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC
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REVENUE FROM RATES MATCHED WITH REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit £

Page 3¢ of &0
Witness: James Adkins]

Schedule 1 Schedule Il Schedule |l
Enviro Schedule | Residential. | Single Phase | Three Phase
Total Watts Residential Market - ETS | Commercial Commercial
Normalized Revenue from Rates $41,190,121 780 28,223,615 37,899 1,500,642 837,357
Wholesale Demand Costs
Generation 6,986,348 5,059,147 - 139,657 218,267
Distribution Substation 705,176 470,409 - 18,494 18,922
[ Total Wholesale Demand 7,691,524 - 5,529,556 - 158,151 237,188
Wholesale Energy Costs 23,587,569 656 15,493,534 37,988 746,171 380,744
Total Wholesale Costs 31,279,093 656 21,023,090 37,988 904,322 617,933
| 1
Gross Margin 9,911,028 124 7,200,524 (88) 596,320 219,425
Distribution Demand Costs

Station 43,460 28,991 - 1,140 1,166

Lines 3,107,539 2,072,979 - 81,500 83,383

Transformers 383,881 256,080 - 10,068 10,301

[Total Distribution Demand 3,534,880 2,358,050 - 92,707 94,850
Distribution Consumer

Lines 3,670,241 3,415,399 - 205,857 21,702

Transformers 122,125 105,965 - 8,218 1,551

Services 916,759 788,645 - 70,839 26,501

Meters 1,151,862 1,000,580 4,042 60,308 53,933

Consumer Services 2,756,488 - 2,149,035 5,064 215,882 45,517

Lighting 398,157 -

“[Total Distribution Consume 9,015,632 - 7,459,624 9,106 561,105 149,205
Total Distribution Costs 12,550,511 - 9,817,674 9,106 653,812 244,055
Margin before Other Revenue (2,639,484) 124 (2,617,150) (9,194) (57,493) (24,630)

L
Allocation of Other Elec. Revenue 1,642,794 1,533,911 - 92,454 9,747
Allocation of Misc. Revenue 220,289 - 205,688 - 12,397 1,307
[ |
Net Margin (776,400) 124 (877,551) (9,194) 47,359 (13,577)

Schedule J



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC

_5)(7hibit /?
CASE NO. 2016-00169 Witnel::'giam_es j’\f dk—l'_:s?
REVENUE FROM RATES MATCHED WITH REVENUE REQUIREMENTS ' Schedule J
Schedule Il
Three Phase Schedule IV Schedule IV-A Schedule VI
Schl, Churches | Over 2500 kW 50-2500 kw Lighting Total
Normalized Revenue from Rates 1,270,330 1,143,450 6,811,729 1,364,318 41,190,121
Wholesale Demand Costs )
Generation 241,749 132,976 1,107,059 87,495 6,986,348
Distribution Substation 29,036 19,794 134,106 14,414 705,176
[Total Wholesale Demand 270,784 152,770 1,241,165 101,909 7,691,524
Wholesale Energy Costs 817,165 847,179 4,681,273 582,859 23,587,568
Total Wholesale Costs 1,087,950 999,949 5,922,439 684,767 31,279,093
[
Gross Margin 182,380 143,502 889,291 679,551 9,911,028
Distribution Demand Costs
Station 1,789 1,220 8,265 888 43,460
Lines 127,954 87,228 590,974 63,521 3,107,539
Transformers 15,806 10,776 73,004 7,847 383,881
Total Distribution Demand 145,549 99,224 672,243 72,256 3,534,880
Distribution Consumer : -
Lines 7,441 155 12,246 7,441 3,670,241
Transformers 1,686 406 4,162 137 122,125
Services 6,097 121 9,579 14,977 916,759
Meters 2,180 385 30,434 - 1,151,862
Consumer Services 13,265 1,040 56,506 270,178 2,756,488
Lighting - 398,157 398,157
Total Distribution Consume 30,668 2,108 112,927 690,889 9,015,632
Total Distribution Costs 176,218 101,332 785,170 763,145 12,550,511
L -
Margin before Other Revenue 6,163 42,170 104,121 (83,594) (2,639,483)
[ | -
Allocation of Other Elec. Revenue 3,342 - - 3,342 1,642,794
Allocation of Misc. Revenue 448 - - 448 220,289
[T -
Net Margin 9,953 42,170 104,121 (79,805) (776,400)
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INCREASE FOR EACH RATE CLASS Witness: James Adkins

Schedule K

Enviro- Schedule | Schedule 1 Schedule li Schedule Il
Watts Residential ETS Commercial | Commercial
1 Phase 3 Phase
Revenue Requirements

Total Costs $ 656 | $ 30,840,765 | $ 47,093 | $ 1,558,134 | $ 861,987
Plus Margin Requirements - 918,587 370 53,032 22,995
Revenue Requirements $ 656 | $ 31,759,352 | $ 47,463 | % 1,611,166 | $ 884,982
Minus Revenue from Rates 780 28,223,615 37,899 1,500,642 837,357
Increase Amount (124) 3,635,737 9,564 110,524 47,625
Less: Other Revenue - 1,739,599 - 104,851 11,054
Net Increase Amount (124) 1,796,138 9,564 5673 36,571
Less: Increases -Rate Classes $1,658,083 97,406 27,657

Under (Over) Recovery 3 (124)} $ 138,055 | § 9,664 | $ (91,733)] $ 8,915

Statement of Operations with

Revenue from Rates 780 28,223,615 37,899 1,500,642 837,357
Rate Increase $ - $ 1,658,083 |9 - 3 97,406 | $ 27,657
Purchased Power Costs 656 21,023,090 37,988 904,322 617,933

Gross Margins 124 8,858,607 (88) 693,726 247,081
Distribution Costs - 9,817,674 9,106 653,812 244,055
Margins before Other Rev. 124 (959,067) (9,194) 39,914 3,027
Plus Other Revenue - 1,739,599 - 104,851 11,054
Net Margins with increase | $ 124 |$ 780,532 (% (9,194); $ 144,765 | $ 14,080
Interest Expense - 651,480 263 37,611 16,308
TIER - 2.20 (34.02) 4,85 1.86
OTIER 1.88 (34.02) 452 1.78
Rate Base 50,258,206 20,597 2,807,309 1,310,940

Return on Rate Base 2.85% -43.36% 6.50% 2.32%




CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC
CASE NO. 2016-00169
INCREASE FOR EACH RATE CLASS

Exhibit R
Page 34 of 42

Witness: James Adkins

Schedule Iil | Schedule IV | Schedule IV-A| Schedule VI
B Phase Schl. Etc Lighting Total
Revenue Requirements
Total Costs $ 1,264,167 |$% 1,101,281 |$% 6,707,609 | $ 1,447912 | $ 43,829,604
Plus Margin Requirements 21,313 13,140 94,381 75,594 [ $ 1,199,411
Revenue Requirements $ 12854801% 1114421]|$% 6801989 |% 1,523,506 | % 45,029,015
Minus Revenue from Rates 1,270,330 1,143,450 6,811,729 1,364,318 41,190,121
Increase Amount 15,150 (29,030) ~ (9,740) 159,188 3,838,895
Less: Other Revenue 3,790 - - 3,790 1,863,083
Net Increase Amount 11,361 (29,030) ~(9,740) 155,399 1,975,811
Less: Increases -Rate Class 31,374 750 24,600 128675 | % 1,974,903
Under (Over) Recovery 3 (20,014)| $ (29,780)| $ (34,340)| $ 26,724 | $ 908
Statement of Operations with

Revenue from Rates 1,270,330 1,143,450 6,811,729 1,364,318 41,190,121
Rate Increase $ 31,374 | $ 750 $ 24,600 | $ 128,675 1% 1,974,903
Purchased Power Costs 1,087,950 999,949 5,922,439 684,767 31,279,093

Gross Margins 213,755 144,252 913,891 808,225 11,885,931
Distribution Costs 176,218 101,332 785,170 763,145 12,550,511
Margins before Other Rev. 37,637 42,920 128,721 45,080 (664,580)
Plus Other Revenue 3,790 - - 3,790 - 1,863,083
Net Margins with Increase | $ 41327 | $ 42920 | $ 128,721 | $ 48870 [ $ 1,198,503
Interest Expense 15,116 9,319 66,937 53,613 850,646
TIER 3.73 5.61 2.92 1.91 2.41
OTIER 3.70 5.61 2.92 1.90 2.15
Rate Base 1,330,346 826,909 5,921,905 4,263,217 66,739,431
Return on Rate Base 4.24% 6.32% 3.30% 2.40% 3.07%

Schedule K



CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC,

Exhibit R

Page <42 of <~ O
Witness: James Adkins
Case No. 2016-00169 Schedule L
Unbundled Rate Base
ScneauleI | ScheduleI| Schedule I | Schedule I | Schedule II |Schedule IV|Schedule IV-A| Schedule VI
Residential, | Marketing| Sml Com Sml Com | 3 Phase Schl |Large Power| Large Power Qutdoor 1
Amount | Schl & Chur Rate 1 Phase 3 Phase & Churches P500 kW Plu{ 50-2500 kW Lights Total

Function | Classification
Stations

Demand 514,415 343,156 - 13,491 13,803 21,181 14,440 97,828 10,515 514,415
Lines 43,236,834

Demand 26,247,684 | 17,509,324 - 688,382 704,295 1,080,754 736,771 4,991,634 536,525 1 26,247,684

Consumer 16,989,149 | 15,809,517 - 952,891 100,455 34,442 718 56,686 34,442 1 16,989,149
Transformer 7,067,800

Demand 5,361,981 4,414,354 - 188,907 40,905 113,695 66,217 489,692 48,210 5,361,981

Consumer 1,705,819 1,480,100 - 114,794 21,664 23,546 5,671 58,129 1,915 1,705,819
Services

Consumer 5,847,919 5,030,690 - 451,876 169,050 38,892 773 61,103 95,534 5,847,919
Meters

Consumer 4,948,348 4,298,448 17,363 259,081 231,695 9,364 1,655 130,742 - 4,948,348
Consumer Acct & Serv. 1,760,605 1,372,617 3,234 137,887 29,073 8,473 665 36,091 172,566 1,760,605
Outdoor Lighting 3,363,509 3,363,509 3,363,509
Total 66,739,431 | 50,258,206 20,597 2,807,309 | 1,310,940 1,330,346 826,909 5,921,905 4,263,217 | 66,739,431




Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169
Balance Sheet, Adjusted
November 30, 2015
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Actual Adjustments Adjusted
Test Year to Test Year Test Year
Assets and Other Debits
Electric Plant:
In service 100,581,010 100,581,010
Under construction 229,395 229,395
100,810,405 100,810,405
Less accumulated depreciation 36,032,638 219,610 36,252,248
64,771,767 (219,610) 64,558,157
Investments 24,798,652 24,798,652
Current Assets:
Cash and temporary investments 5,070,910 5,070,910
Accounts receivable, net 3,493,030 3,493,030
Material and supplies 407,597 407,597
Prepayments and current assets 86,055 86,055
9,057,592 9,057,592
Deferred debits and net change in assets 1,606,161 (847,297) 758,864
Total 100,240,172 (1,066,907) 99,173,265
Liabilities and Other Credits
Margins and Equities
Memberships 434,550 . 434,550
Patronage capital 42,534,953 (1,066,907) 41,468,046
42,969,503 (1,066,907) 41,902,596
Long Term Debt 47,923,913 47,923,913
Accumulated Operating Provisions 3,538,956 3,538,956
Current Liabilities:
Short term borrowings - -
Accounts payable 3,152,263 3,152,263
Consumer deposits 1,223,581 1,223,581
Accrued expenses 1,348,675 1,348,675
5,724,519 5,724,519
Deferred credits 83,281 83,281
Total 100,240,172 (1,066,907) 99,173,265




Operating Revenues:
Base rates
Fuel and surcharge
Other electric revenue

Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169
Statement of Operations, Adjusted

Exhibit S
page 2 of 4

Witness: Jim Adkins

Operating Expenses:

Cost of power:

Base rates

Fuel and surcharge
Distribution - operations
Distribution - maintenance
Consumer accounts
Customer service
Sales
Administrative and general

Total operating expenses

Depreciation

Taxes - other

Interest on long-term debt
Interest expense - other
Other deductions

Total cost of electric sve

Utility operating margins

Nonoperating margins, inter
Nonoperating margins, other
G & T capital credits
Other capital credits

Net Margins

TIER, total
TIER, exclude G&T

Actual Normalized Normalized Proposed Proposed
Test Year Adjustments Test Year Increase Test Year
41,038,599 151,522 41,190,121 1,975,812 43,165,933

2,982,174 (2,982,174) - -

1,646,269 (3,475) 1,642,794 1,642,794
45,667,042 (2,834,127) 42.,832.915 1,975,812 44,808,727
31,296,277 (17,184) 31,279,093 31,279,093

2,818,449 (2,818,449) - -

1,411,233 5,571 1,416,804 1,416,804

2,881,530 19,491 2,901,021 2,901,021

2,011,653 18,312 2,029,965 2,029,965

115,054 1,213 116,267 116,267

1,511,605 (41,017) 1,470,588 1,470,588
42,045,801 (2,832,063) 39,213,738 - 39,213,738

3,485,419 219,610 3,705,029 3,705,029

56,395 - 56,395 56,395
506,126 344,521 850,647 850,647
3,795 - 3,795 3,795
12,632 (12,632) - -
46,110,168 (2,280,564) 43,829,604 - 43,829,604
(443,126) (553,563) (996,689) 1,975,812 979,123
124,232 - 124,232 124,232
2,489,156 (2,489,156) - -
96,057 - 96,057 96,057
2,266,319 (3,042,719) (776,400) 1,975,812 1,199,412
548 0.09 2.41

0.56



Exhibit S
page 3 of 4

Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

-

2
3 Summary of Adjustments to Test Year Witness: Jim Adkins
4

5 Adj 1 Adj 2 Adj3 Adj 4 Adj 5 Adj 6 Adj 7 Adj 8 Adj 9 Adj 10 Adj 11 Adj 12 Adj 13 Adj 14 Adj 15 Adj 16

6 Non- Normalize

7 Payroll R&S Professional Misc Rate G&T  Purchase Recurring Additional

8 Salaries Taxes Deprec Interest Retirement Advertising Donations Fees Directors Expenses Case  Capital Cr  Power Charges Revenue Revenue Total

9

10 Operating Revenues:

11 Base rates 151,522 151,522
12 Fuel and surcharge (2,982,174) (2,982,174)
13 Other electric revenue 22,498 (25,973) (3,475)
14

15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,498 (2,830,652)  (25973) (2,834,127)
16

17 Operating Expenses:

18 Cost of power:

19 Base rates (17,184) (17,184)
20 Fuel and surcharge (2,818,449) (2,818,449)
21 Distribution - operations 4,320 462 (1,138) 1,927 5,571
22 Distribution - maintenanc 13,860 1,482 (2,034) 6,183 19,491
23 Consumer accounts 12,128 1,297 (523) 5,410 18,312
24 Customer service 1059 13 (432) 473 1,213
25 Sales 0 0 0 0 0
P Administrative and gener 8,643 924 (742) 3,856 (1,144) (17.212)  (68,173)  (2,169) 35,000 (41,017
27

28 Total operating expense 40,010 4,278 (4,869) 0 17,849 (1,144) 0 (17212) - (68,173) (2,169 35,000 0 (2,835,633) 0 0 0 (2,832,063)
29

30 Depreciation 219,610 219,610
31 Taxes - other 0
32 Interest on long-term debt 344,521 344,521
3 Interest expense - other 0
34 Other deductions (12,632) (12,632)
35

36 Total cost of electric ser 40,010 4,278 214,741 344,521 17,849 (1,144) (12,632) (17,212) (68,173) (2,169) 35,000 0 (2,835,633) 0 0 0 (2,280,564)
37

a8 Utility operating margin ~ (40,010)  (4,278)  (214,741) (344,521)  (17,849) 1,144 12,632 17,212 68,173 2,160 (35,000) 0 2,835,633 22,498 (2,830,652)  (25,973) (553,563)
39

40 Nonoperating margins, interest 0
@ Nonoperating margins, other 0
42 G & T capital credits (2,489,156) (2,489,156)
43 Patronage capital credits 0
44

45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,489,156) 0 0 0 0 (2,489,156)
46

47

a8 Net Margins (40,010) (4,278)  (214,741) (344,521)  (17,849) 1,144 12,632 17,212 68,173 2,69  (35,000) (2,489,156) 2,835,633 22,498 (2,830,652)  (25,973) (3,042,719)
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Proposed Revenues

November 30, 2015

Interest on long term debt

Normalized margins

Proposed increase in revenues over normalized revenues

Exhibit S
page 4 of 4
Witness: Jim Adkins

850,647

(776,400)

$1,975,812
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169

Monthly Operating Budget
November 30, 2015
December January February March April May June July August  September October November Total

Operating revenue 4,305,852 6,061,896 5,108,604 4,484,716 3,259,631 3,413,716 3,663,077 3,957,786 3,963,061 3,440,593 3,172,516 3,682,505 48,513,953

Operating expenses: .
Cost of power 3,576,524 4,599,268 3,473,807 3,149,381 2,473,883 2,494,135 2,915,647 2,943,354 2,949,522 2,443,100 2,374,286 3,144,006 36,536,913
Distribution-operations 300,927 34,822 107,008 122,646 90,386 196,583 113,919 118,156 106,774 146,998 127,898 112,756 1,578,873
Distribution-maintenance 212,988 259,111 251,195 228,920 228,860 217,493 280,828 244,322 273,658 234,068 240,966 237,082 2,909,491
Consumer accounts 140,857 136,593 147,634 171,055 161,636 163,321 153,421 185,107 135,320 163,666 176,010 129,981 1,864,601
Customer services 20,367 21,977 14,262 7,610 10,674 17,379 10,759 7,351 28,823 7,966 12,540 12,660 172,368
Sales - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Administrative and general 127,928 115,787 101,462 . 118,605 110,256 121,991 127,319 175,668 123,297 127,130 125,973 119,385 1,494,801
Total operation and mainten 4,379,591 5,167,558 4,095,368 3,798,217 3,075,695 3,210,902 3,601,893 3,673,958 3,617,394 3,122,928 3,057,673 3,755,870 44,557,047
Depreciation 264,441 277,239 278,803 278,956 279,616 280,712 281,416 281,887 282,493 282,859 273,701 275,679 3,337,802
Taxes-other - - - - - - 56,178 - - - 51,441 - 107,619
Interest on long term debt 35,739 50,904 48,795 57,555 52,896 52,215 47,878 50,591 49,465 50,818 52,782 50,846 600,484
Interest expense - other 127 142 142 615 138 143 142 143 145 231 196 198 2,362
Other deductions 1,148 1,733 459 204 275 459 791 10,863 1,890 - 204 877 18,903
Total cost of electric service 4,681,046 5,497,576 4,423,567 4,135,547 3,408,620 3,544,431 3,988,298 4,017,442 3,951,387 3,456,836 3,435,997 4,083,470 48,624,217
Utility operating margins (375,194) 564,320 685,037 349,169 (148,989)  (130,715) (325,221} (59,656) 11,674 (16,243)  (263,481)  (400,965) (110,264)
Nonoperating margins, interest 9,348 (1,669) 20,609 4,382 5,423 21,626 4,234 4,471 22,321 5,143 5,184 20,342 121,414
Nonoperating margins, other - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Patronage capital:

G&T - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Others 13,147 - - 65,656 1 - - - - 5,665 8,772 1 93,242
13,147 - - 65,656 1 - - - - 5,665 8,772 1 93,242
Net margins (352,699) 562,651 705,646 419,207 (143,565)  (109,089) (320,987) (55,185) 33,995 (5,435)  (249,525)  (380,622) 104,392
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Cumberland Valley Electric
Case No. 2016-00169
By - Laws Changes
November 30, 2015

A copy of the bylaws is attached. There have been no changes since the last general
rate application was filed.
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SECHUA 2 Dlvicie To insure the distdbution of Buard menthers thsonglunst the area served by
Cumberland Valiey Elevtric, the teritory xerved or tbe served by it shall Be divided into districts Trom
which Buard members shadf be elected from dane 10 e oy provided Tor in ese bylaws, The original
districts wid the mumber of directors to b ed from cach we:

District Districes Numher OF
Number Hosrd Members
Whitley &% MeCreary counties i
2 Kne, Bell & Laurel comties i
k) Kanw, Bolb & Laurel connties 1
4 Harkan, Lestic & Eetcher counties i
5 Whitley & MeCreary counties 1
6 Hlarkan, Lostic & Leteher eountics i
7 Co-ap Wide i

SECHON L obliBativey Any active member in good staading alrove the age wl ciphteen (18) yeurs wha
i i higl celnol yrdoate, as evidenced by high school diplonta, shafl b eligibhe 1o e a direetor, provided,
hawever. that no member shall be eligible to become or remain a dircetor, ot 1o lold any positon of trust
whiet is not a bom fide residest af the srea served by Cambertand Valkey Efectric at the tie fie is clected
ndirectorn, Ay direcior, who is so efocied, may rensin a dicector until the expirstion af the term 10 which
hie iy electel, subjeet w the spproval ol the Buard, Na member shall be elected & divectar, whe is in any
way employed by or finuncinlly infereated in o competing enterprise of i businiess sehtiog eleetsic encrpy or
supplies 1o Carpbueaand Valley Electric, or i business primasily engaged In selling elecisival or phambing
applinnees, Fistures or supplies o membens of Conbedaud Vidley Electric, o whu is daiig business with
Cumberbanl Vidley Blectrie, amd no persors shall tke or hutd oflice us o director swha s the incumbent of
or candidkte Yor an elective public eftice in connection with which a safary is paid,  When w memberhip
is el juintly by a hishand or wite, citlier oae, bt ne both, away be electest e dhirector; provited howeyer,
that neither ane shatl be eligible o ecome a director or (o remain i director, or 1o hold position of trust
in Cunndrerland Valley Eleetrie unlesa holls stafl meet the quatifications hereis ubove sei Torth. Nothing
in this scerion contained shail, or \hald be construce 10 affect i msy nuoner whaisoever e salidity of any
aetion fakess atany meetiog of te Bourd of Dircaors,

SECHON 4 Baant members siudd serve For termis of Tour (1) yeurs each, ending with (e Tounth sanunt
meeling faltowing their election und ymif their successons shatf hive been elecied. deelared gualified and
seoted. ‘The seating of # stew direetor <all oecur i the est regular schediled japveting of the Boaed of
Dincetors. Boand members fur Districts 6 sl 7 shidh be elected in 2600 aned cach fourth year therealter.
Bound wentbers for Disrdets £, 2 and $ shall be celecied in 2053 and cach found yeur theeafier, Boanl
miembers for Districts 3 and 4 shall be elected in' 2014 and cuch fourtl year therealter.

Hogrd membens wliose s ans expiring ure eligibte For re-clection.

The election of Hoard mensbers shall be by stwiled ballot, The ballots shail fist the cambidites nominated
acenrding to i giving their mmes it skdresses. Each monber of Cumbrerfand Vidley Elecisie shall
be entitled 10 vise for one candisbie Fromy each district. The candidate from enchy districs reeviving the
higheat namber of yvotes at e mecting shall e consjdered elected a bourd iembern,

3.

Should the committer on anly nne i to run tor 1ihe efiice of direerr 1o ill
vach vacancy vanset by the expitation o s diucetor's weran, aund Sisild ne candidinte be sominsed from the
membenhip by written petition mvset forth in Antiele 111, Seetion 5, of the bylsws, then the seerctury of the
Buwd shall centifly 1o the Board lh:u 1oy petition has bees lited pursuant to e bylaws, ad tha the candi-
dales i i h) the illee are Gerefone offfcially without epposition: trercupan.
the candli { by the illee on i shall be deemed elected e Bogrl withow
the accessity al nsuting afficinl battows irougl United States mail and foltowing the chection procedumes as
et forth in these bylaws. sl the Seeretary of the bourd will so mnuunee, of canse o be anpoudced at the
Anunn Membership Meeting cndidates cleeted  the Boand of Dinccion, Allof the remainiog provisions
of Article 131 not m contlict herescath shatt resmadu in Jald foree and effect.

The Chairman of the Board sball sppoint & certificd pubic ticensed in Kentucky. oy provesy,
wha shitll take charge. of the director elections sl shail be responsible Tor the duties speciticd berein.
1t shud! be e duty o the provost to see that the official balfots e mailed 10 cixch active il qualified
mieruber at his or her st address slinvn on the Cooperative ieconds. Ouly aetual nremhens of record at the
close ol husivess thirty (30} days prior 1o tie scheduled Annual Meeting date are qualifica (or the pumpose
of vuting in the clection of the directons, Batlots will be mailed not less shan fourteen (145 days prior to
saidd anntal mecling,

The afficial batlot shull be inseribed with instrections by the provest af the Coaperutive as to how many
candidates may be voied for o ercly oificial kallot by ihe meashers il with insintctions that sl olficial
hallots must be retrned w the Ceoperative ondy by U, S mail and received by tie Conperative not fawr
Ihan Q:0K3 . o the mornisie of the thisd (rd) day prior o the said Annuad Meeting,

The duties of the praved segarding wtes and counting shalt be s (oflows:

[ No lster gums 1D o.m, en e soming of the think day priore to the aonust oweting of the mem
bers the pravost shall semwove the baltats from the batlot hox and examine eiel ballos o sseertin
1Y the baltor s been voted in secordines with ihe arles as sulised on the ballot undec instnection
Tor varing and these bylitws:

2 Any d all ollicial balluts which are deenied invalil by the provast for reasons set fonh in the
alercmentioned rules o7 dhese bylines shall sot be vauted and shatl iunmedintely be plweed i
ballot box for rejected hatiots sd shall be retrined by the provast o the Coopertive is safckep-
ing el sisty () days witer the die of the vomgrletion of the counting oF the ballots.

"The Following baltols sl not be enisined:

1A haltot marked For o grecter nwuber of candidities than there are vacancies o be filfed:

2. Balkts other than the Officiul Batlot:

A Ballots nut received hypugh the Unied Staes il

A, Ballogs reverved by the Unopenstive atter %2068 wan. on Wic monuag of dre thiad day prior o the
diste of Ananal Meetings

5. Ballowm with the cent jon on outer cavelape ot signad by members or anthorized agent;

4. Ballots from membaes vuting more tin one tsitlot,

3. Ballots containing write-in votes,

“The reason for scjection af a balint shall he aoted thercon and sach batlat shalt be placed in e ballof bus
containing sejeeted ballais:

Wihen the baflon is Tound te mect he regquirements i st owl in the instraction for voting and is in confor-
ity with the provisions and nxguirements of these bylaws, said bdlet shafl be dectared an official balto
and i} valid wates case thereon shall be 1abuluted.
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Thiz provest shall comn e bitlots as expeditiously as naty be possible following the placement in hix
hands of sail tatols, During the conniing ol the bidlols ao persons other thiin the provest or the candidiies
or their duly awhosized represenuitive may be present in the couting room ather than e President &
CRO ol Ihe Covperative, the Coopertive's Legat Counsel, and sy other Cooperative personnel the provast
does pecessry 10 sissist with the comming of the iabluts, Afler e haliols Jiawe been duly cospied the
testilt of such electbon shald be agntmnced u die subsequent Amial Mecting ol the members,

Far salvkesping all officiat and valid ballots sltich have hoe vounged shadl e placed in the hamls of the
provest for (603 days Temn the date of thie completion of the officia) counting and tabulagion.

The provast sholl pramptly upon plerion of the counting of the hership votes, cenify in writing 1o
the seeretary ol the Conperatise the names of the candidites receiving the highes auber ol vales iking
st et the mnnber of vicancies 10 be filfed.

[y the vase of a e, this Faes shall be certified in wraing by the provest s he secrelary of the Cosperatine,
The tie shull be broken il winoer determined by 0 coin toss condueied by Cooperative Legal Counsel,
3 canditliste requests 4 recount or contests Wie election resubis, e ur she shald subanit a weitten reguest (o ihe
Cooperative’s Legad Counsel belore noau ol the next basiness day. A detailed explanmion for the regoest
maust be included. “Fhie decision ol e G *s Lol Covnsel shall be final.

SECHON S, Nomiaxsizan, {Ushall be the duty of e Board of Disectors 1o appoint, not Jess tan aincty
©0) diya before the (Inu. al fh /\nnu.nl Moeeimg nf the niembers i evnjlinction with which diveturs are

®s he elected, o [ comsisling of md less than live (55 nor more than seven {73
methers who shall be selected sa s 1o 2ive equitabl tfon on e itlee 1o e geegruphi-
eal areas served, or to be served by Cumberlaud Valley Llu(m' No uﬂuu ar member oof e Board of
Disectoes shald be appointed o member uf such v i The i ¢ itlee wilh repart o the

Board of Dircctors ninety 1903 days prioe o such Anouid Mecting their liscof vondnations fus directons,
The commigee shialt prepace and post at ke principal afice of Cipberlind Valtey Electrie a st twenty
€20 days before the meelng i list of nominativas lor divectors, {3ut 500 or e members muy mike
athier nominations in weltig, over their sigsatires, ot less ta wisely (307 days prion 1o the mecting, and
the Seeretary shall post the nominations anube by petition, i any al the same place where the aominations
connmittee’s list ol nominatims s posted. Towvever, mo wirte-in votes shall be pensitted in the election of
mwinbess of the Bourd of Directors,

FCHUR b Vacancies. Vicanvies secuning foe iy neason in the Doard of Directoss shafl be lilled by o
m.unnl) vore of the reowining directuns, snd divectors s elocted shiall serve autif the win of office 1a
wihith e has been cleaed expives.

SECTION 7.Compenaatios Comspansation for Directars shall fe doeriined by the Board. 11 authorized
by the Board. Beard Membors may also be reimbunsed for oxpease ietlly and  secessarily incormed
carrying out Cumberland Valley Eleetrie business, or gritsted sscasasable per dhiens alluwsinee in licu of
detiijed gocouniing ol 1hese expenses.

SICIION S Plorctarns Hahliy swc leanudicdion. A dirccior of Cantwecdard Valley Eleciric shall tat
e personatly fluble w Cunledund Valley Blectdc or its siareholuers [or monekiny damages forbreach of
fiks duties as a dicets, provided a his position shall aot climinae of imil the ability of u divccior for
the Following: (9 forany tiaaaction in which the director’s preesonal fisanciuf istesest is inconflict with dae
finumcial inlerests of Camberland Valley Eleetric or it stisrcholders: (i) for acts or tadissions mot in goud
faithy o which invelve intentiomd mixconduct or gre known (o the director to be i viokition of faw: Gi) Gor
any vate for orassat o st distribution @ sharcholders as probiibited ynder KRS 27 113.8-130; or
(iv) for any iruoaction frem which the direetor derived an imysroper persaoal lenefit, This Section ¥ shalt
contintic ke be applivahie with respect to any such breach of duties by u director of shuties by u direvtor
of Cumberland Valley Electric w o divector nobwithstanding that such dineetor thereafter ceased to be a
divector amd shalt inuee fo te personal beaetil of hens, exeeutors and administrastors, Cunberdand Valley
Electric may purchine igsusmee aml atherwise indenmify die director agatist Hobiiy, inscluding voun
costs aid attorncy fees. e the extent thad their acts or omissions comstiiuting e prounds for and afteged
tinbility were perlormed 0 their afficial capacity sind, i activmable, were based on good Tanh business
Judgements in fhe beliel that the st o omissives wee in the best interest of Contberland Valley Hlegtrie,

SLCTTON 8 Rales and Begodatinns. the Bomd of Diccctors shall Tine power 0 make and mlopt such
nudes aind regudations, net inconsivent with law, te Articles of eomosition o these bylaws, as it may
deen whvisuhle Tor Gie mansgenien), sdunvistaion i regulation of the business atlains of Corberdind
Valley Electne.

NLOTION 11 ,luumnnq, \}U‘mdn'] Riparts The Baurd of Dircctars shall cause o be estublished aud
wrintained. a [LyR iy system, wiich. among other ihings. subjeet to applicable taws and
nuthes apud n.;:\tl.mnns ol any r\LuLuur) Dody il conforin e such sceotiing Systens as iy fan dime-
1o-line he d 1 by the A ol the Rusal Utifities Service of the United Stites of Ameriea,
Al aecounts of Cumberliuid Vakley Eleciric shal be examined by @ comminee of the Board of Dircctors
which shull remder seports to the Board of Dircvtors wt Jeast four (43 lines o year at regular meetings of
the Bextnd of Directors. The Boapd ol Directors shall also within thisty (30) days aiter the close of each
fiscal yenc eause w be miade i Foll wid complete audil of the acconnts, Ixoks wnd Guancial coudition of
Cumberland Virlley Electrie mt the of sueh fiveal yean Such wudit reports shafl be submitied to the aneinbars
sl the foftowing anvuad nrecting.

SECHON L Disector Lueritus sod Managenost Adoiary Councdh Palicy Statement Numbers 02 awd
63, adopled by the Boant of Dircctons, Februy 17, 1983, and which became effective on i date, ay
amended on Octobier 17, 1985, which policies deal with Dircctors Emeritiey and Management Advisary
Counal shill not apply tu any nember af (he present Boand vl Direclors uiless i present memiber af the
hewrl of Directors elees 10 come within the asiew ol siid policy.

SLECHON B2 Romovalot Daredior Any menther may bring chapes againsd a directos by Titing then in
writing with the Seoretiry, topether with i petition signed by thisty per centimy (U5 of 1he membens,
reqquesting the remosal of the direetor i suestion. The removal stiall e vored upon  tle neas wgular of
apecial mecting of i members und any vacaney ceared by sueli remerval nwy be (ilfest by the membuers &
sactmecting, Fhe director shiont such eliarges ave been brought shalf bave an opportunity s iy mecting
1o be tivard in persnn or by counsel undd o presaut evidenee; und {le person of persons bringing e clurges
sgralost him Nsal! Jase the xane opposharity,

ECTOM LU Dogihnar ot d Shnvcies” Relatnes Paohihtod No menber of (e immedie Ganily
of a Director elected (o il Board of Directons after Jonunry 1, 2008 shall be eligible for emptoyaten by
Cumberizd Vidley £leetric. For the pumose of this Section 13, (he wrn “imaediage family™ shalt inclule
chilien, step chiiden, grandehildren, siblings, step siblings. half siblings. sposes, prrents, \lcp Ky,
grandpacents, aunls, upcles, steces, sephews, izt cousing, brothers-in-Tase, sisters-in| ghters-in-
L, sons-fu-kiw, inothers-in-low, aml faliensein-lise of the Dircetor or of the spowse of the Director, This
seetion shalt not apply 1o the nucdiate family of Directars seeving as of January L 2008, wilexs such
Ditector feaves the Board ol Dieetons ik is subsequently se-elecied.




ARTICLE IV
MEITINGS OF DIRECTORS

SECHHON f. fagdar Meetitips. A vegulor meeting of the Bownl of Direciors shial be hell withouwt
notive vilwr than this byl iminediately after, sl ut the samse phwe as the annuat mecting of the iembers
A vegudur wiecting of fhe Board of Direcions shall be hele monthly at such tinwe and place in Kuox Conty.
Kentueky, ax siid Board may provids by fution, Such regutar ings may be hield wilboal sotive
otlier than sieh wsofutions Fxing the tinw avd plwe thereol. ’

NSECTION 20 Specal Mechogs, Special meetivgs of the Boasd of Directoes inay be calied by the
President or uny 1we €2) direetors, The person or persons ittharized to call specinl aeetings of the Rowd
of Dircetars niay fin the the sind place (swhidy shnd! be in Knos County, Kentuehy ), for the bakding ol iy
special mweting of the Boanl of Dircctors catled hy G,

SECHION 3 Aafice. Nutice ol e e, place and pripose of iy specind meeling o’ the Board of
Ohreetors stall be given st least two {2) diys previous ilrreto, by written natice, defiveral persottatly o
wwited. t cach director at his Bt known juidress 30 omsifed. suely notice shall be deenwd to be delivercd
when depostied in the United Swdes minl so addyessed, with postiyge thereon prepaid. The atientdinee of o
dircctor o any sreeting shall vonsiituie a waiver of aintice of such niceting, eacept in case o direetor shall
attensd 3 mecting fortle cxpress purpose of vbjeeling wihe Rasiction ol uny business because the mceting
stadl not liave been lawhidly ealled or canvened.

SECTHIN A, Ouurmn. A majurity of the Boand of Directors shall constitite i quonnm for 1he iranst
oF business & any ieeting of the Boang of Directors, provided. ihatf less thas o imajority of the directors
is present a soid meeting, 3 majorily of the direckns presest may adjounn the mecting {rom tine-to-tie
witlwout further natice,

SECTION S Manuer of Action. The aet of the majorily of the dinccton present i sieeting i which
A is present sliadh be e et ol ihe Boand ol Direaons.,

ARTICLE YV
OFFICERS

SECTION 1 Aasuber The officers of Cumbeeliod Valley Electrie shall be o Preswdent, Viee President.
Sceretory and Treasurer, amd such other ollicens as the Board ol Dircctors smay delermine fram time-to-
e, The ullices of Scerctary sand Tresateer iy b held by the snne peson,

SRECTHON L tlection sl Peraw of Office. The officers shall be elected. by ballot, mpually by and
fram the Rossd of Direchars at the fira mevting of e Boand of Direcives held atier eacls sunaal mecting of
the menmibers, I the eleetion of officess shall not be hekd ar such meeting, such election st be dweld as soon
thereaflter as conveniently may be., Esch officer shail hald office until the fisg mecting of dw pembers or
sntid Dis sucressr shall fave heen duly elecied sard shialt ave gquatified, subject i the provisions ol these
Bylaws with respect t the remaal of officen.,

SECTION A fennaval. Any officer or agent clected or appointed by the Doant of Dircctons inry e
removed by the Boand ol Dircctors whenever i its judgmuent the best futecest of Cumberland Valicy
Blectrie will be served therehy,

SECTION 4 Vueaneley, Exeept as otherwise provided in iese byliws, o vaciacy in any office sy be
Tilled by the Buard of Directons for the unespised portien of the term.

S$E0FHON 5 President, The Presiden:

@) shall be the  principal eacentive officer o Cumberland Valley  Blectric and shali
preside nt all pieetin, viwd of the Hoard of Disevtons:

)y shudt sign, with the ates of membership., Illc issue of which shall have bwen
aothorized by resolution of the Board of Disecions, aml m: nany clieeks, mortgages, deeds
of trust, notes, bands, comtmers or wiher instruments autforized by the Bosed of Directas to be
eavenied, except ineases inwhich the signing oed exceution theseol xhull be expressly defegaed
by e Board of Dirveton or by these bykawa to same other oflicer or agent of Cuberkand Vadley
Eleetric, or shall be requinal by Law 0 be othenvise sigried o execsted: .

w) b general, Shlt perfonm alf duties incident w the elTicee of prosiskent and swel ol
duties s wuty be preseribed by the Boanl of Dircetors from time-o-lme.

SECTION 60 Vice Proident, In the shsenee of the President, or i fle event o his inability or refasal
0 act, he Viee President sl pesfonn e duties of the Prosident, and when so actiig., shall bive all e
powers of and be subject 1o alf the restrictions upon the President and shilf perazm such other dut
from tinie-io-tinie piay be assigied @ bun by the Hoard of Dircclon,

SECTIUN 2, Srerytary, The Seervany shalh

() keep the minntes of the memben amd the Board of Dircctors in one or more
huoks pravided fir Ut puriose;

thy  see thar all potes are duly given v accordance with thexe bylnws or as reuinad by
taw,

te) be antlian of Cumberfand Vailey Elediric revands and of e scal of (.umlnrluml Valley
Bleelric und see that the seal of Cumberland Valley Gleetriv ie aflised 1o all certifientes of
nembenship prior o the issae thereaf asd s adl docsmenis, the execution of which on eliadt of
Cumbrerbund Valley Electeic under fis seal is duly authorized in secardaiee with the provisions
ul'thesc bylaws,

) keep o oregistee of the podt olice wddress of cuctt axamber which shadl be Temished o the
Seereniry by auch membeer;

(e} signwith the President cenifientes of nembership, the issue of which sliadl luive been authorized
by resalution of the Board of Directons;

() have genersl charge ol the banks of Comberiand Valley Electeie in which it recond of the asembers
is kept;

13 keepron file atalf mes acamplete copy of the bylasws of Comberkund Vidley Blectsic containing
allanendnsents thereta, which copy shall always be upen 1o the inspection of ay meinber, s al
the expense of Canburlind Valley Blectric forvaind i enpy of the bylaws aud of alb mmendments
thereto coch meiiber: wiud,

i} in general, perform all datics incident 1o the office of Seeretury and such other duties as from
tinge-to-tinne amay he ansigned to bion by twe Boand of Dirccton.

SECTION N easurer The Treasorer shall:
@) have charge e custedy af s be responsitide Tor all funes 200 seeurities of Caniberland Vajley
Elertrie:
(b} reecive and give receipls Tor nwmies die amd payable 1o Cemiberdand Vabtey Lleetric fom any
souree whuasocver, and dueposit alt sech wmonies in the name. of Cuherfand Vatley Blectric in
steh hank or baoks s shadtie selected in aeconttimwee with e provisions of dhese hyluws: and,

(e} v genernl, perfoms sl e duties incident w e affice of Teasirer ssd aach other disties from |

time-to-tine 1w may b asigned W bin by the Boand ol Dirccss,
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SECHON 2 Manges. The Board of Directsrs any oppoint a smnnager wha aay be, ot seho shall not
be requited o be s member of Cambertind Valley Blecwie. The manager ~hali perfunm such duties as the
Boand of Pincctors may {rom thisedo-tine wespisre of hoo el stall hove sech natbority i the Boanl af
Dircetors sy Trom timue-w-time vest ia hins.

Nk FHON T Bonds of Gters. The Board of Dicectors siall i sthe Treasurer or any other officer
ol Cambrertund Vatley Eloctic changed with responsibifity for the custady of sy ol Tands o prpanty,
1o give bond in suelt sum amd with sueh sunety as the Boand of Prirectons shadl determiue, "Fhe Boud of
Direclors in i85 discretion iy alvo require ay oter alticer, agent ar employes of Cumbuerband Vadley
Elevteic 1 give Do B such canomt mad with sueh sueety as it st detenuine,

SECHION 15 Campenation aud Indesisiflentian Tae Boand of Direcloes shall fix the compensa-
fion of afl allicers, upents and cruployess of Canberband Valley Kleetrie. Comberfuid Valley Eleciric say
puschirse insuranee smd otherwise indemuify iy ollicens of Cuniherlid Valley Blectriz ta the sapw extent as
provided in Artivle B Section 8 for directons.

KECHON {2, Repsn s, The officers of Conderdand Vathey Eleetriv shall subnyit ateach Annsal Meering
al the meshers tepaits covering the business of Cumberkind Valley Blectric Tor the previoss fiscal year apd
shuwviing the vondditian of Combedamd Vattey Blectev ag the close of suel fiscil year,

ARTICLE ¥
CONTRACTS, CHECKS AND BEPOSKS

SECHON 1 Cantracts, Bacept an otierwise provided in these bykiws, the Board of Dircaars may
authrize sny officer oo offivers, Bgeat or apems o enter v auy contiaet or execute and deliver any
instrumient in the mune and on betdt of Crmberkand Valley Elcetric, i such anthority may he geneml
of cantined 1o specilic instances.

il ikl
aed it the nume of Cansherland Valley Bleetric shili be
s determined by sesolution ol the Board of Direcwon.

SECHION L Choechs, haads, vie All ehiecka, drtfis or other arnders for the payisent of mon
notes, bends or otbier evidences of indebtedness s
signed by sieh manser sy shadl frong time-tosing

SECTEN Y Depesits, Al lunds of Cumbertand Vishicy Electric shall ne depashied from thne-to-tlne
1 e eredit oF Caambrerfand Valley Blectric di such bank o Isinks as the HBoard of Directons imay seleet it

ARTICLE VI
MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATES

SECTION L ertifteates of Memtberchip, Membenip in Comberlid Valley Eleelrie 1 fa oviv
denced by a cerlificite of nensbership witiclh sliall be i sach forns and sl cantaln such provisions as sl
b determined by tie Boarl of Ditcetons st contraey b, ur incosistent with, the Anicles of iea poration
ol Combestinmd Valley Eleciriv or these bylaws. Such cenifivite shatl be signed by (he Proxiden wid by the
Secretary of Cumberaud Volley Eleciric amd the Corporue Seal shatl be altised theselu,

P

hall be issued for §

SECTION L fasar of Shenberstap Catfficates, No membersdip certificas 5
s been fully paid for in

than the membenship fee faed in these bylaws, nor until sach memlenhip o
cash, 3l such payment bas heen deposited with the freasuncer.

SECTION X Last Curtiade. Iy case of a st destroyed or Hated certificate, 3 new wslificale
may be st thenefor upon sech tenns amd sich indemnity to Camberdand Valley Electrie sis the Buaard
o Bireetors wuay preseriby,

ARTICLE VHI
NON-PROFIT OPERATION

SECHON 1L Joterest o Disvidendy om Cupitol Prohitated, Cumberland Valley Gleetdie shall ot all
times be apenited on o cooperative sonsprotic asis for the mustual benelit of it patrons. Na isterest or
dividends st be paicd or payable by Cumberdand Valley Electric o any capital furnished by fsjutoon,

SECTHEN 2 Patrwiee Captat B Conpeetion with baenisbiog et tese Baeres, o she Tanshing of
clectric enerpy Cumbedand Vidley Electric’s operatiems shall be so e 4 that all patrons, mrambers
sl non-nmmbers wlike. wilt ecagh theiy paconige tenish capital e Conbecanl Valley Eleeic, In
arder (o induce patronage wskl to tssure that Cumberlind Vadley Electric will operate on i mn-prolit
hasin to all its patrons, iwesmbers ad non-membens alike, for all wmounts 1eecived skl receivable Trom
1he fungishing of elecnic envaey in exeess of aperting and eapenses proprerly chirgesthle againa the
Turnishing of electric energy, AT such amotnts in excess oF operisting costand expenses at e moment of
receipt by Cumberfand Valley Bleetric are received with de aderstinding that ey ave furnished by the
pateons, micsshers and aon-membars atike as capital. Cunberlind Valley Eleciric i obliganad To pay by
cnedits to o capital secount fur eacl patron all such amounts in eacess of operating costs awd expeases, The
books and seconls of Cumberfuxd Valley Lleetrie shall be set up and kept i soeh o mmner it of D evd
ol cacl fiscaf year the nnvoun of capital, (Fany. so [urnislicd by each patron bs clemly rellected mnderedied
B wnappropriaie iecond w e capingd aceeunt of cach patton, wrd Cumbedind Vadley Electric shill within
o newsonsable sine after the cluse of the Giscal year notily each patrsi of the amount of capitnl s credited
Lo ix ctoveunt. Al sueh amotinte eredited 1o the capitol aecomn of sny putran shadl have the same satys
as thougls ey bid been paid o ibe patrog i casit in punstiee of fegal obligation to do s and the patron
lzed then Furnished Cumberfznd Valley Eleeiric coresponding umobms for capital.

1 the event ul shissalution or ligoidation of Cumberkd Valley Electrie, alter sit ourstanding indebicdness
of Cumberhniad Valley Eleetrie shatt have been paid, ovtstuling capital enadits shall be retined without pri-
orily o a pro rate basis before aiy payments e mide s secount of prapeaty rights ol members. 1w any
time prior to dissolulion of lguidaton, the Buard of Dineetors shall detenuine that (he linaacial condition
of Cumberdond Valley Hleetrie will not he inspained thecchy, the capital ihen eredited to patrng sccounts
nlay be retined in Tulfoc i pat. Asy such retiresients of capital shall be mide i anler ol privrity mconling
veur in which the copital wirs Taristied und eredited, the capitul fiont received by Cumberland Vatley
ric being first retired. In vo eveat, hmsever niy any soch capitad be retired unless, sifter the proposed
vetirenient, the cupital of Cumberland Vitley Elrctric shafl cqual o least Forty per centum (3093 af the
tatal sssets of Cumberland Valley Bfectrie, Capliad enedited to the secount of ach pitron shiabl be assign-
able ondy on the basoks of Comberdast Vibley Bleetsie pursusnt 1o written instruction from the sesignor wkt
only 0 siceeswars in interest ur suecessors in occupancy i all or part of suweh pation®s premises wrved by
Cumbrerlinn! Valley Electric unless the Bewrd of Birectons, acting under policies of pencrad apglicanion stnll
determine otherwise. I twe event that sos-siember patran shafl cleet to becose i member of Cumberind
Valey Electric, the cupitd credited 10 the account of such nonavemtier pagon sy be spplicd byCom-
berland Valley Electre towaal 1he payment of o scnsbership foe on beiull of auch non-mwanber patron.

Naonwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, the Boand of Direcion, at its disenetion, shall have
e posver at any tie upon e death of any paron. if the Jegal epresentinive off his estate shall equest in
writing that the capital credited wany stch patron be retired prior to the time such capital woukl stberwise
be retred wnder the provisions of these bylaws, wonetire capitit eredited w any such patron innscdiately
upon sueh teans aid conditions as e Hoard of Dincctors, aieting under pulicies of generab application,
and the legal represeotittives of sueh patron’s estates shalt agree upon; provided, heweves, that the finsieial
candition o’ Cumbertiuxl Valley Blectric will aut be smpaired thewehy.
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The putrens of Camberkigt Vitley Elevtrde, by deafing with Cumberlind Valley Blecsdie, acknowledee
Usas ghe werms and provisivns of e Asticles of Tucorporatiog sind bylaws shalf constiteie g be o comract
henwees Cronberlund Valley Blectsic and ench patron, ad both Cumbertind Vidfey Tleetric and the pasrons
are hoond by steh conirac fully as theugh each putron fusd individually signed o sepamie instrunient
comtaining suel eams and provisiens. The provisioms o this srticle of the by Lavs shall be cilled to e
attention of each patron of Cumberkand Vatiey Electrie by posting i in a conspicuions plave in C Tl
Vatley Electric's oflive,

SECTION 3. Patronnge Kefoods i Congection swith Feraidivgg Gty Services, tn the ovent Ut
Comberhnd Vittley Elevtrie should engige i the lasiness of fnmishing goods o7 Servives vilier than
eloctric energy, wll I 1 and receivable thenefrom which are fn excess oF cost und \.\pclw:s
proprerly LII-I'LL-!‘)‘L aagainst the faenishings of such pody o services shall, insoti oS permitial by
he prorated fy onap e bosis angd 1 {0 thooe patrons. members and pog-members uhh.
fronn whom such mmmuh swere abtsined,

ARTICLE IX
WAIVER OF NOTICE
Any nkauber o diredlor miy waive, in wiitiog, my gotice of mectings required 1o he given by I1hese

bylaws. Inense of o joint membership, o whiver of noties xigned by vither hisband or wile shull be decied
a waiving potice ol botls joinl membeo.

ARTICLE X
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

SECTHON | Vute Requiresent aud Praccduren, No tierger, consoliskition, sale of assets, (e, fease-
suie, exchanpe, trnser, or other dispisition of sl or substtintly nll of Cumbertund Vatley Bloctric's
propertivs aml asnets shall be suthorized excepl is conformity with the following:

1. 1 the Board of Pirew fooks with Favor apon any proposal Tur suich nierger. consoliluion.
snfe of assets. lease, fease-sale, exclunge, tramfen, or oiher disposition of all or sebhetantislly all
of Cumberlaind Valiey Elvetne’s propetios and sy, it sholl fisst cause three independent, non-
aMlisted appraisers, expert I sueh matwers o pesder their individual opinions ss to il value of
Comberlund Valley flectrie with sespect 1 ntorper, consulidution, sife o assety, lense, kease-ale,
exchange. IRRster, or aier disposition of all o indty all of Comberland Viley E "
properties and assels, aud as 1o any other wenns and comditions which stould be considered, T
thive such appioisers shalt be designated by the Knos Cireait Court Judge. I sach Judge nefuses o
muke soch dedignutions, they shubl be mmde by the Boond of Directors.

I the Bound of Directars, alter reveiving sueh apprisals fand other ernis snd conditions which
ure submilted. i any’, delermines that the | 1 shall be itted Tor consideration by the
members. it shall (it giwe every otlier eletrie voopemtive slvated sl aperating in Kentueky
twhich has nor made such s offer) i oppostunity 1o submit competing proposals, Such appur-
tunity shisll be m the Torm of o written notice 1o such electric evaperative, which notice halt
fie ataehed 1o @ eopy af the proposad which Cumberfund Valley Efcaric fas airewdy received
sud copies of the reapective reports of the thiee apprisisers, Soch electric conperatives shall be
piven not fess thar thiny (303 diays during which w submit conipeting praposals, anst e stnl
mininmm period within which proposals are to be aubariited shal] be stated in the srittes: nutice
ziven to them.
3. A the Board then ines 1t bl itk bt} he given to die initid or any
subsequent propoxil whuh lm\ been submitted 1o ll it shiall first adopt by the affinnative vde of
M4 of wll directans 0 ling the transaction aixd directing the submissiva of
the propasal 10 d vote of not less B i agurily ) of the 10tal mepsbors wsd shall aull o specint
neeting of the members for consideration thereof und action thereon, which mevting stiall be held
not sooner ian aisety (O0) days after tie giving of such natice (o the members; PROVIDED. that
considerion and action by the meinbers may be given af e nexCannuad memiber nueetbog il the
Bourd so deennines ol i sach Avnuid Mecting is bekd nol seues this niney 190) disys alter
the giving of auch ndice,
4. Any two hundred (20 or more memliers, by so petitioning the Baard nol tess thnn twenty (240

1
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Witness: Robert Tolliver

thitys prior @ dite ol such specisl or Anmal M nuy canse Comberlamd Valley Electrie,
with e cost (@ be bone Ty Comberland Vallay Eleetrie, 20 mail o all membons any oppasing or
alternate positions which they nsay huve 1o Uie propmals st have been submitied or any recom-
mendations tiat the Boand b nuade.

3. The provisions of tiis Section § shiabi ot apply (o o safe, mengen cousofidation, sde of assets,
leasc, le; ale., exclmnge, tronsten or ather dispisition of atl or substantiatty 2l of Conberiand
Wakley Blectric’s propertios and assels 1o one o1 e electric cumweratives charlervd winier KRS
Chapter 279 or i the substintive oricwrat fegat effect therealis to merge or consodidate with sich
of the ape or more clectric coaperatives.

6. This hylow shall take effeer upon the atfimnative voie of net leas thun thirec-foarths (34) ol all
chirectom: sund shall remain in effeot until altered, smended, or wepented by o simitar vote of all
directors and not less thin a majanty of the totat mwembers,

SECTRON L Faatuative Clnidorntions I connection with he exereise of i judgment in deter
mining whin is i the best imerest of Cumbrertand Yailey Electrie and its members when evalmtiing any
1 foe merper, ficinion, side of insets, lease, tan or ather disposition of substanually oli of
( “wmbvrland Valley Eleetrie’s assets, the Boand of Dinvetors siadh, in addition lo;unsuluuu. the ilequacy
al the aipount e be paid in eonseetion with the ider all ol the 14 2 Inctors ol othicr
fators which it deens sefoant: 1 The soeivd and ceomniv elfects of tlic pansaction ¢ apen Comberland
Valley Electric’s employees: 2. The socictal and evonomie impact of the transuction apon the conmunity
and service territardes: amb L The long-tenn as well i shorl-term interext of Ciumberland Valley Electric
uanck Jts members. ineluding the possibifity that these interests nuy be hest served by the continued existence
of Cambertand Valley Eleatric.

o

ARTICLE X1
FISCAL YEAR
The liseal year of Camberkund Valtey Electrie shit] begin on the Tiest (D) day of Januaey of each yeur and
el on the thirgy-thst (31 diy of December vl ihe xune year

ARTICLE XH
MEMBERSHIP IN OTHER ORGANIZATION

Cumbuerfund Yatley Blecide shall not become n member of 2oy organization ur purchase stock inmny other
arganiation withuut te anjurity vote of the Boand,

ARTICLE XiH
SEAL

The corporste sead of Cumberfad Vatley Electric shall be in ibe Torm ol cirele vnd shidh lane nseritwd
thereon the sane of Comberband Vabley Eleetric and words “Curgorae Seal. Kentucky.”

ARTICLE XTIV
AMUNDMENTS

Thuse byluws pay be abierad, sunerded or repesat by e affinnagive vows of nob fess than twu-thinds
[RIATE .|l| the divectomn il any negufor or \[lu.n\l meeting, provided the satice of such meeting shuil have

1 o copy of the praposed o} { or repenl,

Highway 25E .

Rural Utilities Service Statement of Nondiscrimination

Cumberland Valley Electric, Inc. is the recipient of Federal financial assistance from the Rural Utili-
ties Service (RUS), an agency of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, and is subject to the provisions
of Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; and the rules of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, which provide that no person in the United States on the basis of race, color, national origin,
age or handicap shall be excluded participation in, admission or access to, denied the benefits of, or oth-
erwise be subjected to discrimination under any of this organization’s programs or activities.

The person responsible for this organization’s nondiscrimination compliance efforts is Ted Hampton,
Manager. Any individual, or specific class of individuals, who feels that this organization has subjected
them to discrimination may file a written complaint with this organization; or the Secretary, U.S. Depart-
ment of Agriculture, Washington, DC 20250; or the Administrator, Rural Utilities Service, Washington,
DC 20250. Complaints must be filed within 180 days after the alleged discriminatory action, or by such
later date to which the Secretary of Agricuiture or the Administrator of RUS extends the time for filing.
Identity of complainants will be kept confidential to the extent necessary to carry out the purposes of the
rules and regulations of the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

CUMBERLAND VALLEY ELECTRIC, INC.
Gray, Kentucky 40734
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Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169

Statement of Operations

Exhibit V
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Witness: Jim Adkins

November 30,
2015 201

Operating revenue $ 45,667,043 $ 48,384,446

Operating expenses:
Cost of power 34,114,726 36,692,755
Distribution-operations 1,411,233 1,487,218
Distribution-maintenance 2,881,530 2,764,340
Consumer accounts 2,011,654 1,874,468
Consumer service 115,054 158,581
Sales - -
Administrative and general 1,511,604 1,503,787
42,045,801 44,481,149
Depreciation and amortization 3,485,419 3,238,607
Taxes-other 56,395 56,178
Interest on long term debt 506,126 348,842
Other interest expense 3,796 2,344
Other deductions 12,631 17,920
46,110,168 48,145,040

Utility operating margins (443,125) (38,929)

Nonoperating margins, interest 124,232 123,068
Nonoperating margins, other - -
G & T capital credits 2,489,156 2,957,019
Other capital credits 96,057 89,400
Net margins $ 2,266,320 3,130,558
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Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169
Balance Sheet
November 30,

ASSETS

Electric Plant:
In service
Under construction

Less accumulated depreciation

Investments

Current Assets:
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable, net
Material and supplies
Prepayments

Deferred assets

Total Assets

Exhibit V
page 2 of 3

Witness: Jim Adkins

MEMBERS' EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES

Margins and Equities:
Memberships
Patronage capital
Other equities

Long Term Debt
Accumulated Operating Provisions

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Short term borrowings
Consumer deposits
Accrued expenses

Consumer advances

Total Members' Equities and Liabilities

015 201
$ 100,581,010 $ 98,038,078
229,395 384,255
100,810,405 98,422,333
36,032,638 34,855,946
64,777,767 63,566,387
24,798,652 22,261,091
5,070,910 2,568,071
3,493,030 4,424,369
407,597 427,422
917,473 917,748
9,889,010 8,337,610
774,743 835,644
$ 100,240,172 95,000,732
$ 434,550 432,770
43,221,462 40,897,759
(686,509) (743,326)
42,969,503 40,587,203
47,923,913 44,248,092
3,538,956 3,439,175
3,152,263 3,657,825
1,223,581 1,497,646
1,348,675 1,515,991
5,724,519 6,671,462
83,281 54,800
$ 100,240,172 95,000,732
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Cumberland Valley Electric

Case No. 2016-00169

Statement of Cash Flows
November 30,
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Witness: Jim Adkins

2015 2014
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net margins $ 2,266,320 $ 3,130,558
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation
Charged to expense 3,485,419 3,238,607
Charged to clearing accounts 253,555 248,887
Patronage capital credits (2,585,213) (3,046,419)
Accumulated postretirement benefits 99,781 122,283
Net change in current assets and liabilities:
Receivables 931,339 (820,146)
Material and supplies 19,825 74,931
Prepayments and deferred debits 61,176 (13,161)
Accounts payables (505,562) 139,079
Consumer deposits (274,065) 158,596
Accrued expenses (167,316) 116,807
Consumer advances 28,481 (30,937)
3,613,740 3,319,085
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Plant additions (4,950,354) (4,668,055)
Additional investments, net of receipts 47,652 45,495
' (4,902,702) (4,622,560)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Memberships 1,780 (385)
‘Refund of capital credits - -
Other equities 114,200 312,404
Additional long-term borrowings 5,700,000 5,000,000
Payments on long-term debt (2,024,179) (1,884,303)
3,791,801 3,427,716
Net increase in cash 2,502,839 2,124,241
Cash balances - beginning 2,568,071 443,830
Cash balances - ending $ 5,070,910 $ 2,568,071




Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit W 0

Comparison of Test Year Account Balances with page |
those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet of
December January February March April May June July August September October November
Acct # Description Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12
1072  CWIP 116 138 303 131 180 118 182 218 195 246 250 173
Prior year 298 310 359 358 344 361 359 336 399 305 92 140
Change (182) (172) (56) (227) (164) (243) (177) (118) (204) (59) 158 33
107.8 CWIP - Bldg addition 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56
Prior year 518 175 193 193 217 217 219 241 244 244 244 244
Change (462) (119) (137) (137) (161) (161) (163) (185) (188) (188) (188) (188)
108.6  A/D-Distribution plant (30,163) (30,282) (30,461) (30,541) (30,674) (30,723) (30,916) (31,090) (31,181) (31,383) (31,455) (31,646)
Prior year (29,584) (29,710) (29,852) (29,920) (29,979) (30,141) (30,255) (30,393) (30,512) (30,612) (30,437) (30,582)
Change (579) (572) (609) 621) (695) (582) (661) (697) (669) (771) (1,018) (31,646)
108,7 A/D-Transportation (2,612) ) (2,634) (2,655) (2,676) (2,698) (2,720) (2,742) (2,744) (2,764) (2,798) (2,718) (2,743)
: Prior year o (2,393) 1" 1 (2,419 (2,443) (2,425) © (2,450) (2,474) (2,498) (2,497) (2,521) i (2,544) (2,567) (2,589)
Change 219) (215) (212) (251) (248) (246) (244) (247) (243) (254) (151) (154)
108.71  A/D-Communication (218)i ' (221) (224) (227) (230) (232) (235) (238) (241) (244) (247) (250)
Prior year (193) (195) (197) (199) 201) (203) (205) (207) (209) (VAR))] (214) (216)
Change (25) (26) 27) (28) (29) 29) 30) a3n 32) (33) (33) (34)
108.72  A/D-Buildings (990) (994) (998) (1,001) (1,005) (1,009) (1,013) (1,017) (1,021) (1,025) (1,029) (1,033)
Prior year (944) (948) (951) (955) (959) (963) (967) 971) (974) (978) (982) (986)
Change (46) (46) 47) (46) (406) (46) (46) (406) 47) 47) 47) 47)
108.73  A/D-General plant (356) (365) (372) (381) (390) (399) (401) 410) (419) (428) (393) (385)
Prior year (387) (396) (405) (414) (423) (432) (441) (450) (459) (468) (480) (489)
Change 31 31 33 33 33 33 40 40 40 40 87 104
108.8 RWIP 7 15 46 15 20 14 24 25 19 21 9 23
Prior year 18 29 36 39 38 44 56 57 57 52 N 6
Change (rn (14) 10 (24) (13) 30 (32) (32) (38) 3N 10 17
123.11  Pat Cap-EKPC 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066 23,066
Prior year 20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577 .20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577 20,577
Change 2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489 2.489 2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489
123.12  Pat Cap- KAEC 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66
Prior year 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 66 66 66
Change 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1 1 0 0 0
123.14  Pat Cap-UUS 271 271 271 271 271 271 271 271 27 272 272 272
Prior year 268 268 268 268 268 268 268 268 268 271 271 271
Change 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 1 1
123.15  Pat Cap-CFC 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194
Prior year 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194 194
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
123.16  Pat Cap-NISC 95 95 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88
Prior year 75 75 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71

Change 20 20 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17



Cumberland Valley Electric
Cornparison of Test Year Account Balances with

those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet

Acct #

123.17

123.18

123.19

123.22

123.23

123.24

123.25

123.29

123.3

131.12

131.13

131.15

131.25

Description

Pat Cap-Federated Ins
Prior year
Change

Pat Cap-CoBank
Prior year
Change

Pat Cap-CRC
Prior year
Change

CFC-Cap Term Certificates

Prior year
Change

Other investments
Prior year
Change

Envision
Prior ycar
Change

Invest-CoBank
Prior year
Changc

Invest-CRC
Prior year
Change

CFC-Mbr Cap Sceurities
Prior year
Change

Cash-General
Prior year
Change

Cash-Cumberland
Prior year
Change

Cash-E Account
Prior year
Change

Cash-Capital credit
Prior year
Change

Exhibit u)
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December January February March April May June July August September October November

Month 1 Month 2 Montl; 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month § Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 2
165 165 165 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201
143 143 143 177 177 177 177 177 177 177 177 177
22 22 22 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
7 6 6 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

1 1 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
10 0
10 10 10
10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (10) (10) (10)
851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851
851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851 851
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 1 1 i 1 I 1 1 1 1 1

0 1 1 i 1 1 1 1 1 i 1 1
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
543 677 553 547 839 (H7) 471 318 383 1,295 2,005 3,310
308 153 600 681 716 603 124 2,589 1,899 1,592 725 1,617
235 524 47 (134) 123 (720) 347 (2,271) (1,516) (297) 1,280 1,693
297 218 352 241 168 266 99 29 42 142 231 309
153 204 101 300 142 244 331 166 262 170 263 140
144 14 251 (59) 26 22 (232) (137) (220) (28) (32) 169
1,077 265 770 1,061 689 1,573 697 454 579 1,607 530 1,437
1,054 717 626 818 893 703 538 816 909 992 1,901 811
23 (452) 144 243, (204) 870 159 (362) (330) 615 (1,371) 626

(12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (12) 47

(12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (12 (12) (12) (12 (12) (12 (12)
0 0 0 0 0 0 59 12 12 12 12 12



Cumbcrland Valley Electric
Comparison of Tcst Year Account Balances with

those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet

Acct #

134.0

135.0

136.0

142.0

143.0

144.1

154.0

154.1

165.11

165.12

165.13

165.14

165.22

Description

Special deposits
Prior year
Change

Working funds
Prior year
Change

Temporary cash investment
Prior year
Change

Accounts receivable
Prior year
Change

Other AR
Prior year
Change

Allowance
Prior year
Change

Material and supplies
Prior year
Change

Fucl inventory
Prior year
Change

Prepay work comyp insurance
Prior year
Change

Prepay property ins
Prior year
Change

Prepay auto ins
Prior year
Change

Prepay DOM ins
Prior year
Change

Prepay R&S
Prior year
Change

December January February March
Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4
4 4 4 4
4 4 4 4
0 0 0 0
2 2 2 2
2 2 2 2
0 0 0 0
5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5
0 0 0 0
4,311 5,360 5,943 4,302
4,776 6,230 5,620 4,673
(465) (870) 323 (371)
1,033 1,014 490 456
1,024 1,013 723 197
9 1 (233) 259
83) (76) 97 (116)
(164) (151) (170) (185)
81 75 73 69
409 401 435 416
484 541 544 548
(75) (140) (109) (132)
18 13 15 8
13 19 14 19
5 ) 1 (11)
90 84 76
104 95 83
0 (14) (1 (7
26 18 9
27 18 9
8V 0 0 0
10 6 3
10 7 3
0 (@) 0 0
3 2 1
3 2 i
0 0 0 0
12 24 36
12 23
0 12 12 13

April
Month 5

3,337
3,480
(143)

454
159
295

(113)
(178)
65

443
531
(38)

14
19
(5)

67
74

(N

98
97

35
35

1
10

48
35
13

May
Month 6

3,020
3,548
(528)

45
172
273

(132)
(198)
66

460
554
(94)

15
21
(6)
59

(6)

June
Month 7

3,484
3813
(329)

164
156

(150)
@14)
64

462
582
(120)

13
12

50
56
(6)

80
79

28
29

n

72
58
14

July
Month 8

o

4,130
3,994
136

198
173
25

(86)
(mny
25

441
541
(100)

13
22

&)

10
45
(35)

71
71

25
26
(1)

84
70
14

August Septcmber
Month 9 Month 10
4 4
4 4
0 0
5 5
2 2
3 3
5 5
5 5
0 - 0
3,370 3,444
4,061 3,492
(191 (48)
244 166
174 133
70 33
(108) (129).
(129) (145)
21 16
419 453
568 522
(149) 69)
13 15
22 17
%) )
8 6
17 12
9 (6)
62 53
62 53
0 0
22 19
22 19
0 0
7 6
7 6
0 0
97 72
81 61
16 11

Octaber
Month 11

3211
3,328
(117)

152
149

(95)
(161)

372
382
(10)

48
41

Exhibit

W 0
X

November
Month 12

3,544
4,394
(850)

68
100
(32)

(118)
(70
(48)

400
408
8

19
(12)

36
35

13
13

BN

24
20



Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit M}

Comparison of Test Year Account Balances with page 4 ()‘b / D
those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet of

Decembcer January February March April May June July August September October November
Acct # Description Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month § Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12
165.4 Prepay GPS maint contract 7 6 5 4 3 3 2 1 10 10 9 8
Prior year 30 27 25 21 18 16 13 10 18 15 11 9
Change (23 @2n (20) (17) (15) (13) (1 )] (®) (5 2 H
171.0 Interest recicvable 9 13 16 19 3 6 9 13 16 19 3 6
Prior year 10 13 16 19 3 6 9 13 16 19 3 6
Change (¢))] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
172.0 Retn receivable 75 150 225 300 375 450 525 600 675 750 825
Prior year 75 150 225 300 375 450 525 600 675 750 825
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186.2 Duc other coops 80 73 65 58 51 44 36 29 22 14 7
Prior ycar 79 72 65 58 50 43 36 29 22 14 7
Change 0 | 1 0 0 I 1 0 0 0 0 0
186.3 R&S prepayment 823 818 813 808 803 798 793 788 783 778 773 767
Prior year 884 879 874 869 864 859 854 849 844 839 834 828
Change (61) 1) 61) 61) 1) 61) (61) 61 (61) (61) (61) 61
360.1 Land/rights 5 S 5 5 5 5 S 5 5 5 5 S
Prior year S 5 5 5 S S 5 5 5 5 S S
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
362. Station 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169
Prior year 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169 169
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
362.01  TS2 Station 589 606 606 605 605 605 605 606 606 606 606 600
Prior year 581 581 581 592 593 593 592 592 587 587 589 589
Change 8 25 25 13 12 12 13 14 19 19 17 11
364 Poles, towers & fixtures 28,703 28,787 28,809 29,017 29,109 29,213 29,274 29,351 29,433 29,473 29,595 29,675
Prior year 27,529 27,606 27,659 27,781 27,883 27,987 28,063 28,131 28,186 28,346 28,493 28,575
Change 1,174 1,181 1,150 1,236 1,226 1,226 1,211 1,220 1,247 1,127 1,102 1,100
365 Overhead conductor 27,213 27,252 27,266 27,322 27,392 27,455 27,493 27,536 27,597 27,634 27,700 27,905
Prior year 26,557 26,596 26,618 26,673 26,719 26,768 26,813 26,900 26,939 27,007 27,095 27,129
Change 656 656 648 649 673 687 680 636 658 627 605 776
367 Underground conductor 3,736 3,751 3,755 3,769 3,771 3,774 3,784 3,822 3,830 3,850 3,863 3,889
Prior year 3,637 3,647 3,650 3,671 3,687 3,702 3,652 3,672 3,692 3,706 3,712 3,721
Change 99 104 105 98 84 72 132 150 138 144 151 168
368 Transformers 10,203 10,190 10,207 10,242 10,242 10,269 10,283 10,283 10,373 10,493 10,561 10,657
Prior year 10,072 10,126 10,115 10,125 10,133 10,133 10,169 10,169 10,171 10,195 10,171 10,203
Change 131 64 92 117 109 136 114 114 202 298 390 454
369 Services 8,254 8,253 8,248 8,262 8,270 8,258 8,268 8,296 8,282 8,291 8,298 8,315
Prior year 8,010 8,030 8,046 8,062 8,089 8,119 8,148 8,167 8,180 8,209 8,225 8,243

Change 244 223 202 200 181 139 120 129 102 82 73 72



Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit ‘/()
Comparison of Test Ycar Account Balances with page 5 aa /D

those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet of
December January February March April May June July August September October November
Acct # Description Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12
370 Meters 1,595 1,130 1,149 L9 1,103 1,077 1,078 1,078 1,078 1,078 1,046 1,046
Prior year 2,212 2,214 2,209 2,209 2,164 2,163 2,166 2,168 2,168 2,142 2,142 2,121
Change 617) (1,084) (1,060) (1,090) (1,061) (1,086) (1,088) (1,090) (1,090) (1,064) (1,096) (1,075)
370.01  Meters, solid state 354 353 352 383 404 404 436 465 501 503 536
Prior year
Change 0 354 353 352 383 404 404 436 465 501 503 536
370,02 Demand meters, solid state 124 124 124 124 123 123 123 123 123 122 122
Prior year
Change 0 124 124 124 124 123 123 123 123 123 122 122
370.1 Turtles 17 17 17 17 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Prior ycar 139 139 139 18 18 18 18 17 17 17 17 17
Change (122) (122) (122) N (2 @ (2) N (nH )] M (0]
370.11  Turtle II 3,609 3,609 3,609 3,609 3,609 3,609 3,609 3,595 3,595 " 3,595 3,583 3,583
Prior year 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,638 3,609 3,609 3,609
Change (29) (29) (29) 29 (29) (29) (29) (43) 43) (14) (26) (26)
370.12  Meters, with disconneet sw 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370
Prior year 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370 370
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
370.13  Meter w/ TS2 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307
Prior year 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307 307
Change 307 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
370.14  Meter combo-TS2 & discor 185 185 185 185 242 242 242 300 300 300 297 326
Prior year 127 127 127 127 127 127 185 185
Change 185 185 185 185 115 115 115 ' 173 173 173 112 141
370.15  Remote service switches 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 350
Prior year 371 371 371 370 370 370 370 370 360 360 360 360
Change (1) (n (11 (10) (10 (10) (0 (10) 0 0 0 (10)
371 Services 4,789 4,803 4,801 4,805 4,818 4,819 4,822 4,837 4,838 4,858 4,885 4,913
Prior year 4,535 4,567 4,583 4,612 4,632 4,646 4,665 4,698 4,716 4,735 4,753 4,772
Change 254 236 218 193 186 173 157 139 122 123 132 141
389.1 Land, Gray office 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38
Prior year 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186.10  Misceilancous 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
Prior year 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
390.0 Building-Cumberland 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Prior year 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



Cumberland Valley Eleetric
Comparison of Test Year Account Balances with
those of the Preceding Year - Balance Sheet

Acct #

390.1

390.15

390.17

390.18

390.19

390.2

390.21

391

392

394

395

396

397

Description

Building-Gray headquarters
Prior year
Change

Building-Gray engineering
Prior year
Change

Building-Gray transforiner
Prior year
Change

Building-Gray trans #2
Prior year
Change

Building-Gray generator
Prior year
Change

Building-Cumberland offic¢
Prior year
Change

Building-Cumberland garag
Prior year
Change

Office furniturc
Prior year
Change

Transportation
Prior year
Change

Tools, shop & garage
Prior year
Change

Laboratory
Prior year
Change

Power operated
Prior year
Change

Communication
Prior yecar
Change

December
Month {

1,161
715
386

186
186
0

87
87
0

153
153

33
33

435
433

83
83

779
808
29

3,097
3,164
(67)

98
98

93
93

305
306

0]

677
489
188

January
Month 2

1,161
1,155
6

186
186

87
87

153
153

33
33

435
433

83
83

788
847
(59)

3,097
3,193
(96)

99
98

93
93

305
306
(H

677
491
186

February
Month 3

1,161
1,155
6

136
186

87
87

153
153

435
433

83
83

798
847
(49)

3,117
3,164
@7

99
98

93
93

305
306
(8]

677
491
186

March April May June July
Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8

1,161 1,176 1,179 1,179 1,179
1,155 [,155 1,155 1,155 1,161
6 21 24 24 18

186 186 186 186 186
186 186 186 186 186

0 0 0 0 0

87 87 87 87 87

87 87 87 87 87

0 0 0 0 0

153 153 153 153 153
153 153 153 153 153

0 0 0 0 0

33 33 33 33 33
33 33 33 33 33

0 0 0 0 0
435 435 435 435 435
435 435 435 435 435
0 0 0 0 0

83 83 83 83 83

83 83 83 83 83

0 0 0 0 0

798 812 813 814 817
872 874 875 882 882
(74) (62) (62) (68) (65)
3,117 3,209 3,237 3,242 3,223
3,122 3,122 3,122 3,122 3,097
) 87 115 120 126

99 99 99 99 99
98 98 98 98 98

1 1 1 1 I

93 93 93 87 87
93 93 93 93 93
0 0 0 (©) (6)
305 305 305 305 305
306 306 305 305 305
M m 0 0 0
677 677 680 680 703
489 489 489 489 489
188 188 191 191 214

August
Month 9

1,179
1,161
I8

186
186
0

87
87
0

153
153

33
33

435
435

83
83

818
882
(64)

3,225
3,097
128

99
98

87
93
(6)

305
305

703
489
214

September
Month 10

1,179
1,161
18

186
186
0

87
87
0

153
153

33
33

435

825
888
(63)

3,226
3,097
129

99
98

87
93
(6)

305
305

702
489
213

Exhibit U)
L B0

October November
Month 11 Month 12

1,179 1,179
1,161 1,161
18 18
186 186
186 186
0 0

87 87
87 87

0 0
153 153
153 153
0 0

33 33
33 33

0 0
435 435
435 435
0 0

83 83
83 83

0 0
782 765
838 916
(106) (151)
3,127 3,127
3,097 3,097
30 30
99 99
98 98

1 i

87 87
93 93
(6) (6)
305 305
305 305
0 0
702 714
439 489
213 225



Cumberland Valley Electric Exhibit UJ

Comparison of Test Year Account Balances with page 7 l 0
those of the Preceding Year - Balance Shect of Jg

Dccember January February March April May June Tuly August Scptember October November
Acct # Description Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month § Mouth 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12
398 Miscellancous 420 420 420 420 420 433 437 438 438 440 442 442
Prior ycar 412 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 420 420
Change 8 4 4 4 4 17 21 22 22 24 22 22
#xxkx  Total Asscts and Debits - 96,908 97,458 98,178 96,709 96,078 95,907 95,722 96,087 96,212 97,882 97,454 100,238
Prior year 93,203 95,029 94,369 93,512 92,626 92,597 92,367 95,325 94,986 94,060 94,085 94,992
Change 3,705 2,429 3,809 3,197 3,452 3,310 3,355 762 1,226 3,822 3,369 5,246
200. Memberships issued 433 434 433 433 431 432 433 434 433 434 435 435
Prior year 432 432 433 431 431 430 431 431 432 432 432 433
Change 1 2 0 2 0 2 2 3 1 2 3 2
201.10  Patrons capital credits 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310 38,310
Prior ycar 35,278 35,278 35,278 35,278 35,278 35,278 35278 35,278 35,278 35,278 35,278 35,278
Change 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032
201.20  Pat cap- assignable 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736 2,736
Prior year 3,031 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032
Change 0 (295) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296) (296)
219.10  Current ycar margins 2,736 21t 705 769 1,006 807 229 292 345 186 74 (7)
Prior ycar 3,032 403 990 1,319 1,129 969 587 463 428 371 335 462
Change (296) (192) (285) (550) (123) (162) (358) (171 (83) (185) (261) (469)
208.00  Donated capital 110 110 110 110 112 112 112 112 112 114 114 114
Prior year 103 103 106 106 106 110 110 110 110 110 110 110
Change 7 7 4 4 6 2 2 2 2 4 4 4
21530 Accum comp income : (848) (844) (840) (835) (831) (827) (822) (818) (813) (809) (805) (800)
Prior year (877) (872) (868) (864) (859) (855) (850) (870) (866) (862) (857) (853)
Change 29 28 28 29 28 28 28 52 53 53 52 53
217.0 CC unclaimed 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,179 2,179 2,179 2,178 2,178 2,178
Prior year 2,122 2,122 2,122 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121
Change : (1) (1) (1) 0 0 0 58 58 58 57 57 57
217.1 CC retircd-no check 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Prior ycar 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
224.14  NCSC notes 1,894 1,894 1,819 1,818 1,818 1,743 1,743 1,743 1,666 1,666 1,666 1,587
Prior yecar 2,217 2,217 2,135 2,135 2,135 2,052 2,052 2,052 1,968 1,968 1,968 1,894
Change (323) (323) (316) 317 317) (309) (309) (309) (302) (302) (302) (307)
224.15  CoBank notes 2,412 2,393 2,374 2,355 2,336 2316 2,297 2,278 2,258 2,239 2,219 2,200
Prior year 2,639 2,620 2,601 2,583 2,564 2,545 2,526 2,507 2,488 2,470 2451 2,431
Change (227) 227) (227) (228) (228) (229) (229) (229) (230) (231) (232) (231)
224.3 RUS notes 3,323 3312 3,300 3,290 3,279 3,268 3,256 3,245 3,235 3,223 3,212 3,201
Prior year 3,451 3,441 3,430 3,419 3,408 3,398 3,387 3,377 3,366 3,355 3,345 3,334

Change (128) (129) (130) (129) (129) (130) (131) (132) (131) (132) (133) (133)



Cumberland Valley Electric
Compurison of Test Year Account Balanccs with
those of the Preceding Year - Balance Shect

Heet #

22435

224.45

224.60

2283

2321

232.37

233.0

235

235.1

236.1

236.2

236.2

236.3

Description

FFB notes
Prior year
Change

FFB notes unadvanced
Prior year
Change

Advance payment
Prior year
Change

Postretirement benelits
Pior year
Change

AP - general
Prior year
Change

AP - flower fund
Prior year
Change

Shot term borrowings
Prior year
Change

Customer deposits
Prior year
Change

Customer dejosit - CATV
Prior year
Change

Property taxes
Prior year
Change

Acc SUTA tax
Prior year
Change

Ace FICA tux
Prior year
Change

Acc FUTA tax
Prior year
Change

December
Mounth !

45,316
46,527
(i,211)

(7,708)
(10,708)
3,000

(1,380)
(1,313)
(67)

3,447
3,325
122

3,751
3,965
(214)

3
3
0

1,291
1,345
(54)

[

238
242

)

January Febrnary
Month 2 Month 3

45316 43,316

46,527 46,527
(1,201} (L21F)
(7,708) (7,708)
(10,708) (10,708)

3,000 3,000
(1,380) (1,397)
(1,313) (1,329
(67) (68)

3,456 3,464

3,332 3,349

124 115

4,301 4,493

5317 3,754

(1,016) 739

2 k!

3 k!

(1) 0

599
0 (599

[,254 1,255

[,347 1,353
{93) (100)

4 4

4 4

0 1]

60 120

289 124
(229) {4}

2 2

2 2

0 0

0 0

4 6

3 5

March
Month 4

44,956
46,244
(1,288)

(7,708)
£10,708)
3,000

(1,397)
(1,329)
(68)

3.473
3,357
i16

3,328
3,465
(137)

3
3
0

1,253
1,311
(58)

=

180
181
(I

N

April May
Manth § Month 6

44,956 44,056
46,244 46,244
(1,288) (1,288}
(7,708) (7,708)
(10,708} {10,708)
3,000 3,000
(1,397) (1,414)
(1,329) {1,346)
(68) (68)

3,480 3,488

3,365 3,372

1i5 116

2424 2,508

2,762 2,849
(338) (341}

3 3

3 3

0 0

1] 0

[,218 1,219

[,312 1,354
(94) (135)

4 4

4 4

4] [

240 300

238 295

2 5

0 0

0 0

0 0

June

Month 7

4,625
45961
(1,336)

(7,708)
{10,708)
3,000

(1414)
(1,346)
{a8)

3,497
3,380
117

3,150
3277
(127)

3
3
0

1,223
1.357
(134)

IS

360
348

July
Monih 8

44,625
45,901
(1,336)

(7,708)
(7,708)
0

(1AL
(1,346)
(6B)

3,505
3412
93

3,578
3,261
317

3
3
0

1,228
1,366
(138)

=

174
406
(232)

24

24

August
Manth 9

44,625
45,961
{1,336)

(7,708}
(7,708)
0

(1,432}
(1,363}
{69)

3,514
3,420
94

3,035
3274
(239)

3

3

V]

633
633
1,234

£,374
(140)

L

228
220

Septcmber Cclober
Month 10 Month ||

44,294 44,294
45,677 43,676
(1,383} (1,382)
(4,708) (4.708)
{7,708) (7,<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>